
 
 
 

  
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE A 

Please ask  
for: 

Val Last 

    

DATE Wednesday, 2 December 
2015 

Telephone: 01449 724673 

    

PLACE Council Chamber - Council 
Offices, Needham Market 

Email:  

  CommitteeServices@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk 

DATE/TIME 9.30 am   

   24 November 2015 

 
 
 
The Council, members of the public and the press may record/film/photograph or 
broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully excluded. Any 
member of the public who attends a meeting and wishes to be filmed should advise the 
Committee Clerk. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for absence/substitutions  
 

 

2.   To receive any declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest 
by Members  
 

 

3.   Declarations of lobbying  
 

 

4.   Declarations of personal site visits  
 

 

5.   Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 
2015  
 
Report NA/19/15 

 

1 - 8 

6.   To receive notification of petitions in accordance with the Council's 
Petition Procedure  
 

 

7.   Questions from Members  
 
The Chairman  answer any questions on  any matters in relation to which 
the Council has powers or duties which affect the District and which fall 
within the terms of reference of the Committee of which due notice has 
been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rules. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

8.   Schedule of Planning Applications  
 
Report NA/20/15 
 

Note: the Chairman may change the listed order of items to 
accommodate visiting Ward Members and members of the public. 

 

9 - 220 

9.   Site Inspections  
 

Note: Should a site inspection be required for any of the applications 
this will be held on Wednesday 9 December (exact time to be given). 
The Committee will reconvene after the site inspection at 12:00 noon 
in the Council Chamber.  
 
Would Members please retain the relevant papers for use at that 
meeting  

 

 

10.   Urgent business - such other business which, by reason of special 
circumstances to be specified, the Chairman agrees should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

Note: Any matter to be raised under this item must be notified, in 
writing, to the Chief Executive or District Monitoring Officer before the 
commencement of the meeting, who will then take instructions from 
the Chairman 

 

 

 
Notes:  
1. The Council has adopted a Charter for Public Speaking at Planning Committees. A link to 
the full charter is provided below.  
 
http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-
2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf  
 

Those persons wishing to speak on a particular application should arrive in the Council 
Chamber early and make themselves known to the Officers. They will then be invited by the 
Chairman to speak when the relevant item is under consideration. This will be done in the 
following order:  
 

 Parish Clerk or Parish Councillor representing the Council in which the application site 
is located  

 Objectors  

 Supporters  

 The applicant or professional agent / representative  
 
Public speakers in each capacity will normally be allowed 3 minutes to speak.  
 
2. Ward Members attending meetings of Development Control Committees and Planning 
Referral Committee may take the opportunity to exercise their speaking rights but are not 
entitled to vote on any matter which relates to his/her ward.  
 

http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf
http://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/assets/UploadsMSDC/Organisation/Democratic-Services/Constitution/Revised-2015/Pages-22-25-Charter-on-Public-Speaking-Planning-Committee-Extract-for-web.pdf


 

 
 

Members 
 

Matthew Hicks – Chairman 
Lesley Mayes – Vice-Chairman 
Gerard Brewster 
David Burn 
John Field 
Lavinia Hadingham 
Diana Kearsley 
John Levantis 
Sarah Mansel 
David Whybrow 

 



 

Mid Suffolk District Council 
 

Vision 
 
 “We will work to ensure that the economy, environment and communities of Mid 
Suffolk continue to thrive and achieve their full potential.” 
 

Strategic Priorities 2014-2019 
 
1. Economy and Environment 

 
Lead and shape the local economy by promoting and helping to deliver sustainable 
economic growth which is balanced with respect for wildlife, heritage and the natural and 
built environment. 
 
Outcomes 
 

 Strong and productive relationships with business, visitors and partners are established. 

 Investment is secured and employment opportunities are developed through existing and 

new business including the delivery of more high value jobs. 

 Local skills provision is more aligned to the local economy with our education and training 

equipping people for work. 

 Key strategic sites are developed and an infrastructure is in place that delivers economic 

advantage to existing and new business. 

 The natural and built environment and our heritage and wildlife are balanced with growth. 

 Our market towns are accessible and sustainable vibrant local and regional centres. 

 Growth achieved in the key sectors of food, drink, agriculture, tourism, advanced 

manufacturing (engineering), logistics and energy sectors of the local economy. 

 Potential from the green economy is maximised, for homes and businesses. 

 Our environment is more resilient to climate change and flooding, water loss and emissions 

are reduced. 

 A cleaner, safer and healthier environment is delivered providing a good quality of life for 

residents and visitors. 

 

2. Housing  
  
Ensure that there are enough good quality, environmentally efficient and cost effective 
homes with the appropriate tenures and in the right locations. 
 
Outcomes 
 

 That the supply of housing meets the needs and demands of all and supports diverse vibrant 

communities. 

 Appropriate amenities and infrastructure for core villages acting as hubs for their surrounding 

areas. 

 A high standard of housing that is energy efficient, accessible, of good quality, in the right 

locations and with the right tenures. 

 People are able to move more readily and have the choice and ability to access appropriate 

housing. 

 



 

3. Strong and Healthy Communities 
 
Encourage and support individuals and communities to be self sufficient, strong, healthy 
and safe. 
 
Outcomes 
 

 Vibrant, healthy, sustainable and resilient communities maximising their skills and assets. 

 Individuals and communities taking responsibility for their own health, wellbeing, fitness and 

lifestyles. 

 Communities feel safer and there are low levels of crime. 

 Communities are better connected and have a strong and productive relationship with Mid 

Suffolk District Council. 



 

Suffolk Local Code 

of Conduct 

 

1. Pecuniary Interests 
 

2. Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Does the item of Council 
business relate to or affect 

any of your  
non-pecuniary interests ? 

 

Does the item of Council 
business relate to or affect 
any of your/your spouse 

/partner’s pecuniary 
interests? 

 

No 

Participate fully and vote 

Breach = non-compliance 
with Code  

 

No interests to 
declare 

 

Breach = criminal offence 

Declare you have a 
pecuniary interest 

Yes 

Leave the room. Do not 
participate or vote (Unless 
you have a dispensation) 

 

No 

Yes 

Declare you have a non-
pecuniary interest 

 



                                                                     NA/19/15 

A 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE ‘A’ held at the Council Offices, 
Needham Market on Wednesday 9 September at 9:30am. 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: Lesley Mayes (Vice Chairman in the Chair) 
  Gerard Brewster 
  David Burn 
  John Field 
  Nick Gowrley * 
  Lavinia Hadingham 
  Diana Kearsley 
  John Levantis 
  Sarah Mansel 
  David Whybrow 
   
Denotes substitute *   
   
Ward Members: Councillor:   

 
David Card 
John Levantis 
Sarah Mansel 

   
In attendance: Corporate Manager – Development Management 

Senior Development Management Planning Officer (JPG) 
Development Management Planning Officer (LE/SB) 
Governance Support Officer (VL/KD) 

 
NA17 APOLOGIES/SUBSTITUTIONS 
  
 Councillor Nick Gowrley was substituting for Councillor Matthew Hicks.   
  
NA18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor David Whybrow declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 4005/14 as 
an acquaintance of a Director of the agent acting for the applicant. 
 
Councillor John Field advised that as Chair of Baylham Parish Meeting he had 
prepared the Parish statement and would be speaking on behalf of the Parish.   
He would therefore not participate in the discussion or vote on the application. 

 
NA19   DECLARATIONS OF LOBBYING 
 
 It was noted that Members had been lobbied on application 1311/15. 
  
NA20  DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL SITE VISITS 
 
 There were no declarations of personal site visits. 
 
NA21 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 12 AUGUST 2015 
 
 Report NA/17/15 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 
B 

The minutes of the meeting held 12 August 2015 were confirmed as a correct 
record.  

 
NA22 PETITIONS 
 

None received. 
 
NA23  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS 
 

None received. 
 
NA24 SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
  Report NA/18/15 
 
 In accordance with the Council’s procedure for public speaking on planning 

applications representations were made as detailed below: 
 

Planning Application Number Representations from 
  
4005/14 Stuart Gemmill (Parish Council) 

Richard Pierce-Saunderson (Objector) 
Brian Belton (Agent) 

1311/15 John Field (Parish Meeting) 
Andrew Cann (Objector) 
Stuart Howison (Agent) 

2396/15 Peter Dow (Parish Council) 
Doug Reed (Objector) 
Christopher Loon (Agent) 

 
Item 1  

Application Number: 4005/14 
Proposal: Erection of 44 dwellings together with associated 

garages, hardstanding, drainage and infrastructure 
including new accesses   

Site Location: STRADBROKE – Grove Farm, Queen Street 
Applicant:   Susan Webster, Jean Keeling and Peter Hillen 
 
Stuart Gemmill, speaking for the Parish Council, advised that the application 
although not passed unanimously, was supported by the majority. The affordable 
housing was much needed and it seemed the only way for this to be provided in 
villages was within a mixed development to finance it. 
 
Richard Pierce-Saunderson, an objector, said the application did not adhere to the 
Council’s strategic priorities. Whilst canvassing for the parish election in May, it 
came to his attention that 75% of the village were opposed to a development of 
this size. He said the current infrastructure of the village was struggling to cope 
with the current demand. He also said that the Housing Needs Survey that was 
conducted for Stradbroke identified that 12 units were required for the village and 
not 17 as proposed. He advised that currently Stradbroke had 51 homes for sale 
that were struggling to sell, and a further 20 currently under construction. The 
development would have an adverse impact on the landscape and frontage of the 
village. The traffic in the village was appalling and this development would add to 

Page 2



 
C 

this. The village would be supportive of a development that contained not more 
than 20 houses. To pass this application would mean that the Council was going 
against its own strategic policy. 
 
Brian Belton, the agent, noted that Stradbroke was a key village to accommodate 
growth, and currently there were no further strategic site developments in Mid 
Suffolk, with the exception of Stowmarket. Stradbroke Parish Council was very 
active. There had been concern over the loss of the library, the village shop and 
Post Office, all of which were now back in the village, thanks to the efforts of the 
villagers and Parish Council. Grove Farm was villagers first choice for 
development, with consultations and detailed reports carried out to ensure a 
robust scheme was presented. The scheme was deliverable and had the support 
of the planning officer. 
 
Councillor Julie Flatman, Ward Member, commenting by email said that after a 
thorough and extensive consultation period, she now believed that the current 
application should be approved with all the recommendations the officers had put 
in place. 
 
The Committee considered the application at length and requested clarification on 
various matters from Officers. The Housing Development Officer confirmed that 
the mix of affordable housing was acceptable and reflected local needs as 
identified on the Housing Register and in the Housing Needs Survey carried out in 
2015. The location of the affordable housing was also considered acceptable in a 
development of this size.   
 
Whilst the Committee understood residents’ concerns regarding the development 
and existing local infrastructure, it was felt that the application was acceptable. 
 
By a unanimous vote. 
 
Decision – That authority be delegated to the Corporate Manager – Development 
Management to grant planning permission subject to the prior completion of a 
Section 106 on terms to his satisfaction to secure the following matters and that 
such permission be subject to the conditions as set out below: 
 

1) £4,000.00 for improvements to bus stops in the local area 
2) £9,504.00 contribution to library services in Stradbroke only 
3) £2,244.00 waste contribution to SCC 
4) Provision of on-site informal open space and public access (Community 

Meadow) 
5) OSSI contribution of £289,509.90 to the extension of community centre and 

current playing fields in Stradbroke 
6) 38.6% affordable housing (mix of local needs and social association) 
7) Phasing of development to be agreed 
8) Provision of road improvements to Queen Street, including pedestrian 

crossing (type to be agreed) 
 
and the following conditions: 
 

 Standard time limit 

 Approved plans 

 Secure protected species licence (for barns) 

Page 3



 
D 

 Condition for lighting design with consideration of biodiversity 

 Construction management scheme + biodiversity management during 
construction 

 Working hours during development 07:30 – 18:00 hours Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 – 13:00 hours Saturday, with no work to take place Sundays or 
Bank Holidays 

 Ongoing management of biodiversity issues for the site for a five year 
period from first occupation 

 Open space management to be agreed 

 Materials to be agreed 

 Surfacing materials to be agreed and to take into account tree and 
hedgerow root systems 

 Notwithstanding details submitted, landscaping details to be agreed 

 Tree protection measures and provision of Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment/Arboricultural Method Statement to be agreed 

 Arboricultural monitoring to take place during construction 

 Highways:  Details of new pedestrian crossing to be agreed and secure this 
provision 

 Highways:  Secure access details and provision prior to occupation 

 Highways:  Secure parking provision shown and retention 

 Highways:  Secure visibility splays and retention 

 Highways:  Details of bin storage 

 Highways:  Details of piping of ditches benefit new accesses 

 Highways:  Surface water drainage from highways to be agreed 

 Highways:  Secure Binder course level of construction for roads prior to 
occupation 

 Condition recommended by EA as detailed in full earlier in this report 

 Foul and surface water drainage to be agreed 
 

Item 2  
Application Number: 1311/15 
Proposal: Use of land for the siting of 1 static caravan and 1 

touring caravan for occupation by Gypsies/Travellers.  
Alterations to vehicular access.  Construction of hard 
standing.  Erection of perimeter fencing  

Site Location: BAYLHAM – Land at Church Lane 
Applicant:   Mr A Doherty 
 
Councillor John Field, speaking for the Parish Meeting, advised that Baylham was 
a small countryside village that had poor access and was not sustainable due to 
the lack of facilities in the village. The Parish Meeting believed that this proposal 
did not meet Government requirements and was contrary to MSDC’s own policy. 
The development would introduce a discordant and out of character element with 
an adverse impact on the Gipping Valley landscape. It was also noted that the 
development was within 120m of the Grade II listed building and Church. The 
development was dissimilar to other dwellings in the village and not in keeping 
with the character of the village. The Committee was asked to refuse the 
application. 
 
Andrew Cann, an objector, said that he agreed with the justification for refusal in 
the report and with Councillor Field’s comments. He disagreed with the want/need 
argument, as the applicant was currently housed and did not need 

Page 4



 
E 

accommodation, aspiration or want was not the same as need.   As planning 
policy had recently changed, the Council must take into account how this change 
affected the applicant. The applicant advised that they worked away from home 
and attended horse fairs further afield, but this was a lifestyle choice like many 
others made, and new guidelines meant that the applicant would no longer be 
classed as a gypsy or traveller. This needed to be kept in mind, and if the 
application was refused included in the reasons for refusal. 
 
Stuart Howison, the agent, advised that he became involved with the development 
after the previous application was refused.  He said the anonymous report of Great 
Crested Newts being on the site had been addressed by way of an ecological 
survey which had shown there were no protected species on this site. He also 
spoke of an incident where the site was broken into, and ‘Pikeys out’ was painted 
on a wall. The applicant thanked the District and Parish Councils as well as the 
residents of the village who helped to remove the graffiti after this incident. The 
Housing Officer had indicated that the application accorded with Policy CS10 in 
that settlements of this nature worked best when integrated into local communities. 
He therefore asked that this application was supported and approved. 
 
Councillor David Card, Ward Member, said the Officer’s report was a well- 
balanced paper, which set out the case well, with a considered recommendation 
which he endorsed. Other sites which had been granted approval were clearly in 
appropriate places and this site was not. The reasons for refusal were well set out 
and he commended the recommendation. 
 
Members had sympathy with the applicant but generally considered that the site 
was not an appropriate location for the proposed development.  The village had no 
capacity for additional development and the Visually Important Open Space was 
important to the landscape. It was considered regard should also be given to the 
Inspector’s decision on the previous application and a motion for refusal was 
proposed and seconded. 

 
By 6 votes to 3 
 
Decision – That Full Planning Permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
Having regard to the nature, scale and appearance of the proposal and mindful of 
the Inspector’s decision on a previous appeal the development is considered to 
result in cluttered overdevelopment of the site that would detract from the open, 
rural character of the area and would have an unacceptable impact on the 
appearance of the VIOS and SLA. 
 
Furthermore, the location of the proposal, on the periphery of a countryside village 
would result in an unsustainable form of development with the occupants of the 
site being highly dependent on cars to access services and facilities for day to day 
living. 
 
Weighing all the material planning issues, overall, the proposal is considered to be 
contrary to the objectives of the NPPF, policies SB3 and CL2 of the Mid Suffolk 
Local Plan 1998, policy CS5 of the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy 2008 and policy 
FC1.1 of the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Focussed Review 2012 and is not 
acceptable. 

 

Page 5



 
F 

Item 3  
Application Number: 2396/15 
Proposal: Erection of two storey dwelling with parking and aceess 

to Rose Lane, following demolition of Wesley Hall  
Site Location: ELMSWELL – Wesley Hall, Rose Lane (Rear of 

Elmswell Methodist Church) 
Applicant:   The Trustees of Elmswell Methodist Church 
 
Peter Dow, speaking for the Parish Council began by stating that there was very 
strong feeling in the parish that the Wesley Hall remained as a community facility. 
A Parish Poll was requested due to this strong feeling and the result gave a clear 
message that the villagers wished to retain the Hall. The facility was located 
nearer many of the older members of the community, making it easily accessible 
for those who could not easily travel to other locations.  Other facilities in the 
village were unable to accommodate the calendar of meetings at the Wesley Hall, 
therefore relocation was not an option. 
 
Doug Reed, an objector representing the User Group Committee advised that 
there were several hundred regular users and organisations that used the facility 
on a one off basis.  This demonstrated the successful use of the Hall, and showed 
how valued it was. In the Parish Poll only 75 people voted to remove the Hall as a 
community asset, out of approximately 210 voters. There was widespread positive 
support in the community for the Wesley Hall, and as a growing village there would 
be greater need in the future for such facilities. The listing of the Hall as an ACV 
showed how much it was valued. 
 
Christopher Loon, the agent, shared the applicant’s viewpoint. The development 
would re-use a brown field site and provided a more neighbour friendly land use. 
There was also the matter of the economic viability of maintaining the hall, from 
which there was a meagre return on capital. The applicant would like to release 
capital for use in their Christian missions elsewhere. The other facility available in 
the village, the Blackbourne Centre, was mostly booked in the evenings, and 
therefore could accommodate the day time activities that currently took place at 
Wesley Hall. The Blackbourne Centre could also be split to accommodate 4-5 
groups at a time. Currently Wesley Hall was allowed to be used as a goodwill 
gesture but this was no longer sustainable for the Church. 
 
Councillor Sarah Mansel, Ward Member, said Elmswell was a large village with a 
superb facility in the Blackbourne Centre and was also a hub for the surrounding 
parishes.  It was a very active village with much to do for all ages and both the 
Blackbourne Centre and the Wesley Hall were very well used with many regular 
bookings.  The village population was also likely to increase considerably and 
more facilities would be required.  The village was split by the railway line and 
those residents south of the line appreciated a facility within walking distance.  She 
believed the ACV designation was on the whole site which she felt could be a 
superb site and facility for the village. 
 
Councillor John Levantis, Ward Member, said he reinforced these comments and 
that the Wesley Hall was a fully used facility.  It was well managed by volunteers 
and consistently managed a profit.  It was a in a good location in the village centre 
and although the Blackbourne Centre was an excellent facility it was located on 
the edge of the village.  The two facilities complemented each other and the 
growing village population meant that both facilities would be well used. 

Page 6



 
G 

 
Members considered that the NPPF, paragraph 8 and the ACV to be materially 
important considerations and that the building should remain in community use 
until a satisfactory alternative could be demonstrated.  It was noted that the 
community had wished to safeguard the position regarding an opportunity to 
purchase the building but there had been no formal discussion between the 
Church and the community.  Members requested that Officers include an 
informative note to the decision notice inviting the applicant to engage in dialogue 
with the local planning authority and community regarding options for the site. 
 
By 7 votes to 0 with 1 abstention 
 
Decision – That Full Planning Permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
The Wesley Hall has been designated as an Asset of Community Value for which 
significant community support has been demonstrated.  The loss of the community 
hall would be harmful to the provision of community facilities affecting the vitality of 
the locality to the detriment of sustainable development with particular regard to 
the social role performed by the planning system. 
 
On that basis the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 7, 28 and 70 of the NPPF that 
seek to guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and promotes the 
retention of such uses, and policies FC1 and FC1.1 of the Core Strategy Focussed 
Review which translates the guidance contained in the NPPF to local 
circumstances in seeking to deliver sustainable development. 
 
Add informative:  The applicant is invited to engage in constructive dialogue with 
the local planning authority and the community regarding the future of the whole 
site and to explore mutually acceptable options for the whole Church land 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A 

INDEX TO SCHEDULED ITEMS 

ITEM REF. 
NO 

PROPOSAL & PARISH MEMBER/WARD OFFICER PAGE 
NO 

1 2936/15 Rattlesden: 
Retention of Shed, 
Rattlesden 

Cllr P Otton SES 1 - 12 

2 3349/15 Henley: 
Cross Keys, Henley 

Cllr J Caston 
Cllr J Whitehead 

MP 13 - 30 

3 3208/15 Stowmarket: 
Mulberry House, Milton 
Way, Stowmarket 

Cllr P Ekpenyong 
Cllr L Mayes 

MP 31 - 76 

4 1492/15 Stowmarket: 
Land West of Farriers 
Road, Edgecomb Park, 
Stowmarket 

Cllr G Brewster 
Cllr N Gowrley 

JPG 77 - 207 

NA/20/15

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



r. 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENTCONTROL COMMITTEE - 02 December 2015 

'. 2936/15 
AGENDA ITEM NO 
APPLICATION NO 
PROPOSAL Retention of garden shed and tool shed 
SITE LOCATION 
SITE AREA (Ha) 
APPLICANT 
RECEIVED 
EXPIRY DATE 

Lydgate Cottage, Birds Green, Rattlesden IP30 ORT 

Mr & Mrs Sullivan· 
August 18, 2015 
October 14, 2015 

REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The application is referred to committee for the following reason : 

• a Member of the Council has requested that the application is determined by the 
appropriate Committee qnd the request has been made in accordance with the 
Planning Code of Practice or such other protocol I procedure adopted by the 
CounciL The Members reasoning is included in the agenda bundle. 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. This application was received following an invitation from the Enforcement 
Team after a complaint was received about unauthorised works to the dwelling. 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
~v· . 

2. Lydgate Cottage is a mid terrace, 'thatched, two storey, rendered cottage. The 
row of cottages is Grade II Listeo for Group Value. The cottages are 1·ocated 
with the Conservation Area of Rattlesden in Birds Green. 

HISTORY 

Lydgate Cottage has a small north facing rear garden bounded by 1.8m .high 
close boarded fencing . 

3. The planning history relevant to the application site is: 

2937/15 Retention of 2no. replacement rear ground Withdrawn 14/10/2015 
floor windows. 

PROPOSAL 

4. The proposal seeks planning permission for the retention of a garden shed and · 
a small tool store. Both structures are construCted of timber and finished with 
black timber weatherboard with felt roof. The garden shed measures 2m in 
depth, with a width of 4m and has a dual pitched roof with a height of 2.9m. The 
tool shed is 0.6m in depth; with a width of 1.0m and has a mono pitched roof 

Page 11



POLICY 

2. 

with a height of 1.5m. Both structures are located cin the site boundary with 
Teazel Cottage. 

5. · Planning Policy Guidance - See Appendix below. 

CONSULTATIONS 

6. Rattlesden Parish Council - Objection raised to the retention of the garden 
shed because of its height and proximity to the boundary and overshadowing of 
the neighbouring property. 

MSDC - Heritage -The erection of these sheds required planning permission , 
by virtue of their location within the curtilage of a listed building , but not listed 
building consent. Although photographs submitted with the application show 
that the rear garden with these sheds in place has a very cramped and crowded 
appearance, the sheds are not, in themselves, unusually large or particularly 
incongruous in this domestic setting . Given that they are in the rear garden and 
are not visible from any significant public vantage point, my assessment is that 
they are not harmful to the setting or significance of the listed building and the 
heritage team raises no objection to their retention. As they are already in 
place, there are no heritage-related conditions that are appropriate in this 
instance. 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. This is a summary of the representations received. 

Te~zel Cottage, B.irds Green, Rattlesden -Objection to proximity of building to 
boundary and size which is causing ·overshadowing in the garden. 

ASSESSMENT 

8. The proposal is considered to raise the following core planning issues: 

Principle of Development- The principle of the erection of residential 
outbuildings is supported subject to compliance with Local Plan policies GP1 , 
H16, SB2, HB1, HB8 and Core Strategy policies CS5, .FC1 and FC1 .1 and other 
material considerations. Relevant Local Plan policies set out are considered to 
be consistent with paragraphs 17, 131 and 132. 

Residential amenity - The garden shed and tool store are modest domestic 
garden buildings appropriate in the domestic garden of this property. They are 
located on the boundary with Teazel Cottage and the shed, because of its height 
results in a shadow during the day to the garden of Teazel Cottage. However, 
the garden is north facing and therefore the impact of the shed to the garden 
would only be at the end of the day when the sun is in the west. Before the shed 
was erected there was overshadowing from the 1.8m high close boarded fence. 
This slight loss of light to the garden from the slight increase from the shed over 
the existing fence is acceptable. 

' Heritage- The Heritage Team confirm that the shed does not cause harm to the 
listed building because the shed is located to the rear of the build ing and 

Page 12



3. 

therefore not affecting the setting or significance of the Listed Building or the 
Conservation Area. 

Summary -A garden shed is not an alien feature within the garden of a 
dwellinghouse. The garden is small but the shed, in this case, is acceptable in 
terms of its affect on the setting of the listed building and also the loss of light 
that is created from the roof of the shed. Approval of the garden shed and tool 
store is recommended. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Full Planning Permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 

Approved Plans 

Philip Isbell 
Corporate Manager - Development Management 

APPENDIX A - PLANNING POLICIES 

Samantha Summers 
Planning Officer 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review 

Cor5 - CS5 Mid Suffolks Environment . 
CSFR-FC1 -PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUS=T"AINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 - MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT . 

2. · Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
HB1 - PROTECTION OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS 
HB8 -SAFEGUARDING THE CHARACTER OF CONSERVATION AREAS 
H16 - PROTECTING EXISTING RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
SB2 - DEVELOPMENT APPROPRIATE TO ITS SETTING 

3. Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 

APPENDIX 8- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

Letter(s) of representation(s) have been received from a total of 1 interested party(ies) . · 

The following people objected to the application 

Page 13



The following people supported the application: 

The following people commented on the application: 

Page 14



s: 
MEMBER REFERRAL TO COMMITIEE 

See Planning Charter for principles. Paragraph references below link to Planning 
Charter. 

Planning application EN/1500080 
reference 
Parish RATILESDEN 
Member making PENNYOTION 
request 
13.3 Please describe With the growing need for extra space within existing 
the significant policy, properties this could be significant elsewhere across the 
consistency or district 
material 
considerations which 
make a decision on 
the application of more 
than local significan~e 

13.4 Please detail the This is in the conservation area and within the unique row 
clear and substantial of listed thatched cottages many of which have very small 
planning reasons for rear gardens. 
requesting a referral This application is of a height which appears tom be at odds 

with policy HB4 "does not detract from the architectural or 
historic nature of the building which is listed." HB8 " 
particular attention will be paid to the appearance of and the 
nature of any features including walls and fences" 
Most importantly; H18 " extensions are in keeping with the 
size, design and materials of existing and will not materially 
or detrimentally effect the amenities of neighbours. 

13.5 Please detail the 
wider District and As in 13.3 and the expectation by the public that the 
public interest in the district,s heritage will always be taken onto account 
application 

13.6 If the application No applicable 
is not in your Ward 
please describe the 
very significant 
impacts upon your 
Ward which might 
arise from the 
development 
13.7 Please confirm I have been in contact with the planning officer and the 
what steps you have head of planning 
taken to discuss a 

Page 15



Hill Cottage 

Title: Constraints Map 
Reference: 2936/15 

Birds Green 

Pond 

Site: Lydgate Cottage, Birds Green, Rattlesden IP30 ORT 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131, High Street, Needham Market, IP6 8DL 
Telephone: 01449 724500 
email: customerservice@csduk.com 
www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

SCALE 1 : 1250 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
© Crown copyright and database right 2015 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 100017810 Page 16



1/ 
:::--- ,, -c:.::.-1! 

~ 
-::.- . \1 

-- ---- -------

Ordnance Survey (c) 

~ 
0 50 
I I I I I I 

metres 
1:1250 

Green 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ ~ 
/ 

/ 
Cl~yl~nds 

~ /0 
~~;? 

2014. All rights reserved. Licence nuMber 100022432 

Do not scale from this drawing. All measurements to be checked on site. Any discrepancies, contact the issuer. 

LCII"(t IL!TiC·r ,",(i'·dtc'(t!J:-..::11 :3C·t\· !C('S 

DETAI L: LOCATION PLAN 

Scale: I : 1250@A4 Date: August 20 I 5 

l<ose ~,..ottoge 
High Street 
Ratt lesden 
Bury st Edmunds 
Sul!btk IP30 OAA 

Lora Tumer Architectural Services 0 

tel: 01449 737428 

e-mail: enqulrles@ltorchltecturol.co.uk 

PROJECT: OUTBUILDINGS- LYDGATE COTTAGE, 
BIRDS GREEN, RATTLESDEN, IP30 ORT 

JOB No. LCPS20 I 5 DRG No. 01 

~ 

P
age 17



Ref. Date Revision 

2 Spencers Piece 

DETAIL: BLOCK PLAN 
EXISTING 

Scale; I : I OO@A3 

'3. 

Date: August 20 I 5 

Bury St Edmunds 
Sullbk 11'30 ORA 

3 Spencers Piece 

0 5 

metres 
1:100 

tel: 01449 737428 
. e-mail: enqulries®~architeduralca.uk 

PROJECT: OUTBUILDINGS- LYDGATE COTTAGE, 
BIRDS GREEN, RATTLESDEN, IP30 ORT 

JOB No. LCPS20 I 5 DRG No. 02 

Page 18



@ 

E 
a-
M 

E 
~ 

0 

1:50 

FRONT ELEVATION - WEST 
GARDEN SHED 

LYDGATE 
COTTAGE 

FRONT ELEVATION - WEST 
TOOL SHED 

. 1080 . 

4m ·g~t 

~ 

FLOOR PLANS u 
GARDEN SHED & TOOL SHED 

2.5 

metres 

Ref. Date Revision 

rr:r 
I · I 

SIDE ELEVATION- (NORTH & SOUTH) 
GARDEN SHED 

SIDE ELEVATION- (NORTH & SOUTH) 
TOOL SHED 

REAR ELEVATION - EAST 
GARDEN SHED & TOOL SHED 

. . . . . . . . : . . . -
IIIII Lora Turner Architectural Services 

DETAJt.: GARDEN SHED & TOOL SHED 
PLANS & ELEVATIONS 

Scale: I :50@A3 I Date: August 20 I 5 

External finishes: 
170mm concrete basse 
I 50mm red brick plinth 
black stained weatherboard cladding 
black stained timber window & door 
grey felt roof 

ked on site. Any discrepancies, contact the Issuer. 

...£) 

Rose Coltoge 
Hlgl street 
RaHtesden 
lt<JrySt Edml.Ms 
Sufbl< IP30 OAA 

Lara Tumer Architectural Services 0 

tel: 01449 737-428 

e-mail: enqulrles@ltarchltectural.ca.uk 

PROJECT: OUTBUILDINGS- LYDGATE COTTAGE, 
BIRDS GREEN, RATT~ESDEN, IP30 ORT 

JOB No. LCPS20 I 5 DRG No. 03 

P
age 19



From: Rattlesden Parish Counci l 
Sent: 23 September 2015 10:44 
To: Samantha Summers 
Cc: Planning Admin 

lC . 

Subject: FW: 2936/15 and 2937/15 - Rattlesden Parish Council Comments 

Dear Samantha 

On re-reading the response in my previous e-mail I realised that I had made an error 
in the text which detracted from its meeting. Please would you accept this particular 
e-mail as the definitive view of Rattlesden Parish Council. My apologies for any 
inconvenience. 

Doug 

Doug Reed , Parish Clerk 

2936/15 and 2937/15- Rattlesden Parish Council Comments 

The Council has now considered the applications and wishes to OBJECT to the 
retention of the garden shed. The property is within the Rattlesden Conservation 
Area and the garden shed is immediately adjacent to its boundary. In such 
circumstances, the Council understands that it should be no more than 2.5 metres in 
height. It is higher. 

The shed also appears to extend along the whole length of the boundary and , at the 
height in question, would seem obstructive to the neighbouring property. It must 
reasonably be assumed that there is an overshadowing and loss of outlook. The 
impact of its retention would be a serious visual disamenity in a Conservation Area 
where the properties are all listed buildings. 

The Council has no objection to the retention of two replacement rear ground-floor 
windows. 

Doug Reed 

Parish Clerk 

Rattlesden Parish Council 

I 

Page 20



IL 

HERITAGE COMMENTS 

Application No.: 
Proposal: 

Address: 

Date: 

SUMMARY 

2936/15 (FHA) & 2937/15 (LBC) 
Retention of garden shed and tool shed (FHA); retention of 2no. 
replacement rear ground floor windows (LBC). 
Lydgate Cottage, Birds Green, Rattlesden IP30 ORT 

25th September 2015 

1. The Heritage Team considers that the proposal would cause harm to the significance 
.of Lydgate Cottage as a designated heritage asset, as the application includes ,the 
installation and/or retention of windows with unacceptable joinery details. The level of 
harm is assessed as less than substantial, but it is not outweighed by any identified 
public benefits of the proposal. 

2. The Heritage Team recommends that the application in its present form be refused as 
it does not meet the requirements of NPPF 131, 132 and 134. It also fails to meet 
requirements of saved LP policies HB1 and HB3. 

DISCUSSION 
Lydgate Cottage is a listed building, having been added to the list on 18th April 1988. It 
also lies within the Rattlesden conservation area. Th~ heritage issues are the effect of the 
retention of these works on the character, appearance and significance of the listed 
building itself and on its significance as a heritage asset, and on the character, 
appearance and significance of the conservation area. · 

As all of these developments and alterations have been carried out at the rear of the 
property and are not visible from any significant public vantage point, the effect on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area is minimal and unlikely to be harmful. . 

Retention of sheds: the erection of these sheds required planning permission, by virtue of 
their location within the curtilage of a listed building, but not listed building consent. 
Although photographs submitted with the application show that the rear garden with these 
sheds ion place has a very cramped and crowded appearance, the sheds are not, in 
themselves, unusually large or particularly incongruous in this domestic setting. Given that 
they are in rear garden and are not visible from any significant public vantage point, my 

. I 

assessment is that they are not harmful to the setting or significance of the listed building 
and the heritage team raises no objection to their retention . As they are already in place, 
there are no heritage-related conditions that are appropriate in this instance. 

Retention of windows: replacement of the windows required listed building consent, but 
· not planning permission. In accordance with best practice, an application for retention 
should be determined in the same way and assessed against the same criteria as would 
an application made in advance of the works taking place. Our normal approach to the . 

Page 21



tl. 

replacement of windows is that, provided the windows are not of historic value in 
themselves, their replacement will be permitted in principle. New windows must have 
joinery, glazing, finishes and colour appropriate to their location within a building of special 
architectural and historic interest and be made of appropriate materials. In this case, as 
the windows have already been replaced, it is difficult to say What was there before. 
Nevertheless, the windows it is planned to retain appear to have planted--:-on, "cosmetic" or 
"fake" glazing bars: these are not features we would normally support on any window in a 
listed building. My conclusion is thattheir inclusion in this case is inappropriate and 
introduces an unwelcome, inauthentic and overtly modern element into the glazing, which 
is harmful to significance. I assess the level of harm as less than substantial, but it is not 
outweighed by any identified pubJic benefits of the proposal. 

.Accordingly, the Heritage Team recommends that the application in . its present form .be 
refused as it does not meet the requirements of NPPF 131, 132 and 134 or not. It also fails 
to meet the requirements of saved LP policies H_!31 and HB3. 

Name: William Wall 
Position: Enabling Offic~r - Heritage 

Page 22



13 . 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE - 02 ~COmttf 2015 

AGENDA ITEM NO 
APPLICATION NO 
PROPOSAL 

SITE LOCATION 
SITE AREA (Ha) 
APPLICANT 
RECEIVED 
EXPIRY DATE 

2. . 
3349/15 
Change of use of existing public house to residential dwelling 
including removal of part of existing car park, revised application 
following refusal of application 1799/15 

· The Cross Keys Inn, Main Road, Henley, IP6 OQP 
0.43 
Mr Hammond 
September 16, 2015 
December 4, 2015 

REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The application is referred to committee for the following reason: 

(1) The Head of Economy considers the application to be of a controversial nature 
having regard to the planning reasoning expressed by the Parish Council , the extent 
and planning substance of comments received from third parties, the location, scale 
and nature of the application and its recent planning history. 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. The application was previously refused planning permission contrary on 16th . 

July 2015 following committee on 15th July 2015. Since the previous refusal the 
applicant has undertaken further marketing of the site. No detailed 
pre-application advice has been sought since the previous application. 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

2. The Cross Keys public house is located on the south.:.eastern side of a rural 

HISTORY 

. crossroads approximately 1 kilometre north of the village of Henley. 

There is a car park to the south of the building , and a dwelling a short distance 
beyond that. Diagonally opposite the public house is ·a farmhouse and 
associated buildings; otherwise the site lies in generally open countryside. 

3. The planning history relevant to the application site is: 

Page 23



1799/15 

3579/14 

3626/13 

1103/07 

473/75 

14-. 

Change o( use of existing public house to . Refused 16/07/2015 
residential dwelling including removal of part 
of existing car park · 
Change of use of existing public house to Withdrawn 22/01/2015 
residential dwelling including removal of part 
of existing car park 
Demolition of outbuilding and extension of Refused 27/05/2014 
car park. Alteration works to existing public 
house and erection of new dwelling for use 
in conjunction with the public house. 
Erection of a single 3-bedrooni dwelling with Withdrawn 08/06/2007 
associated parking on part of the existing car 
park 
Retention of 75' high experimental radio 18/08/1975 
mast and timber hunt until 30 June 1976. 

PROPOSAL 

4. It is proposed to change the use of an existing public house and restaurant (Use 
Class A3/A4) to a single residential dwelling (Use Class C3). 

POLICY 

5. Planning Policy Guidance 

See Appendix below. 

CONSULTATIONS 

6. Henley Parish Council 
'The parish c.ouncil decided unanimously to oppose the application on the 
following grounds: 

The Parish Council does not accept ·the argument that the Cross Keys pub 
business was failing and required closure; does not believe that the terms on 
which the pub is being offered for sale (an asking price of £295,000 plus 50% of 
any uplift in value over 20 years if change of use is allowed) are fair and 
reasonable; is aware of very considerable support in the Henley area for the 
continuing existing of the Cross Keys as a pub.' 

MSDC Communities 
No comment at time of writing although an application for the site to be listed as 
an Asset of Community Value has been received and is being processed .. An 
update will be made available at the meeting. 

Suffolk County Council - Highways 
No objection subject to conditions 

MSDC - Heritage 

Page 24



15. 

'The change of use will have negligible impact on the buildings historic interest. 
Alterations proposed have no material impact on the buildings external 
character.' 

Historic England 
No objection 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. · This is a summary of the representations received. 

8 letters of objection and a petition with 1 06 respondents from a variety of 
properties within the Ipswich area have been received. The material 
considerations raised in these are summarised as: · 

• Infrequent opening hours and overpriced food quality 
• Advertised selling price too high 
• Central point for the Henley community for generations 
• Too many village pubs being closed down 
• Popular local pub that serves the community 
• It is the last bastion of amenity in the village of Henley 
• Current use not promoted enough 
• Investment requir~d but the pub has potential 
• Loss of a community asset 

4 letters. of support have been received. The material considerations raised in 
these are summarised as: 

• Notenoughlocalsupport 
• The pub was not used enough to make the business viable 
• Location is too isolated to be a successful business · 
• Change of use preferable to being left vacant 

ASSESSMENT 

8. The conversion of the public house to a dwelling would result in the provision of 
a new dwelling in the countryside and the loss of a local faCility. The proposed 
conversion does not incl.ude any structural changes to the building so the · 
consideration of the application is based on the use of the property and 
associated land only. · 

The application is considered in relation to the following key issues: 

• ·summary of policy position 
• Principle of development 
• · Loss of local facility 
• Provision of new dwelling 
• Highway an~ Access Issues 

Summary of policy position · 
The Local Plan 1998 (Saved Policies) 

Page 25



16. 

The application site lies approx. 1 km north of the village of Henley. As such , it is 
located in the countryside. There are no policies within the Local Plan that 
specifically relate to the conversion of public houses to dwellings. However, 
Policy E6 - Retention of individual industrial and commercial sites seeks to 
protect existing employment generating uses (eg . A4) unless there is significant 
public benefit of its conversion to non-employment gener~ting uses (eg . C3), 

. . 

Gore Strategy (2008) and Core Strategy Focussed Review (2012) 
Core Strategy Policy CS2 sets out categories of development that may be 
acceptable in the rural area, dependent on any proposals being in accordance 
with other Core Strategy Policies. This includes the possible conversion of rural 
buildings, the reuse and adaptation of buildings for appropriate purposes, 
community services and facilities to meet a proven local need and employment 
generating proposals. · 

Policy CSS provides that ''All development will maintain and enhance the 
environment, including the historic environment, and retain the local 
distinctiveness of the area". 

The Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) was adopted by Full Council on 20 
December 2012 and should be read as a supplement to Mid Suffolk's adopted 
Core Strategy (2008). This document updates some of the policies of the 2008 
Core Strategy. The document does introduce new policy considerations, 
including Policy FC 1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development that 
refers to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) objectives and Policy 
FC 1.1 - Mid Suffolk c;ipproach to delivering Sustainable Development that 
provides "development proposals will be required to demonstrate the principles 
of sustainable development and will be assessed against the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development as interpreted and applied locally to the Mid 
Suffolk context through the policies and proposals of the Mid Suffolk new style 
Local Plan. Proposals for development must conserve and enhance the local 
character of the different parts of the district. They should demonstrate how the 
proposal addresses the context and key issues of the district and contributes to 
meeting the objectives and the policies of the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy and 
other relevant documents. " 

NPPF _ 
The Council acknowledges that it Is unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land, as required by paragraph 47 of the· Framework. 
Accordingly, in accordance with paragraph 49 of the Framework, the proposal 
should be considered in the qontext of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. For the purposes of decision taking , that means granting planning 
permission unless the adverse effects of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of the 
Framework, taken as a whole. 

The NPPF also states in Section 3 'Supporting a prosperous rural.economy', 
Paragraph 28 that 

To promote a strong rural economy, local andneighbourhood plans 
should: 

• Promote the retention and development of local services and 
community facilities in villages, such as shops, meeting places, 

Page 26



sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places .of 
worship.' 

Whilst there is the presumption in favour of sustainable development and a lack 
of a 5 year land supply, the minimal gain to the housing provision should be 
weighed carefully against the potential loss of a community asset. 

SPD 
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Retet:~tion of Shops, Post Offices and 
Public Houses in Villages (Adopted February 2004) sets out the Council 's 
position with specific regard to the conversion of pubs to dwellings. This states 

·that there will be ' ... support for the retention of facilities , where they can be 
shown to be viable ... '. Paragraph 5.4 of SPD goes on to state: 

'The change of use of a village public house to an alternative use will not be 
permitted unless: 

• At least one other public house exists within the settlement boundary or 
within easy walking distance to it; and 

· • It can be demonstrated by the applicant that all reasonable efforts have 
been made to sell or let (without restrictive covenant) the property as a 
public house, and that it is not economically viable; and 

• There is no evidence of significant support from the community for. the 
retention of the public house · 

If permission is granted for change of use, preference will be given to the 
premises remaining in some form of community or employment use; as long as 
there are no significant traffic, amenity, environmental or conservation problems 
as a result. 
. . 

The council will require applicants to provide information on the following matters 
to enable full evaluation of their proposals' 

In relation to the first point from the SPD set out above, the submitted Design 
and Access states that Henley Village Hall is within the settlement boundary and 
provides a good range of services, including alcohol sales. Easy walking 
distance is defined in the SPD as being 200-300m from the settlement 
boundary. For reference, the application site is approx. 700m from the 
settlement boundary. There is not a footpath or street lighting and the highway 
has an unrestricted speed limit. 

Whilst the last dedicate.d public house in the immediate vicinity of Henley, the 
Village Hall is licenced for alcohol sales and is within the settlement boundary, 
unlike the pub subject of this application. 

In respect of the second criteri.a it should also be noted that there is no definition 
of "reasonable" and so assessment of the extent of efforts made to sell or let the 
property is highly subjective. However, the adopted planning guidance provides 
further details within the document detailed below:- · 

- The property is required to have been advertised for sale for a minimum of 12 
months. Information should include selling agent's literature. valuations and 
offers- that have been received on the property. 

Page 27



'~· 
Information has been provided setting out the marketing that has been 
undertaken, commencing in October 2014 until present. An update provided on 
4th November stating that there have been no new offers received. . 

- Information on the annual accounts/turn over of the premises .for the most 
recent trading year should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. These 
should take the form as if submitted to HM Inland Revenue and not ;ust a single 
line 'the losses were ... £***' 

The profit and loss accounts for the period that the public house was in 
operation have been submitted. This covers the period of November 2013 to 
August 2014. No further details are available. 

- Evidence needs to be submitted on the opening hours of the premises, and 
attempts at diversification to sell/provide a wider product range/let rooms. 

No details of the opening hours of the pub have been provided. However, third 
party representation makes reference to sporadic opening hours. Planning 
Officers have discussed alternative uses at the site. The submitted design and 
access statement provides an assessment of these alternatives. Further detail is 
provided .below.· · 

- Whether an application for financial assistance by an application to the Local 
Authority for rate relief has been made. 

This is unknown, however reviewing this Council's criteria for rate relief it is 
unlikely that this business would qualify or at least it would be for a short 
temporary period only. · 

- Whether an application to the Local Authority to accommodate multiple use of 
the premises has been made. 

An application was submitted and subsequently refused for the erection of a 
single dwelling in the rear garden of the site. It was proposed that this would . 
allow additional accommodation for staff and support the ongoing viability of the 
business. No other applications for alternative uses have been submitted. 

Finally there is the third criterion that refers to support and the community. It 
states:-

• There is no evidence of significant support from the community for the 
retention of the public house 

A problem with this criterion is the failure to define "community" and so again 
this is a subjective term. For example how many letters represent a community? 
Is approximately 8 letters, a petition with more than 1 00 respondents from a 

range of properties in the wider lpswic;:h area and a parish council objection 
enough to represent a community given the size of the village/parish? Should 
you consider the comments from the wider area or just local customers that 
could be expected to use the public house? 

· The policy guidance provides some further detail on this point to help judge this 
criteria as reproduced below:- · 

There must be a significant expression of public support and evidence 

Page 28



lCf. 

illustrated, this should include: . . . . 
. - Considerable support in the form of letters expressing local concern is 
strong evidence of support; · 
- The expressed concern of the Parish Council, which should be based 
on consultation with 'the public to be valid. 

Third party representation has been received, as summarised above, including a 
petition with 106 respondents from a range of properties in the parish of Henley 
and Ipswich area objecting to the proposed conversion. 

The pub has been registered as an As~et of Community Value. The inclusion on 
the list of assets is currently undergoing review. No offers were made during the 
moratorium period. The registering of the pub as an ACV is currently being 
reviewed. 

Henley Parish Council voted unanimously to object to the application: 

General Permitted Development Order {2015) 
It should be noted that updated Permitted development rights were issued in 
April 2015. Part 3, Class A of the GPDO sets out criteria where the conversion 
of a public house (A4) to a shop (A 1) or financial and professional services (A2) 
could be acceptable. 

A change of use under this regulation is dependent upon the site not being 
subject of an application to be registered as an asset of community value or 
having already been listed as being an asset of community value. 

• Principle of development 
Taking the above policies into account, the principle of the proposed conversion 
would be acceptable only if the applicant can reasonably demonstrate that the 
existing business is not viable, reasonable efforts have been made to sell the 
pub in its current form, alternatives are available and there is no significant local 
support for the current use. · 

• Alternative facilities 
There are no other pub/restaurants within the village of Henley. However, it is 
noted that Henley Village Hall is located within the settlement boundary and 
provides a range of facilities for the local community, inCluding licensed alcohol 
sales, albeit based on limited opening times and run by volunteers. 

There are alternative pubs and restaurants within a relatively short driving 
distance from Henley including The Swan at Westerfield , The Fountain at 
Tuddenham and The Sorrell. Horse at Barham, for example. 

Although this is the last pub in the immediate vicinity of Henley, the site is not 
within a reasonable walking distance of the village as there is not a footpath to 
the site, no street lighting and there are a variety of other pubs within short 
driving distance of the site. Users inevitably rely upon the private car. 

The pub outside is outside of the settlement boundary. There are a range of 
other pubs and restaurants in driving distance of Henley. Henley Village Hall 
provid~s an alternative within the settlement boundary itself, albeit on a limited 
basis. Based on this it is considered that the Cross Keys is not the only 
reasonable alternative for drinking, dining and community social events in the 

Page 29



20. 

vicinity of Henley. 

• Marketing of existing business 
The applicant's submission sets out the marketing undertaken in an attempt to 
sell the pub with its current use, albeit with an overage relating to an·y potential 
residential development within the site. 

Marketing commenced based on a sales price of £350,000 in October 2014 with 
advertisement via Fleurets Leisure Property Specialist. Marketing included an 
advertisement on the estate agents website, in regional and national media, the 
local press and regular advertisement in trade publications. 

Whilst interest was noted, there were no viewings of the property. However, two 
offers circa £230,000 were received last year but were discounted by the 
applicant as they were significantly below the asking price. 

The asking price of the property was subsequently reduced from £350,000 to 
£295,000 in February 2015 following concerns raised by the Planning Officer 
that the asking price as set out in the previous application ref. 3579/14 appeared 
high. Further marketing was undertaken base.d on the reduced price of £295,000 
from February 2015 to present. No new offers were reported. 

· Valuation of the pub has been provided from local estate agents to substantiate 
the asking price of £295,000. For information, the pub was purchased by the 
applicant in September 2013 for £190,000 and was subsequently refurbished 
with a stated investment of £73,657. 

In relation to the points set out in the SPD, the applicant has provided 
information for the marketing of the property since October 2014, 13 months 
before this application is considered by Committee. 

• Viability of established use 
Information submitted demonstrates the significant investment made in the initial 

·start-up of the pub in new equipment. This can be taken as a demonstration of 
the intention of the owner to operate the business under its established use. 

Due to the limited period in which the pub was in operation under the current 
owner, the accounts available are limited to the period of November 2013 to 
August 2014. The submitted Design and Access Statement states that the 
business is not financially viable with net profits for the period of 2oth November · · 

2013 to 31st August 2014 being below forecasts . 

Diversification of the business to support the existing use has been discussed 
with the applicant prior to the application to convert the pub to a dwelling. 
Previous submissions included the erection of a new dwelling in the rear garden 
of the site to allow additional staff accommodation. An application for this was 
refused at committee under application reference 3626/14. 

Alternative uses of holiday accommodation and extension of the existing building 
werediscus_sed with the applicant prior to submission of this application. The 
applicant has given consideration to these options but discounted them as set 
out in the submitted Design and Access Statement. The reasons for discounting 
are based on the financial investment required to establish holiday 
accommodation. Extension of the existing building is not considered practical 

Page 30



21. 

.-. . 

due to the -layout of the existing building and site boundaries. 
• Community Support 

. 8 letters of representation and a petition with over 100 signatures have been 
received objecting to the application. 4 letters of support have been received. 

The listing as an Asset of Community Value is currently being reviewed. An 
update is not available at the time of writing . However, members shall be 
updated as soon as possible. 

The SPD states that 'considerable support in the form of, letters expressing local 
concern is strong evidence of support'. 

The extent of community support is inevitably difficult to objectively gauge but 
over 100 letters is considered to be a significant level of interest in this 

· application . This should be taken into account and the ACV is capable of being 
considered as a material consideration. This does not correlate with the 
evidence put forward by the applicant that the business is not viable. It is 
acknowledged that an offer of £230,000 was made to purchase the pub·with its 
current use excluding the overage clause in early 2015 but no further offers 
have been made since the asking price was reduced to £295,000. 

• Provision of a new dwelling · 
The proposed conversion would re-use an existing building in the countryside. 
The provision of one new dwelling in the rural area would be of marginal benefit 
to the Council's provision of a five year land supply. The sustain ability of the 
proposed use as a dwelling is consi.dered in relation to the existing use as a pub. 
Neith.er the existing or proposed use benefits from a footpath link to the nearest 
settlement. 

Taking the above points into account it is considered that the proposed use as a 
dwelling is likely to be less dependent upon the private motor vehicle than the 
use of the site as a pub. Whilst policy would usually restrict a new dwelling in the 
countryside, the proposed change of use is unlikely to result in any significant 
change in the character and appearance of the area. 

On that basis, it is considered that the change of use to a dwelling would have a 
net gain in the sustainable use of the site whilst providing a marginal benefit to 
the Council 's five year land supply. 

• Design and Layout 
The application seeks permission for the change of use of the. building only. No 
structural changes are proposed as part of this application and, therefore, there 
are no changes to the design and layout of the site. 

• Highway and Access lss.ues 
There are no objections from a highways safety perspective based· on the use of 
the existing access. 

• Consultee and Representatives Comment 
No objections to the proposed change of use have been received from statutory 
consultees. Third party representation is summariseq above and available within 

·the committee agenda. 

• CONCLUSION 

Page 31



22. 

The proposed development would result in the loss of the last public house 
within the vicinity of Henley. However, the public house has been shown to have 
had limited financial success under current management. The property has been 
marketed for the required period as set out in the relevant SPD. The pub was 
relatively recently purchased by the applicant and underwent a marketing 
campaign as part of the previous sale. It is considered that the marketing 
undertaken prior to this application is reasonable. 

Significant numbers of representations have been received IN objection to the 
loss of the pub: However, this has not been substantiated by sales or offers to 
purchase the pub with its established use. The rural location and poor linkage to 
the nearest settlement is likely to have had a bearing on the attractiveness of the 
building for business investment. · 

The .provision of community facilities are of significant importance in the 
consideration of applications in relation to the NPPF and with particular 
reference to the SPD. 

The site that is subject of this application is not well liriked to an existing 
settlement and has undergone ample marketing without investment based on its 
current use. Although not a traditional pub, there are services provided within the 
village through the Village Hall and there are a wide range of alternative facilities 
within a short drive of Henley. 

Taking the location and marketing into account and the provision of one new 
dwelling , it is considered that, in this instance, the conversion of the pub to a 
single dwelling is acceptable. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Full Planning Permission be granted subject to the following conditions·: 

1. 3 year time limit 
2. Compliance with submitted plans 
3. · Details of boundary treatment 
4. Highways condition - no means of enclosure over O.Gm in height 

Philip Isbell Mark Pickrell 
Corporate Manager - Development Management .· Senior Planning Officer 

APPENDIX A - PLANNING POLICIES 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review 

Cor1 - CS 1 Settlement Hierarchy 
Cor2 - CS2 Development in the Countryside & Countryside Villages 
Cor5 - CS5 Mid Suffolks Environment 
CSFR-FC1 - PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 -MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 

Page 32



2~ . 

DEVELOPMENT 
Cor6 - CS6 Services and Infrastructure 

2. Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

EG .- RETENTION OF INDIVIDUAL INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL SITES 
GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
HB13 -PROTECTING ANCIENT MONUMENTS 
H9 - CONVERSION OF RURAL -BUILDINGS TO DWELLINGS 
H7 -RESTRICTING HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
H13 -DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
T10 - HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS IN DEVELOPMENT 

3. Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

SPGP .- PUBLIC HOUSES 
NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 

APPENDIX 8- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

Letter(s) of representation(s) have been received from a total of 13 interested party(ies) . 
- -

The following people objected to the application 
 

 
   

 

 

The following people supported the application: 

 
 

 

The following people commented on the application: 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Title: Site Location Plan 
Reference: 3349/15 

24. 

Site: The Cross Keys Inn, Main Road, Henley, IP6 OQP 

MID SUFFOLK-DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131, High Street, Needham Market, IP6 8DL 
Telephone : 01449 724500 
email : customerservice@csduk.com 
W'NW.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

SCALE 1 : 1250 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
© Crown copyright and database right 2015 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 100017810 

Date Printed : 16/11 

Page 35



1 

~ 

J 

--------

-----

I 
I 
I 

\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 
I 
I 
I 

\ 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 
I 
I 

\ 

____ .,.,. ... ....-""/ 

I 

\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

/ 

I 

+ 

E 
N 
,..; 
10 

IXl 
...J 

25. 

0 
0 
C\1 

c 
ro 
a.. 
2 
Cl.i 
"'0 
Q) 
en 
0 a. e 
a.. 

---

J 
1 2 

. ~ 

~ -

o~ • e ,. r o 

Page 36



I ' t ~. ;}!Lt;-f'l•1ff N4' '1l'I!,.I$):-<GI'I'J 4 ll" ..... , • . ' 

EB8l 

Front elevation rear elevation 

side elevation side elevation shed Front elevation shed rear elevation 

·- ~·--- - -- ... - ---...·----· ,, ....., -~··•v....._,. •• • ~. ""•"lo,,..,.....__..., I._ ., _,. 

[--~- ·· -- -1 

·: 5] 
· 1 Ground Floor First Floor ,_ 

.. ............ -~ . •. ._. .fo.- .. ·~-.r~..t.:-Lo..Jr··~ ~r...J.:....___•~:Ji'f.:~r--, · .... . ... ,., 

shed side elevation 

3349/IS 

~ ~-.:.:=: -=--==::=... 

Planning Control 
Received 

-lOCT IOIS -~ : ,;· 11\.1' . 

shed side elevation 

peter wells architect -· ""'' -IP121 
01»41U0l31 0171177)1 --

:::::;:=-..... -_ ... ___ .. ... _ ... . 
~.::.~:::r~::.=--=-:=.- .. ... :-.=--

\ ,..,.: . . r. · ·Ill 

~ 

P
age 37



Consultee Comments for application 3349/15 

Application Summary 

Application Number: 3349/15 

Address: The Cross Keys Inn, Main Road, Henley, IP6 OQP 

Proposal: Change of use of existing public house to residential dwelling including removal of part 

of existing car park, revised application following refusal of application 1799/15 

Case Officer: Mark Pickrell 

Consultee Details 

Name: Mr Rod Caird 

Address: 26 Church Lane, Henley, Ipswich IP6 ORO 

Email : rodcaird@yahoo.co.uk 

On Behalf Of: Henley Parish Clerk 

Comments 

This planning application was considered at a meeting of Henley Parish Council on October 27, 

2015. 

The Parish Council decided unanimously to oppose the application on the following grounds: 

The Parish Council does not accept the argument that the Cross Keys pub business was failing 

and required closure; does not believe that the terms on which the pub is being offered for sale (an 

asking price of £295,000 plus 50% of any uplift in value over 20 years if change of use is allowed) 

are fair or reasonable; is aware of very considerable support in the Henley area for the continuing 

existence of the Cross Keys as a pub. 

Page 38



28. 
Your Ref: MS/3349/15 
Our Ref: 570\CON\3177\15 
Date: 
Highways Enquiries to: kyle.porter@suffolk.gov.uk 

All planning enquiries should be sent to the Local Planning Authority. 
Email : planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk 

The Planning Officer 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
Council Offices 
131 High Street 
Ipswich 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

For the Attention of: Mark Pickrell 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990- CONSULTATION RETURN MS/3349/15 

PROPOSAL: 

LOCATION: 

Change of use of existing public house to residential dwelling including 

removal of part of existing car park, revised application following refusal of 

application 1799/15 

The Cross Keys Inn, Main Road, Henley 

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Highway Authority recommends that any permission 
which that Planning Authority may give should include the conditions shown below: 

1 V6 
Condition: Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) 
no means of frontage enclosure shall exceed 0.6 metres in height above the level of the carriageway of 
the adjacent highway. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in order to maintain intervisibility between highway users. 

2 NOTE 02 
Note 2: It is an OFFENCE to carry out works within the public highway, which includes a Public Right of 
Way, without the permission of the Highway Authority. 
Any conditions which involve work within the limits of the public highway do not give the applicant 
permission to carry them out. Unless otherwise agreed in writing all works within the public highway shall 
be carried out by the County Council or its agents at the applicant's expense. 
The County Council's Central Area Manager must be contacted on Telephone: 01473 341414. Further 
information go to: www.suffolk.gov.uklenvironment-and-transport/highways/dropped-kerbs-vehicular
accesses/ 
A fee is payable to the Highway Authority for the assessment and inspection of both new vehicular 
crossing access works and improvements deemed necessary to existing vehicular crossings due to · 
proposed development. 

Yours sincerely, 

Mr Kyle Porter 
Development Management Technician 
Strategic Development- Resource Management 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 39



lCI. 

Consultation Response Pro forma 

1 Application Number 

2 Date of Response 

3 Responding Officer 

4 Summary and 
Recommendation 
(please delete those N/A) 

Note: This section must be 
completed before the 
response is sent. The 
recommendation should be 
based on the information 
submitted with the 
application. 

5 Discussion 
Please outline the 
reasons/rationale behind 
how you have formed the 
recommendation . 
Please refer to any 
guidance, policy or material 
considerations that have 
informed your 
recommendation. 

6 Amendments, 
Clarification or Additional 
Information Required 
(if holding objection) 

If concerns are raised , can 
they be overcome with 
changes? Please ensure 
any requests are 
proportionate 

3349/15 
Cross Keys Inn, Henley 
21.10.15 

Name: Paul Harrison 
Job Title: EnablinQ Officer 
RespondinQ on behalf of.. . HeritaQe 
1. The Heritage Team considers that the proposal would 

cause 
• no harm to any heritage asset because the 

building 's modest contribution to the character of 
the area is not affected by the alterations 
proposed. 

2. The Heritage Team recommends approval. 

I see no reason to vary from my comment on previous 
applications: 

From old OS maps it appears that the existing building 
was erected between 1904 and 1926, possibly as a 
purpose-built roadside inn. Its architectural character 
relates it to roadside inns which were built in the inter-war 
period in rural areas to cater for newly mobile urban 
populations. As such the building , although not meeting 
the strict criteria for listing, makes a modest contribution 
to the character of its rural surroundings. 

The change of use will have negligible impact on the 
building 's historic interest. Alterations proposed have no 
material impact on the building 's external character. 

Please note that this form can be submitted electronically on the Councils website . Comments submitted on the website will not 
be acknowledged but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under the 
application reference number. Please note that the completed form will be posted on the Councils website and available to view 
by the public. 

Page 40



-··-· ---·--------------

~. sese 
@l!J!J Historic England 
VWWJ 

EAST OF ENGLAND OFFICE 

Mr Mark Pickrell Direct Dial: 01223 582724 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street Our ref: P00481681 
Needham Market 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

Dear Mr Pickrell 

Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 2015 & 
T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

THE CROSS KEYS INN, MAIN ROAD, HENLEY, IP6 OQP 
Application No 3349/15 

Thank you for your letter of 12 October 2015 notifying Historic England of the 
application for listed building consent/planning permission relating to the above site. 
On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that it is necessary for 
this application to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory 
provisions, details of which are enclosed. 

If you consider that this application does fall within one of the relevant categories, or if 
there are other reasons for seeking the advice of Historic England, we would be 
grateful if you could explain your request. Please do not hesitate to telephone me if 
you would like to discuss this application or the notification procedures in general. 

We will retain the application for four weeks from the date of this letter. Thereafter we 
will dispose of the papers if we do not hear from you. 

Yours sincerely 

~ 
Janine Dykes 
Assistant Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas 
E-mail: janine.dykes@HistoricEngland .org.uk 

MlD SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
PLANNING CONTROL 

RECEIVED 

1 9 OCT 2015 
ACKNOWLEDGED ................... . 
D~E ' 
PASS ro··········••••••••••••••••••••••· 

......... ························ 

Enclosure: List of applications requiring consultation with and notification to Historic 
England · 

24 BROOKLANDS AVENUE, CAMBRIDGE, CB2 SBU 

Telephone 01223 582749 
HistoricEngland.org.uk 

Jtstonewall 
DIViRSIIY CHAI.IPIO~ 

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act. 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All 
information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA 

or EIR applies. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE -. 02 December 2015 

AGENDA ITEM NO 3. 
APPLICATION NO . 3208/15 
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing A1/ Sui Generis units. Erection of 3 and tour 

storey C3 residential unit to provide 14 apartments which comprise of 
4no. 2 bed flats, 6no. 1 bed flats and 4no. 1 bed maisonettes (revised 
scheme to 2867/14) 

SITE LOCATION 
SITE AREA (Ha) 
APPLICANT 
RECEIVED 
EXPIRY DATE 

Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, IP14 1 EZ 
0.07 
Mr Haydon 
September 2, 2015 
December 3, 2015 

. REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The application is referred to committee for the following reason: 

(1) the Head of Economy considers the application to be of a controversial nature 
having regard to the planning· reasoning expressed by the Parish Council and the 
location, scale and I or nature of the application. 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. Pre-application advice was sought prior to submission of a previous application . 
An application was subsequently submitted seeking permission for 13 flats 
utilising access from the south of the site. This was withdrawn prior to 
determination due to ownership ·issues with the access. Further pre-application 
advice was undertaken with SCC Highways based on the utilisation of the 
existing access to the site directly from Milton Way. 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

2. The application is located on the corner of Milton Road South and Gipping Way. 
An access road to Morrisons runs to the south-west of the site with the 
associated public car park abutting the south-eastern of the site. 

Existing buildings on the site include Mulberry House which is a part two storey 
building with dual pitched roof and part single storey with mono-pitch roof. The 
building is constructed from red brick and clay pantile. The existing building is in 
retail use currently occupied by Events. . 

The remainder of the site is currently a vacant former car sales site with 
hardstanding. Boundary treatment includes low fencing on and gated access 
directly from Milton Road South on the north:-western boundary and part low 
fencing and part 1.8m hit and miss fencing on the north-eastern boundary 

Page 43



HISTORY 

32. 

abutting Gipping Way. 

The car sale site has been vacant for a number. of years and the boundary and 
hardstanding have become overgrown with bushes. 

The site is ap_prox. ?Om north-east of the town centre . 

Neighbouring properties to the south of the site include Sheringham Court which 
is a mix offlats between two and three storeys in height. To the west of the site 
is Milton House which is a detached grade II listed building set within garden 
land. To the south-west is a Morrisons supermarket and car park. To the north is 
currently vacant site which was formerly industrial buildings which have since 
been demolished. To the north west is a site which is currently undergoing 
redevelopment for the provision of a retail _ unit and builders merchants. 

The ground level of the site slopes down to the north, towards the nearby River 
Gipping . The ground level rises towards the south and the town centre. The 
neighbouring car park is set on a level with the superstore, resulting in retain ing 
walls abutting the site with a higher ground level at the north-eastern corner of 
the site. · 

3. The planning history relevant to the application site is: 

2867/14 Demolition of existing A1/Sui Generis units. Withdrawn 22/12/2014 
Erection of three and four storey C3 residential unit 
to provide 9 number 1 bedroom apartments and 4 
number 2 bedroom apartments. 

PROPOSAL 

4. It is proposed to d_eniolish the existing buildings on the site and erect a three 
and four storey residential development providing 14 apartments which 
comprise of 4rio. 2 bed flats, 6no. 1 bed flats and 4no. 1 bed maisonettes. 

POLICY 

The proposed development is of modern design with external elevations to 
include a mix of traditional red brick walls with blue/grey ceramic tile detail , 
through colour render, zinc panels and vertical timber cladding. 

5. Planning Policy Guidance 

See Appendix below. 

CONSULTATIONS 

6. Stowmarket Parish Clerk 

Page 44



a~. 

'That the Town Council recommends refusal of the application on the following 
grounds: · 

i) That, ·contrary to planning policy H 13; the proposed development will not 
have satisfactory access to · the adjacent · highway. The proposed 
access/egress will have a detrimental impact upon roads in the immediate 
vicinity of the proposed development including Milton Road South and Gipping 
Way. The Town Council is of the opinion that these roads are already highly 
congested , especially in the mornings and early evenings and the proposed 
·development will further impact upon this situation; and 

ii) That the proposed development will fail to meet the following standards· of 
planning policy T1 0: 

a) the provision of safe access to and egress from the site; 
b) the suitability of existing roads giving access to the development, in 

terms of the safe and free flow of traffic and pedestrian safety; 
c) whether the amount and type of traffic generated by the proposal will 

be acceptable in relation to the capacity of the road network in the 
· locality of the site; and 

d) the provision of adequate space for the parking .. .. of cars. 

The Town Council also wishes to express disappointment of the loss of the 
existing A 1/Sui Generis units.' 

Suffolk County Council - Highways . 
'Although there have previously been concern for the conversion of this site to 
residential use, this site is extremely well located to take advantage of nearby 
shopping, amenities and sustainable transport options which are located close 
to this site and this helps to mitigate the potential highway concerns. Although 
the existing access is proposed to be retained, the access road to Morrison's 
site is adjacent to the existing vehicular access and therefore it is likely that .a 
minor intensification of this access would cause minimal impact compared to 
the vehicles that use the access r~ad to the supermarket.' 

No objections subject to conditions. 

SCC -Corporate 5106 
Extract: 

Service Requirement 

Education - Primary 
Education
Secondary 
Education - Sixth 
Form 
Pre-School Provision 
Transport 
Rights of Way 
Libraries 
Waste 
Total 

Contribution per 
dwelling 
£937 
£0 

£0 

£0 
£-
"£
£216 
£51 
£1,204 

MSDC Economic Strategy 

Capital Contribution 

£12,181 
£0 

£0 

£0 
£-
£
£3,024 
£714 
£15,919 

Page 45



.3"-. 

No objection in principle comments of the Town Council regarding traffic 
issues is reiterated . 

Suffolk County Council -Archaeological Service 
No objection and no recommended conditions 

MSDC ;..; Environmental Health - Land Contamination 
No objections subject to condition 

MOD Safeguarding 
No objections 

Fire Service Hq - County Fire Officer 
No objections 

Historic England 
No comment 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. This is a summary of the representations received. 

1 letter of objections has been received based on the following issues: 
• Inadequate ·parking provision 
• · Highway safety issues due to proximity to junction with Gip.ping Way 

ASSESSMENT 

8. The proposed development is considered in relation to the following key points: 
• Principle of development 
• Design and layout 

. • Highways and access 
• 1 06 contributions 

• Principle of development 
The Local Plan 1998 (Saved Policies) 
The proposed development lies within the settlement boundary of Stowmarket. 

Policy SB1 of the Local Plan states that new development will take place within 
existing settlements unless provided for by other poliCies contained in the plan . 

Policy H2 states that within towns the scale of housing development will be 
consistent with protecting the character of the settlement and landscape setting 
of the town. 

Policy E6 provides that the district planning authority recognises the importance 
of existing industrial and commercial sites as providing local employment 
opportunities. in considering applications for change of use the district planning 
authority will expect a significant benefit for the surrounding environment, 
particularly in terms of improved residential amenity or traffic safety. The current 
site has the use as a vacant sui generis car sale plot and trading retail unit. 

Page 46



3$. 

The Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2008 . 
Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy states that the majority of new development wilr 
be directed to towns and key service centres. 

Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy states ti:Jat the council will seek to protect and 
conserve landscape qualities. CS5 also states that any new development will be 
of a high quality design that respects the local distinctiveness of the district and 
create visual interest in the street scene. 

Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy states that new development will provide or 
support the delivery of appropriate and accessible infrastructure. 

Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy states that 50% of new development will be on 
brownfield land. 

The Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) 2012 
The Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) Policy FC 1 sets out the council 's 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. This is qualified by 
supporting text that states that the Council will grant permission unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise - taking into account whether any adverse 
impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the poliCies in the National Planning Policy 
Framework as a whole; orspecific policies in that Framework indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

Policy FC 1.1 sets out Mid Suffolk's approach to deliverin-g Sustainable 
Development and states that "development proposals will be required to 
demonstrate the principles of sustainable development and will be assessed 
against the presumption in favour of sustainable development as interpreted and 
applied locally to the Mid Suffolk context through the policies and proposals of 
the Mid Suffolk new style Local Plan. Proposals for development must conserve 
and enhance the local character of the different parts of the district. They should 
demonstrate how the proposal addresses the context and key issues of the 
district and contributes to meeting the objectives and the policies of the Mid 
Suffolk Core Strategy and other relevant documents." 

Stowmarket Area Action Plan 
SAAP. Policy 4.1 -Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
reinforces Core Strategy Focussed Review FC 1 and FC 1.1 . This provides that 
the Council will take a positive approach in accordance with the NPPF and 
always work with applicants to secure development that improves the economic, 
social and environmental conditions in the area. 

SAAP Policy 4.2 - Providing a Landscape Setting for Stowmarket provides that, 
where appropriate, the Council seek to enhance the landscape setting of 
Stowmarket with particular regard to development that may impact on views in, 
out and across Stowmarket. In this instance, the site would be relatively 
prominent to views from Gipping Way and provide a potential feature in the 
street scape of the town centre in views from the north. 

NPPF 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) provides that the NPPF "does 
not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for 

Page 47



3£,. 

decision making. Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local 
Plan should be approved and proposed development that conflicts should be 
refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise". -

The NPPF also provides (paragraph 187) that "Local planning authorities should 
look for solutions rather than problems, and decision-takers at every/eve/ should 
seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible. Local 
planning authorities should work pro-actively with applicants to secure 
developments that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions 
of the area. " · 

Section 7 of the NPPF refers to design. It provides that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development; it should contribute positively to making 
places better for people. Decisions should aim to ensure that development will 
function well and add to the overall quality of the area, establish a strong sense 
·of place, create attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit, optimise 
the potential of the site to accommodate development, create and sustain an 
appropriate mix of uses and support local facilities and transport networks. 

Furthermore it provides that development should respond to local character and 
history, and reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation. The NPPF goes on to state it 
is "proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiven.ess" (paragraph 60) 
and permission should be "refused for development of poor design that fails to 
take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an 
area and the way it functions" (paragraph 64) . 

NPPF- Supply of Housing 
The NPPF provides that Local Authorities should maintain a five year land 
supply for residential development. Para 49 goes on to provide "Housing 
applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not 
be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 
five-year supply of deliverable housing sites." 

The Council acknowledges that i.t is unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land, as required by paragraph 47 of the Framework. 
Accordingly, in accordance with paragraph 49 of the Framework, the proposal 
should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. For the purposes of decision taking , that means granting planning 
permission unless the adverse effects of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of the 
Framework, taken as a whole. 

This site has the potential to offer a welcome opportunity to add to land supply in 
Stowmarkef in the particular circumstances of this brownfield site, close to the 
town centre of Stowmarket. 

In surnmary, the proposed development is a brownfield site in a sustainable 
location within Stowmarket. The mix of 1 and 2 bedroom dwellings is in demand 
in the town. The development would result in the loss of an employment site, 
albeit in need of investment to achieve its optimal value and a commercial asset. 
Subject to achieving high quality design the principle of residential development 
on the site is accepted. · 

Page 48



I . Sf. 

• Design and layout 
The site is very prominent within Stowmarket, being adjacent to Gipping Way, 
close to the town centre and visible in views when travelling towards the town 
centre from the modern Cedars Park residential development site. Vie:vvs of the 
site from Gipping Way give a relatively poor impression. The site is in a potential 
feature location, located prominently on Gipping W,ay and visible in views across 
the nearby public car park. 

Other development in the area includes Morrisons supermarket and associated 
car park, Sheringham Court which includes two and three storey residential 
development. Permission has recently been granted for a DIY retail unit and 
builders merchants nearby. Permission has also recently been granted for a 
three storey block residential flats on Ipswich Street. On the opposite corner of 
the site is a grade II listed building set within an open garden space. Permission 
has also recently been granted for residential development at land on Prentice 

· Road and three storey development granted on land off Greeting Road, west. A 
historic permission has also been granted for residential development on the 
former industrial land on the opposite side of Gipping Way. 

Given the topography of the site and recent permissions for new developmentin 
the area, the application site has the potential to form a landmark development, 
creating a gateway from the industrial and employment areas along the eastern 
parts of Gipping Way into the town centre and mixed areas of retail and 
residential uses. 

The internal layout, underground parking and provision of communal outdoor 
space Is considered to avoid unacceptable serious impact on residential amenity 
of adjacent property whilst still providing a relatively good level of amenity for 
future occupants. The arrangement of rooms provides reasonable safeguards to 
privacy for residents of Sheringham Court to the south west. 

The scale, layout, massing and detailing of this development is considered to be 
of a high quality that is befitting of its location as a landmark feature along one of 
the main highways into central Stowmarket and would uplift the appearance of 
the area. The design of th.e building is· considered to be befitting of its location. 

• Highways and access 
The exi~ting ·use of the site is for car sales (sui generis). The site has been 
vacant for several years. However, under the existing permitted use a new car 
sales business could operate from the site without planning permission , subject 
to there being no material change in the intensity of use. 

Milton Way is a busy access road , linking between Ipswich Street and the town 
centre with Gipping Way. Milton Way is also used to access Morrisons and the 
PL!blic car park. As such there is frequent queuing from the traffic lights on the 
junction with Gipping Way past the proposed access. However, this is to be 
assessed in relation to the existing permitted use of the site that could allow a 
car sales business to operate without restriction . 

The application proposes 14no. flats with 1 no. parking space per unit and a 
secure cycle storage area. The site is approx. 400m from the railway station and 
1OOm from the town centre with associated pubnc transport links. Visitors to the 
development could reasonably be expected to use the adjacent public car park. 

. . -

Page 49



31. 

Suffolk County Council Highways have assessed the parking provision and 
access and consider that there would not be a significant adverse impact that 
would warrant. refusal of the application. 

Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed development is likely to result in an 
increased impact on the nearby junction with Gipping Way, no objection has 
l:)een raised by SCC Highways. . 

The proposed development would be in a sustainable location and can 
reasonably be expected to benefit from good access to local services and 
facilities without dependency on private· motor vehicles and occupants would 
have good access to public transport. In all the circumstances itis considered 
access and parking arrangements are acceptable. 

• Financial contributions 
The proposed development would provide 14no. 1 and 2 bed units. The site is 
within the settlement boundary of Stowmarket where the threshold for the 
provision of affordable housing is 15 units or more. The proposal is therefore not 
liable'to provide affordable units. However, it should be acknowledged that there 
is demand for smaller 1 and 2 bed units close to the town centre of Stowmarket. 

The application site would be liable to provide contributions towards the 
provision of open space and social infrastructure (OSSI). However, any 
contributions are required to comply with CIL Regulation 122 which restricts the 
pooling of contributions from 5 or more developments. CILL 122 regulations also 
require any contributi.ons to be made for specific projects or needs that would 
arise due to the proposed development. Given the location of the site close to 
the centre of Stowmarket it has not been possible to allocate contributions 
towards any specific projects that have already benefitted from pooled 
contributions. OSSI contributions have therefore not been secured for this 
development. 

SCC Infrastructure contributions are bound by the same CIL 122 regulations. 
Comments provided on behalf of SCC Infrastructure set out sites to which 
contributions would be assigned whilst complying with CIL 122. These would 
total £15,919. It is recommended that these are secured by 106 if permission is 
resolved to be granted. 

• CONCLUSION 
The proposal gives the opportunity to redevelop a brownfield site close to the 
town centre of Stowmarket and improve the appearance of a partly neglected 
site and provide a 'landmark' development that improves the appearance of the 
area and act as a 'gateway' site, marking the entrance to the centre of 
Stowmarket when travelling along Gipping Way. 

The development would replace the vacant car sales plot and replace the 
existing retail unit. Whilst the loss of retail unit is regrettable, it is noted that there 
are vacant units within the shopping frontage of Stowmarket that wouid be better 
related to the town centre. The loss of the sui generis use would result in the 
loss of an employment opportunity but considering that the site has been vacant 
for several years it is considered that the loss of the existing use is acceptable. 

The proposed development would utilise an existing access. Considering the 

Page 50



3CJ. 

existing use of the site and. associated access SCC Highways consider that the 
development would not result in a significant adverse impact on highway and, 
considering the very sustainable location of the site, has shown that suitable 
parking can be provided. 

The design of the building would enhance the character and appearance of the 
area and would be in keeping with the modern character of recently approved 
developments in the vicinity of the site: The development would help meet 
demand for smallerresidential units in a sustainable location and would provide 
a welcome contribution towards the Council's land supply on a brownfield site 
close to the centre of Stowmarket. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That authority be delegated to The Corporate Manager for Development 
Management to grant outline planning permission subject to. the prior 
completi-on of a Section 106 on terms to his satisfaction to secure the 
following head of terms and that such permission be subject to the conditions 
as set out below: 

• Contribution towards the provision of Suffolk County Council 
Infrastructure including the following: 

• Primary education: £12,181 
• Libraries: £3,024 
• Waste:. £714 

Conditions: 

1. 3 year time limit 
2. Compliance with plans 
3. Details of materials to be agreed notwithstanding applicant's drawings 
4. Hard and soft landscaping scheme to be agreed 
5. Hard and soft landscaping scheme to be implemented as agreed 
6. Cycle storage to be provided 
7. Bin store to be provided 
8. Highways - Provision of parking and access 
9. Contamination scheme 

Philip Isbell Mark Pickrell 
Corporate Manager - Development Management Senior Planning Officer 

APPENDIX A - PLANNING POLICIES 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review · 

Page 51



Cor1 - CS1 Settlement Hierarchy 
Cor5 - CS5 Mid Suffolks Environment 
Cor6 - CS6 Services and Infrastructure 
Cor7 - CS7 Brown Field Target 

~. 

Cor8 - CS8 Provision and Distribution of Housing 
Cor9 - CS9 Density and Mix 
CS SAAP - Stowmarket Area Action Plan 
CSFR-FC1 - PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 -MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC2 - PROVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSING 

2. Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

HB8 -SAFEGUARDING THE CHARACTER OF CONSERVATION AREAS 
HB9 -CONTROLLING DEMOLITION IN CONSERVATION AREAS 
HB1 - PROTECTION OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS 
HB13 - PROTECTING ANCIENT MONUMENTS 
GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
H17 -KEEPING RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AWAY FROM POLLUTION 
E6 -RETENTION OF INDIVIDUAL INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL SITES 
H13 -DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
H15 -DEVELOPMENT TO REFLECT LOCAL CHARACTERISTICS 
H2 - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN TOWNS 

· HB8 -SAFEGUARDING THE CHARACTER OF CONSERVATION AREAS 

3. Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 
C01/03 - Safegu_arding aerodromes, technical sites and military explos 

APPENDIX 8- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

Letter(s) of representation(s) have been received from a.total of 1 interested party(ies). 

The following people objected to the application 
, 

The following people supported the application: 

The following people commented on the application: 

Page 52



Title:Site Location Plan 
Reference: 3208/15 

. fl-1. 

Site: Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, IP14 1 EZ 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131, High Street, Needham Market, IP6 8DL 
Telephone : 01449 724500 
email: customerservice@csduk.com 
www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

SCALE 1 : 1250 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
© Crown copyright and database right 2015 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 1000178'10. 

Date Printed : 16/11/2015 

Page 53



<:? Car Park 

~ <;:. 
~ .i¥ ? Y\\ \ ~ / \ / \ ' ' 

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2013. All r1ghts reserved. Ucance number 100020449 

0 50 

Site Location Plan 
l :1250 

00 NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING - USE DIMENSIONS 

lOOM 

Revisions 

FB~ 

The Contractor Is to check and vortty all dlmen'lons on site before sta11ng work and report 
any omlulom or errors. This Clrowlng Is to be reod In coflunctloo with all relevant consultants 
and speelobls drawings. This Orowing Is Copyright A-27/08/15 A-23/ 06/15 'Site block plan added 

This ctow1ng Is Issued for the sole ond excklslve use ol the named recipient. Dlstrtbutlon to 
any ltW'd party Is on the strict understanding that no lloblty Is accepted by rrltarchltecls lor 
any discrepancies. errors or omissions that may be present. and no guaonlee Is offer&d as 
to the accuracy of lnformolion shown. 

~ 

0 50 100M N 

Proposed Site Block and Roof Plan (1) 
l :500 

Drawing Tille 
Site location Plans 
Projecl 
New Dwellings 
Milton Rood 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number• 
14-044-001 A 

Scale 
As Indicated 

Dole 
Sept 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8ongolhl 
buty st edmunds 
suffolk lp33 1 uz 
1: 01284727710 
e: theslvdioOinfinityorchlle<:ts.co.uk 
WW'W.inflnityorchitects.co.uk 

RIBA #\t 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 54



Proposed Site Plan 

DO NOT SCAlE THIS DRAWING· USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check ond verify ol dlmemlons on site before starling work ond report 
any omissions or errors. This drawing Is to be reed In conjunction with ol relevant consultants 
and speclobts drawings. ms Drawing Is Copyright 

This Q'owlng Is Issued for the sole and eJ.Ciuslve use ol fhe named recipient. Oblribulk>n to 
any third party Is on the strict undentoncllng that no lability Is accepted by mltorchltects !Of 
ony discrepancies, errors or omissions that moy be puuent. and no guarantee Is offered os 
to the accuracy of Information 1hown. 

Foul drainage to c onnect to existing 

Surface w ater drainage to c onnect to existing 

Revisions 

A-23/ 06/ 15 Amendments to graphical attributes ot topo. survey 

.,v' 

0 S 10 I S 20M ----~ 
Drawing Title 
Proposed Site Plan 
Projec t 
New Dwellings 
M ilton Roa d 
Slowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14·044·002A 

Scale 
1:200 

Date 
Sept 2015 
Drawn By 
SMA 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8ongelhia 
bl.wystedmunds 
suflolklp331uz 
1:01284727710 
e: thestudloOinflnityorchitects.co.uk 
INW'Wilfinityorchltects.co.uk 

RJBA~ 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 55



Proposed view from Gipping Way 

00 NOT SCALE THIS Oil! AWING- USE DIMENSK>NS 
The Contractor is to check and verify ol dltnen$lons on site before starting work: and rePOrt 
any om1u1om or errors. TNs dra<Mng Is to be read In contunctlon wtth ol relevant comul!anls 
and ~lollsls dra.Wlgs. TNs DrownQ Is Copyright 

This c:trel'-Mng Is Issued lor the ~e and exckxlve use of the named recipient. Dlitributlon to 
any third party Is on the strk:l undentondlng that no lobllty Is accepted by ml!qrchlle<:ll for 
any dkcreponcifn, erron or omlniom that moy be present, ond no gvorontee Is olfeJed as 
to the OCC\XOCV Of lniOfiT'IOilon U'iown. 

Revisions 

A· 24/ 06/ 15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B- 26/ 08/ 15 Finalising planning drawings 

Drawing Title 
Proposed VIew 1 - Option 2 
Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmork:et 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14-044-DDS B 
Scale 
NTS@A4 

Date 
Aug 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

DEVELOPED 

infinit8architects 
stob4ebloclt 
8 OnQel hi 
bury st edmunds 
sullolklp33 h.1z 
t: OI28-4n77 t0 
e: thestudlofi'lnllnltyachltects.co.uk 
wwwi'ltlnltyorchll&e:ts.co.ul: 

g 

Rl B/\ ~I 
Charterad Practice 

P
age 56



Proposed view from Milton Road 

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING· USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check and verify oB dimensions on site bofOfe starting wert and report 
any omlniom or errors. This drO'Ning Is to be read In conjunction with ol r~vont consultants 
and speclolsts draw1ngs. This Drawing Is Copyright 

This drawing Is lnued for the sole and exclusNe use of the named roclplent. Distribution to 
any Thid porty k on the strtcl undentondng that no lo~fy Is accepted by mllorchltects for 
any discrepancies. erroo or orriuions that mov be present. and no guarantee Is orfered as 
to the occurocy of Information shown. 

Revisions 

A· 24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B- 26/ 08/ 15 Finalising planning drawings 

Drawing Title 
Proposed View 2 - Option 2 

Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmor~et 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14-044-006 B 
Scale 
NTS@A4 

Dale 
Aug 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable bk>ct 
8o~hl 
bury sf edrnut'\d§ 
suff<* lp33 1 uz 
1:0 128-4727710 
e: thesTUdloOinflnltyorchflectt.co.uk 
www.lnfrlityorchitects.co.uk 

~ 

RIBA* 
Cherte1ed Practice 

P
age 57



q_'i' (? 

-4.~ ~ 
q_ '?- ~':I <v ~ 

d'" ~ 0,9~ 
,'?" I~ ":J~S 

C)~ ,. 
";) 

'I-C) ,. 

"'!."\• 
) 

"'"~ "\ • 
";)~ <} 

{; 'v ";) -S-"' 
(j 
~ 

~·-

UP 

~ 

s<>:J 

'<>:Jb 
<>:J' ' 

";)0, 

3 ":J"' 

";) 
<>:J". 

,b ,. 
) 0 ~\~ Bins/Plant ~ _ ~ 0 o~s-4__ 

,. ". 
"\v ";) -<.'v 

i2-'-" / 
00 "'\>.~ 

/";)"\ ' 

~~ ,. 
";) 

> Al 

~ 
)> 
() 

\ 
;g;_ 
;:Ho 
z<.n oo 
m3 ~ I\ 

?'~-

~N 
. <>:J'. g; Gl-t--

(? '\";) 
. <>:J'' 

o,"'
<>:J' ' 

. ~";) 
<>:J" 

-4. 
~s~ 

<>:J'' 

0 

N 

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING· USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check and veflfy ol dimensions on site before stating wort and report 
any omissions or em>B. This drowing Is to be reod In contunctlon 'With all relevant consultants 
and speclols ts drawings. This Drawing Is Copyright 

This drawing Is Issued for the sole and exckJsive use of the named recipient. Distribution to 
any third party Is on the strict understandirtg that no loblty Is accepted by mltarchitects for 
ony dlscreponcles. arrm or orrissions that may be present. and no guoronltte Is offored as 
to the ocaxocy of W'lf?"f"'tlon shoWn. 

v"' -0' 

s
,q_o b~ 

0 <>:J'-. 

~ 

/ 

(? ~ 
<>:J". 

0 
/ 

/ 

/ 

(? ":Jo, "-". 0 J / 

/ ' 

I 
/ 

I 

I 
/ 

I S' 
I ~0 ~ 

<>:J". 
0 

I 

I / 

14 
/ 

/ 

0<v 
~ 

o~
0

b31 I b~l>-Y 1 1 
0 ";) 

/ 

+ ~ ,b 
:--· 

Revisions 

- ·--Foul drainage to connect to existing 

-·--Surface water drainage to connect to existing 

I 
~ry 

<>:J'' S.~?ry 

Drawing Title 
Proposed lower Ground Floor Plan
Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Ha y don ~oldlngs 

·~=o <>:J'~-':1 ~?~RETAINING WALL 
":J HT 1.60m 

BR WALL 

' <8 
~ (iY . ~ ·f'' ~'· 5~."' sO 

0, 6 

~~ I :l: II ~ lh' 1' 
<>:J'' ~ 

' ,.... 
Al 
m •· 
~ 
)> 

z 
":J'O 

~· 

(/') 

\ 

~ \ 

~ 
<>:J'' 

~ <>:J'' 
\ <>:J' ' 

\ 

~ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

Drawing Number 
14-044-009 

Scale 
1:100 

Date 
Sept 201 5 
Drown By 
BMA 

\ 
I 

lr 

ry~ 

<>:J'' 

infinit8architects 
stable block 
8 ongel hll 
bury st edmunds 
suffolk lp33 1 uz 
1:01264727710 
e: thesiVdioOinfnityorchltects.co.uK 
www.lnfWtyotchitects.co.uk 

RIBA~ 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 58



Amenity Area -
Lower First Floor 

0[] 
-~~~~---~ 

2 no. 1 Bed Maisibnettes 
Upper Ground 

Co 
(!) 
N 
N 
N 

\ 

Flat 2 
2Bed 

D 

~ 
~ 
0> 

Ill In 30917 Ill Ill 

Proposed Ground/ Lower First Floor Plans OPTION 2· 

00 NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING ·USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check and viMffy ol dimenslom on slle before starting work and report 
any omissions or erron. ll'lls drawing Is to be read n conjunction with ol relevant comullonts 
end specloists drawings. This DrawlnQ- Is Cop-(nght 

This drawing Is Issued for the sole and eJ«:Iuslve use of the nomed recipient. Dlstrlbvllon to 
. any thrd party Is on the strict understanding that no lloblity Is accepted by mllorchltects for 
any discrepancies. erron or omissions that moy be present and no guarantee Is offered os 
IO !he OCC\KOCY of i'l!oonollorl shown. 

Revisions 

A- 24/ 06/ 15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B· 26/ 08/15 Amendment to layout of Flat 1 

C- 29/09/ 15 Amended .to 14 no. flats 

0 5 10M 

Drawing Tille 
Proposed Ground/ lower First Floor Plans 

Project 
New Dwellings 
Millon Rood 
Slowmarkel 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14-044-01 oc 
Scale 
1:100 

Dale 
Sept 2015 
Drown By 
BMA 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8 angel hi 
bury st &dmunds 
sulfolk lp33 1 ut 
1: 0128<1 727710 
e: lhesludioOinfinltyorchllects.co.uk 
WNW.M"IIinltyorchltects.co.vk 

~ 

~(Sl 

RIBA* 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 59



Amenity Area -
Lower First Floor 

1 no. 2 Bed Flats 
Second Floor Flat 6 

2 Bed 
D 

' 3 no. 1 Bed Flats 
Second Floor 

2 no. 1 Bed 
Maisonettes -
Upper First Floor 

[b] 

co 
<D 
N 
N 
N 

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS . 
The Controctor Is to check and verify ol dimensions on slla befOI'e starting wort: and report 
ony omissions OJ erroo. This drawing Is to be reod In cor+.mctlon with ol relevant consultants 
and specloists drowlngs. This Dfowlng Is Copyright 

This drawing Is bsued for the sole and exclusive use of the nomed recipient. Distribution to 
any !hid party Is on the strict undentondlng that no Uobl~ty Is aCcepted by mllorchllec ts for 
any discrepancies, errOl'S or omissions that may be present, and no guarantee Is olfBfed as 
to the accuracy of Information shown. 

Rev!sions 

A- 24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B- 26/ 0B/15 Finalising planning drawings 

.c- 29/09/15 Amended lo 14 no. flats 

Drawing Title 
Proposed First/Second Floor Plans 

Project 
New Dwellings 
Millon Road 
Stowmarkel 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14-044-onc 

Scale 
1:100 

Dale 
Sept 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

~ 
CX> 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8 angel hi 
bury st edmunds 
sulfolk.lp33 luz 
1:01264727710 
e: lhestvdioOinfinilyorchllects.co.uk 
www.lnfll'lityorchilects.co.uk 

- ~ 

~~ 

RIBA'l# 
Chartered Practice' 

P
age 60



2 no. 2 Bed Flats 
Third Floor 

ro 
(!) 
N 
N 
N 

D 
g 

FFL 
39.95 

30917 

"' "' ~ 
0> 

Proposed ThirdFioo"r Plans OPTION 2 ° 5 10M 

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE 00¥\ENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check and v&rily ol dJmenslons on sit& before $!orting work and report 
any omtsslons 01 errors. Thb drawing Is to be reod In corf./ncllon w'llh ol relevant consultants 
and spoclobh drawing$. This Drawing Is Copyright 

This drowfng Is Issued for the sole and exdvslve use of the named recipient. Distribution to 
any third porty Is on the strict understanding that no iablty Is occepled by nltorchlte<:ls fOf 
ony discrepancies. errors 01 omissions that may be present. and no guarantee Is offered os 
to the accuracy ollnformotlon shown. 

Revisions 

A-·24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B· 26/08/15 Finalising planning d rawings 

C- 29/ 09/15 Amended to 14 no. flats 

Drawing Tille 
Proposed Third Floor Plans 
Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Drawing Number 
14·044·012C 

Scale 
1:100 

Date 
Sept 2015 
Drown By 
BMA 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8ongol .. 
bury st edmund5 
wltolk.lp331uz 
1:01284727710 
e: thesludioOinJinltyotchitectu:o.ulc 
www.lnflnrtyorchllects.co.ult · 

$ 

~(Sl 

RIBA* 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 61



/' 

Site Section OPTION 2 

DO NOT SCALE 'OilS DRAWING· USE DIMENSKJNS 
The Controctatls to check and vl!trify ol dimensions on site beiOI'a starting work and report 
any omissions or efl'Oil. This drawing Is to be read In confuncllon with ol relevant consultants 
and speclalsh drawings. This Drawing Is Copyright · 

This drawing Is Issued !Of the sole and exclusive use of the named recipient. Distribution to 
any thi'd party Is on the strict understanding that no lioblllty Is accepted by mltorchltec ls for 
any discrepancies, &HOB 01' omissions tho! may be present, and no guarantee Is olrered as 
to the accuracy ol lnformollon shown. 

Revisions 

A-24/ 06{15 Option 2- alternative balconies 

0 5 

Drawing Title 
Proposed Site Cross Section & lower Ground Plan 

Project 
New Dwettlngs 
Milton Road 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

A 

2 3 4 

13 12 11 

10M 

DEVELOPED 

5 

10 

6 7 

9 8 

Red ddashed 
line indicates 
exiosting site 
levels 

Drawing Number 
14-044-013A 

Scale 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8ongelhll 1:100 

Date 
Sept 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

bury st edmunds 
suffolklp331uz 
1; 0 1284727710 
e: thestudioOinfinityorchilects.co.uk 
wwwJnfanityachitects.co.uk 

~ 

RIBA* 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 62



Proposed Northeast EIE?vation OPTION·2 
00 NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING· USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check and veflfy ol dimensions on slle before starting woO: and report 
any ombJiom or erron. This drcwing Is to be reod In conjunction With ol relevant consultants 
and specioists drawings. This Drawing is Copyright 

This drowlng Is Issued lOt' the sole "and exclusive use of the named r~nl. Ofstrlbullon to 
any ltwd party Is on the sft\ct understondW'lg tho! no loblty Is accepted by mltorchltects for 
any di5crepancles, errors or omissions that moy be present, and no guoronlee Is offeted as 
to the accuracy of Information shown. 

Revisions 

A· 24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B· 26/ 08/1 5 Finalising planning drawings 

30931 

5 

Drawing Title 
Proposed Northeast Elevation - OPTION 2 
Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Rood 
Stowmark.et 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail , 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

10M 

Drawing Number 
14·044·020 B 

Scale 
1:100 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

DEVELOPED 

infini1·garchitects 
stable block 
8 angel hi 

I 

I 

I 

\ 

LTF FFL 
39.95 

LSF FFL 
36.95 

FFL 
.95 

FFL 
.20 

U\ -. 

Dote 
Aug 2015 

bury st,edrrunds 
surfol:;lp33J~ 

1:0128-H27710 
e: thestvdloCnflnltyotc:hltects.co.uk 
WW'W.infll"'ityorchilects.co.uk 

RIBA'I# 
, ~~_;nay Chartered Practic;e 

P
age 63



---t-!:TF FFL 
39.95 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

LSF FFL ---.-..Jo;;;;;;;;iilo 
36.95 

LFF FFL -----&-.li 
33.95 

Gipping Way 

Proposed Northwest Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS 
The Cootroctor k to check and verify c.- ctmensions on site before starting work and fepor l 
any omissions or erron. This drawing Is to be r&od In cDflunctlon with ol relevant coruuttonts 
and speclolsts drowillgs. This Drowng Is Copyright 

This drawing Is Issued for the sola and exclusive use of the named recipient. Dhtrlbutlon to 
any thi'd porty Is on the strict understanding that no llobllty Is accepted by mllorchltects for 
any dlscreponcles, erron Of omissions that may be present. and no guarantee Is otrered as 
to the accuracy o f lnlormotlon shown. 

Revisions 

A· 24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B- 26/ 08/ 15 Finalising planning drawings 

22268 

Drawing Title 
Proposed Northwest Elevation· OPTION 2 
Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Rood 
Stowmorket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

10M 

Drawing Number 
1 4·044-021 B 

Scale 
1:100 

Dote 
Aug 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

Way 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8ongel hll 
bury sf edmunds 
suffolk 1p33 1 ur: 
1:01284727710 
e: lhestudioGinfinltyorchllects.co.uk 
www.infinityorchilects.co.uk 

Ill 

RlBA * 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 64



0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
\[) ,.._ 
N 

Milton Way 

Proposed Southwest Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING · USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to cheek and vettfy ol dimensions on slla before starting work and report 
any omissions or errors. This drawing Is to be read n corWncHon with ol relevant comultonh 
and specialists drO'Hings. This Drawing Is CopYf'ohl · 

This drawing Is Issued lor the sole and exclusive use ol the named recipient. Distribution to 
any third paty ts on the strict understanding that no Oobllty·ls accepted by mltarchitects for 
any discrepancies. errors or omissions that may be present. and no guarantee is ollerad as 
to the accuracy ollniOI'motfon shown. 

Revisions 

A- 24/ 06/15 FlniJiislng prelim drawings 

B- 26/08/15 Finalising planning drawings 

30917 

5 

Drawing Tille 
Proposed Southwest Elevation - OPTION 2 

Project 
New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

1--------:UFF FFL 
35.55 

10M 

Drawing Number 
14-044-022 B 

Scale 
1:100 

DEVELOPED 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block 
8onget hll 

tD 

Date 
Aug 2015 

bury st edmunds 
sullolk lp33 1 ur. 
1:0128-4 727710 
e: lhestudloCinflnltycrchltects.co.uk 
www.inrnityorchltec ts.co.vk. 

TUBA * 
Drown By 
SMA 

Chartered PraC:tico 

P
age 65



Milton Way 

Proposed Southeast Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor is to check and verify ol dimensions on site before stortlng work and report 
any omissions or erron. Thh drawing Is to be read In conjunction with ol relevant consultants 
and speclalsts drawings. This Drowing Is Copyright 

This drawing Is Issued lor the sole and exdusive use of the named recipient. Oisfttbutlon to 
any ttWd party 15 on the strict understanding that no llablity Is accepted by mltarchllecls for 
any dlscreponcles. errors or omissions that moy be present, and no gUQrontee is offered as 
to !he accuracy ollnlormolloo shown. ' 

Revisions 

A- 24/ 06/15 Finalising prelim drawings 

B- 26/ 08/ 15 Finalising planning drawings 

.0 5 

Drawing Title 
Proposed Southeast Elevation - OPTION 2 
Project 
New Dwellings 
Millon Road 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: .Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed· 

10M. 

Drawing Number 
14-044-023 B 

Scale 
1:100 

DEVELOPED 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
l() 
1'
N 

LGF FFL 
31.20 

Gipping Way 

infinitgarchitects 
sto~block 
8angelhlll 

~ 

Date 
Aug 2015 

bury st edmunds 
sulfolklp33luz 
1:0128-i 727710 
~t: thestvdioCPinrtnltyorchltects.co.ul:. 
www.inrl"lityorchltects.co.uk 

RlBA* 
Drawn By 
BMA 

Chartered Practice 

P
age 66



Milton Way 

Proposed Southeast Sectional Elevation - OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS 
The Controctor Is to check and verify ol dimensklns on site before starting WOfk ond report 
any omissions or tmon. This drawing Is to be reed In conjunction with ol relevant consultants 
and specioi:stt drawings. This~ Is Copyr'lghl 

This drowtng Is lssu8d for the sole and exclusive use of the ncmod recipient. Olstrlbutlon to 
,any third party Is on the strict understanding tho! no fioblllly Is accepted by mltorchllects for 
any discreponcfes. errors or omissions that may be present, and no guarantee Is orfered as 
to the accuracy of Information shown. 

Revisions 

22268 

0 5 

Drawing Tille . 

PROPOSED'FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc. panels, vertical timber.cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

10M 

l_TFFFL ~ 
39.95 

0 
0 
0 
0') 

LSF FFL 
36.95 

0 
0 
0 
0') 

LFF FFL 
33.9'5 

DEVELOPED 

0 
lO ,.._ 
N 

LGF FFL 
31 .20 

Gipping Way 

~ 

Proposed Southeast Sectional Elevation • OPTION 2 
Drawing Numbet 
14-044-024 infinitgarchitects 

Project 
New Dwellings 
Millon Road 
Stowmarke t 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Scale 
1:1 00 

Dote 
Aug 2015 
Drown By 
BMA 

stable block 
8 o ngeltil . 
bury st edmunds 
suffolklp33 tuz 
t: 01284 727710 
e: lhesludiof»>nfinltyorchilects.co.uk 
www.lnflnityorchitects.co.uk 

R l B.A~ 
'Chartered Practice 

P
age 67



i 

LTF FFL 
39.95 

0 
0 
0 

"' 
LSF t-t-L 

t tj 'I 36.95 

0 
0 
0 

"' 
LFF 

33.95 

Milton Road 

Proposed Southwest Sectional Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS 
The ControctOf Is to check and verify ol dimensions on slte before stating wont and report 
any omissions or mron. This drawing Is to be read In conjonctlon with ol relevant comultonts 
and speciollstt drawings. This Drowlng Is Copyright 

This drowlng Is lssvod fOf the JOie and exclusive use of the named recipient, Dlstrfbvllon to 
any ttWd porty Is on the strict understanding that no loblty ls occaptad by [Tillorchltects for 
..ony discrepancies, errors or omissions that moy be present. and no guarantee is ollered as 
to the accuracy ollnforrnotlon shown. 

Revisions 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

30931 

t 

10M 

DEVELOPED 

Drawing ntle 
Proposed Southwest Sectional Elevation -OPTION 2 
Project 

Drawing Number 
14-044-025 

Scale 

infinit8architect-s 
stable block 
Bengel hNI New Dwellings 

Millon Rood 
Stowmarket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

1:100 

Dote 
Aug 2015 
Drawn By 
BMA 

bury sl edmunds 
sullolk lp33 luz 
t: 0128-i 727710 
e: thestvcr!Ofi'lrll"'ityorchltects.co.uk 
www.inflnllyOlchitects.co.uk 

~ . 

RIBA #V 
Chortered Practice 

P
age 68



l :· l . L TF FFL ·• "'1 '.' : : n; 7 J ~M~~- '--rr-. 11 I I . 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

l,_FF FFL -~ 11 ' " w n J ~ I' j 
33.95 t 

II 

Gipping Way 

~-
1'
N 

Proposed Northwest Sectional Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING - USE DIMENSIONS 
The Controc!Of Is to check and verify ol dimensions on site before starting work and report 
any omissions or erroo. This drawing Is to be read in conjunction with ad relevant consultants 
and speclo&sts tlrowings. This Drawing Is Copyright 

This drawing Is Issued for the sole and exclusive use of the named recipient. Dlslrfbutlon to 
any third party Is on the strict understanding that no nobility Is accepted by mttorchltects for 
any discrepancies, errors or omissions that moy be present, and no guarantee Is offered as 
to the accuracy of Information shown. 

Revisions · 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail, 
through colour render, zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

'22218 

--i -::!I 1 t l UFF FFL 
~· . · =-=T' I 35.55 

Milton Way 

10M 

DEVELOPED 

Drawing Title 
Proposed Northwest-Sectional Elevation - OPTION 2 
Project 

Drawing Number 
14-044-026. 

Scale 

infinitgarchitects 
stable block . 

New Dwellings 
Milton Road 
Stowmork.et 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

1:100 

Date 
Aug 2015 
Drawn·sy 
BMA 

8 angel hln 
bury sl edmunds 
suffolk lp33 1 Ul 

1:01284 727710 
e: thesludloCinflnityorchltects.co.uk 
www.infinilyorchitects.co.uk 

~ 

RIBA* 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 69



UFFFF_~L~---------
35.55 

UGF FF~ Ill 
32.80 . 

Proposed Northeast Sectional Elevation OPTION 2 
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING- USE DIMENSIONS 
The Contractor Is to check ond verify ol dimensions on site before slotting wort and report 
any omissions or errors. This drawing Is to be rood In conjunction with ol releYor)l consultants 
and speclolsh drawings. This Drowng Is Copyright 

This drawing Is Issued for the sole and exclusive use of the nomed recipient. Dislr1bvllon to . 
any ttwd porty Is on the strict understanding that no Doblity Is accepted by rritorchllects lor 
any discrepancies, erron or omissions that may be ptesent, and no guarantee Is offered as 
to the occi.KOCY of Information shown. 

Revisions 

30917 

0 5 

Drawing ntle 

PROPOSED FINISHES 

Walls: Traditional red brick walls and with blue/ grey ceramic tile detail , 
through colour render. zinc panels, vertical timber cladding 

Roof: Single ply roofing membrane with aluminium drip. 

Windows: Double glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

Doors: DoiJble glazed grey powder coated aluminium framed 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

LTF FFL 
39.95 

LSF FFL L-;;;;.,r------.,..- 36.95d) 

DO 

10M 

DEVELOPED 

0 
0 
0 

"' 

Proposed Northeast Sectional Elevation- OPTION 2 
Drawing Number 
14-044-027 infini1·garchitects 

Projec t 
New Dwellings 
Mil ton Rood 
Stowmorket 

Client 
Haydon Holdings 

Scale 
1:100 

Dote 
Aug 2015 
Drawn By 
SMA 

stable block 
Bengel hll 
bury st edmonds 
suffolk lp33 luz 
I:Oi f?6--H27710 
a: thestudloOinflnltyachltecb.co.uk 
www.lnfanityorchitects.co.ut: 

RIBA * 
Chartered Practice 

P
age 70



3208/15 
That the Town Council recommends refusal of the application on the following grounds: 

i) That, contrary to planning policy H 13, the proposed development will not have satisfactory 
access to the adjacent highway. The proposed access/egress will have a detrimental impact 
upon roads in the immediate vicinity of the proposed development including Milton Road 
South and Gipping Way. The Town Council is of the opinion that these roads are already 
highly congested , especially in the mornings and early evenings and the proposed 
development will further impact upon this situation; and 

ii) That the proposed development will fail to meet the following standards of planning policy 
T10: 

a) the provision of safe access to and egress from the site; 
b) the suitability of existing roads giving access to the development, in terms of the safe 

and free flow of traffic and pedestrian safety; 
c) whether the amount and type of traffic generated by the proposal will be acceptable in 

relation to the capacity of the road network in the locality of the site; and 
d) the provision of adequate space for the parking .... of cars. 

The Town Council also wishes to express disappointment of the loss of the existing A1/Sui 
Generis units. 

Page 71



~. sese 
~ Historic England 
VWWJ 

EAST OF ENGLAND OFFICE 

Mr Mark Pickrell Direct Dial: 01223 582721 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street Our ref: W: P00477970 
Needham Market 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 06 October 2015 

Dear Mr Pickrell 

Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 2015 & 
T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
MULBERRY HOUSE, MILTON ROAD SOUTH, STOWMARKET, IP141EZ 
Application No 3208/15 -Amendments/ revised plan~ 

Thank you for your letter of 2 October 2015 notifying Historic England of the revised 
plans for planning permission relating to the above site . Our specialist staff have 
considered the information received and we do not wish to offer any comments on this 
occasion. 

Recommendation 

The application(s) should be determined in accordance with national and local 
policy guidance, and on the basis of your specialist conservation advice. 

It is not necessary for us to be consulted again on this application. However, if you 
would like further advice, please contact us to explain your request. We can then let 
you know if we are able to help further and agree a timetable with you . 

Yours sincerely 

~ 
David Eve 
Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas 
E-mail: david .eve@HistoricEngland .org . uk 

24 BROOKLANDS AVENUE, CAMBRIDGE, CB2 8BU 

Telephone 01223 582749 
HistoricEngland. org. uk 

*tonewall 
DIVIRSITY CHA PIOI 

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act. 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All 
information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA 

or EIR applies. 

Page 72



From: Greg McSorley 
Sent: 23 September 2015 08:59 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: Re 3208/15 Mulberry House, Milton Road South 

Good morning, 

sec Arc h6ru 1o9_y 

Thank you for consulting us on this proposal. In my opinion there would be no significant impact on 
known archaeological sites or areas with archaeological potential. I have no objection to the 
development and do not believe any archaeological mitigation is required . 
Best wishes, 

Greg McSorley 
Business Support Officer 
Suffolk County Council Archaeological Service 

Page 73



.J. ·· 

® 
Ministry 
of Defence 

Mark Pickrell 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
Planning Services 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
Suffolk 
IP6 SOL 

Your Reference: 3208/15 
Our reference: 010/SUT/43/2/89 (2015/1542) 

Dear Mark, 

MOD Safeguarding - Wattisham Station 

Defence 
I nfrastru ctu re 
Organisation 

Safeguarding Department 
Statutory &·Offshore 

Defence Infrastructure Organisation 
Kingston Road 
Sutton Goldfield 
West Midlands 
875 7RL 

Tel: +44 (0)121 311 2259 Tel (MOD): 94421 2259 
Fax: +44 (0)121 311 2218 
E-mail : 010-safeguarding-statutorv @ mod.uk 

www.mod.uk/DIO 

05 October 2015 

Proposal: Demolition of existing A1/Sui Generis units. Erection of 3 and 4 storey C3 
residential unit to provide 14 apartments which comprise of 4 no. 2 bed flats 
6 no. 1 bed flats and 4 no. 1 bed maisonettes (revised scheme to 2867/14) 

Location: 

Grid Ref: 

Planning Ref: 

Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, IP14 1 EZ 

605128,258499 

3208/15 

Thank you for consulting the Ministry of Defence (MOD) on the above proposed development which 
was receive9 by this office on 02/1 0/2015. I can confirm that the MOD has no safeguarding 
objections to this proposal. 

I trust this is clear however should you nave any questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely 

Laura Nokes 

P\anning Control 
Received 

0 7 OCT 2015 

Acknowledged · _ .. · .. .. .... · .. .. · · .. · .. · ...... 
·· ···· ·· ·· 

Date .... ....... . .... . ... .. ..... . .... . . 

Pass to .... .. .. .. .... .. ........ .. .. .. ··· ····· ·· 

Page 74



~Suffolk 
~ County Council 

Mid Suffolk District Council 
Planning Department 
131 High Street ·· 
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
IP6 8DL 

Dear Sirs 

~. 
OFFICIAL 

S[P 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service 

Fire Business Support Team 
Floor 3, Block 2 
Endeavour House 
8 Russell Road 
Ipswich, Suffolk 
IP1 2BX 

Your Ref: 
Our Ref: 
Enquiries to: 
Direct Line: 
E-mail: 
Web Address: 

3208/15 
FS/F221286 
Mrs Angela Kempen 
01473 260588 
Fire.BusinessSupport@suffolk.gov.uk 
http://www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Date: 25/09/2015 

Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, Suffolk IP14 1 EZ 
Planning Application No: 3208/15 

I refer to the above application. 

The plans have been inspected by the Water Officer who has the following 
comments to make. 

Access and Fire Fighting Facilities 

Access to buildings for fire appl iances and firefighters must meet with the 
requirements specified in Building Regulations Approved Document B, (Fire Safety), 
2006 Edition, incorporating 2010 and 2013 amendments Volume 1 - Part B5 , Section 
11 dwelling houses, and, similarly, Volume 2, Part 85, Sections 16 and 17 in the 
case of buildings other than dwelling houses. These requirements may be satisfied 
with other equivalent standards relating to access for fire fighting , in which case 
those standards should be quoted in correspondence. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service also requires a minimum carrying capacity for hard 
standing for pumping/high reach appliances of 15/26 tonnes, not 12.5 tonnes as 
detailed in the Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document B, 2006 Edition , 
incorporating 2010 and 2013 amendments. 

Water Supplies 

No additional water supply for fire fighting purposes is required in respect of th is 
planning appl ication. 

Suffolk Fire. and Rescue Service recommend that proper consideration be given to 
the potential life safety, economic, environmental and social benefits derived from 
the provision of an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Please see sprinkler information 
enclosed with this letter). 

/continued 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. Thrs paper is 100% recycled and 
made using a ch lorine fr·ee process 

OFFICIAL 
Page 75



lD4· 
OFFICIAL 

Consultation should be made with the Water Authorities to determine flow rates in all 
cases. 

Should you need any further advice or information on access and fire fighting 
facilities, you are advised to contact your local Building Control in the first instance. 
For further advice and information regarding water supplies, please contact the 
Water Officer at the above headquarters. 

Yours faithfully 

Mrs A Kempen 
Water Officer 

CC Mrs. Benzir Misbah-Amann, Infinity Architects, 8 Angel Hill , Bury St. 
Edmunds, Suffolk IP33 1 UZ 
Enc: Sprinkler letter 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and 
rnade using a ch lorine free process . 

OFFICIAL Page 76



From: Andrea Stordy 
Sent: 07 October 2015 11:22 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: FAO: Mark Pickrell 

Planning Application : 3208/15 

ES. 

Location: Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, IP14 1EZ 

Good Morning, 
Thank you for your letter of 2/10/2015. 

Please be advised that we have made formal comment on planning application 3208/15 on 
22/09/2015. 

If you require a copy of the original comments made, please email your request to 
water.hydrants@suffolk.gov.uk, quoting Fire Ref: F221286. 

Kind regards, 
Sent on beha lf of the Water Officer 

Andrea Stordy 
BSO 

Engineering, 
Public Health and Protection 

Suffolk County Council 
3rd Floor , Lime Block 
Endeavour House, 
Russell Road, 
IP1 2BX 

Tel. : 01473 260564 
Email : andrea.stordy@suffolk.gov.uk 

Team Mailbox: water.hydrants@suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 77



Your Ref: MS/3208/15 
Our Ref: 570\CON\3359\15 
Date: 30/10/15 

"· 
Highways Enquiries to: andrew.pearce@suffolk.gov.uk 

All planning enquiries should be sent to the Local Planning Authority. 
Email : planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk 

The Planning Officer 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
Council Offices 
131 High Street 
Ipswich 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

For the Attention of: Mark Pickrell 

Dear Sir/Madam 

~Suffolk · 
~ County Council 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990- CONSULTATION RETURN MS/3208/15 

PROPOSAL: 

LOCATION: 

ROAD CLASS: 

Demolition of existing A1/ Sui Generis units. Erection of 3 and four storey C3 

residential unit to provide 14 apartments which comprise of 4no. 2 bed flats, 

6no. 1 bed flats and 4no. 1 bed maisonettes (revised scheme to 2867/14) 

Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket 

Although there have previously been concern for the conversion of this site to residential use, this site is 
extremely well located to take advantage of nearby shopping, amenities and sustainable transport options 
which are located close to this site and this helps to mitigate the potential highway concerns. Althopugh 
the existing access is proposed to be retained, the access road to Morrisons site is adjacent to the existing 
vehicular access and therefore it is likely that a minor intensification of this access would cause minimal 
impact compared to the vehicles that use the access road to the supermarket. 

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Highway Authority recommends that any 
permission which that Planning Authority may give should include the conditions shown below: 

1 p 5 
Condition : One parking space I secure cycle space for each dwelling shall be made available for use prior 
to the occupation of the dwelling and shall thereafter be retained for these purposes. 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Schedule 2 of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) no development shall be carried out in such a position as to preclude vehicular access to 
those car parking I cycle spaces. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate vehicular parking provision within the 
site is provided and maintained. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr Andrew Pearce 
Senior Development Management Engineer 
Strategic Development - Resource Management 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road , Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 78



6=1. 

Date: 29/09/2015 
Boyer 

Ref: 14.618 

Mark Pickrell 

Planning Services 

15 De Grey Square 
De Grey Road 
Colchester 
Essex 
C0 45YQ 

T: 01 206 769 01 8 
F: 01 206 564 746 

Mid Suffolk District Council 

131 High Street 
colchester@boyerplanning.co.uk 
boyerplanning.co.uk 

Needham Market 

Suffolk 

IP6 SOL 

Dear Mark, 

Developer Contributions Requirements- 3208/15 - Mulberry House, Milton Road South, 
Stowmarket · 

I am writing on behalf of Suffolk County Council in relation to the above planning application for 13 

dwellings in Stowmarket. Boyer has been instructed to assist in providing an assessment cif the 

infrastructure requirements for this application on behalf of Suffolk County Council. 

The requirements set out in this letter will need to be considered by Mid Suffolk DistrictCouncil if 

residential development is successfully promoted on the site. The County Council will also need to 

be party to any sealed Section 106 iegal agreement if there are any obligations secured which is its 

responsibility as service provider. Without the following contributions being agreed between the 

applicant and the Local Authority, the development cannot be considered to accord with policies to 

provide the necessary .infrastructure requirements. 

The contribution requirements set out in this letter are intended to be a starting point for discussion 

between Suffolk County Council and the Local Authority. These requirements should be used as the 

basis to establish the priorities that are going to be related to this specific site and proposal. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), at paragraph 203 - 206, sets out the requirements 

of planning obligations, and requires that they meet all of the following tests: 

• Necessary to make the development acceptable in pl~nning terms; 

• Directly related to the development; and 

• Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

The County Council have adopted the 'Section 106 Developers Guide to Infrastructure Contributions 

in Suffolk' (2012) , which sets out the agreed approach to planning applications with further 

information on education and other infrastructure matters provided within the supporting topic 

papers. This can be viewed at www.suffolk.qov.uk/business/planning-and-desiqn-advice/planning

obliqations/ 

_..,.. -

Boyer Planning Ltd. Reglstared Office: Crowthome House, Nine Mile Aide, Woklngham, Berkshire AG40 3GZ. Registered In England No. 2529151. VAT 757216127 
Offices et Cardiff, Colchester, London, Twlckenham and Woklngham 

Page 79



"'· 
Mid Suffolk adopted its Core Strategy in 2008 and more recently undertook a Core Strategy Focused 

Review which was adopted in December 2012 and includes the following objectives and policies 

relevant to providing infrastructure: 

• Strategic Objective S06 seeks to ensure that delivery of necessary infrastructure takes place 

to accommodate new development. 

• Policy FC1 sets out the p·resumption in favour of sustainable development in Mid Suffolk. 

· Policy FC 1.1 highlights the Council will facilitate the delivery of sustainable development through a 

variety of means including the appropriate use of planning conditions and obligations. 

Community Infrastructure Levy 

In March 2015, Mid Suffolk District Council formally submitted documents to the Planning Inspectorate for 

examination under Regulation 19 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (as amended). 

Mid Suffolk District Council are required by Regulation 123 to publish a list of infrastructure projects or 

types of infrastructure that it intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded by CIL. 

The current Mid Suffolk 123 List, dated November 2014, includes the following as being capable of being 

funded ·by CIL rather than through planning obligations: . 

Provision of passenger transport 
Provision of library facilities 
Provision of additional pre-school places at existing establishments 
Provision of primary school places .at existing schools 
Provision of secondary, sixth form and further education places 
Provision of waste. infrastructure 

As of 61
h April 2015, the 123 Regulations restrict the use of pooled contributions towards items that may 

be funded through the levy. The requirements being sought here would be requested through CIL, once 

adopted by Mid Suffolk District Council, and therefore would meet the new legal test. It is anticipated that 

the District Council is responsible for monitoring infrastructure contributions being sought. 

The details of specific contribution requirements related to the proposed scheme are set out below: 

1. Education 

Paragraph 72 of the NPPF states that 'The Government attaches great importance to 

ensuring that a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing 

and new communities. Local Planning Authorities should take a proactive, positive and 

collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that will widen 

choice in education. ' 

The NPPF at paragraph 38 states ' For larger scale residential developments in particular, 

planning policies should promote a mix of uses in order to provide opportunities to undertake 
day-to-day activities including work on site. Where practicf31, particularly within large-scale 

developments, key facilities such as primary schools and local shops should be located 

within walking distance of most properties.' 

We would anticipate the following minimum pupil yields from a development of 13 dwellings 

(taking into account dwelling typ~ and mix) : 

2 Boyer Page 80



61. 

• 

• 

Primary school age range, 5-11 : 1 pupil. Cost per place is £12,181 (2015/16 costs) 

Secondary school age range, 11-16: 0 pupils. Cost per place is £18,355 (2015/16 

costs) 

• Secondary sc~ool age range, 16+: 0 pupils. Cost per place is £19,907 (2015/16 costs) 

The local ca~chment schools are Abbots Hall Primary School and Stowmarket High School. 

Based on existing capacities there are currently insufficient surplus places available at the 

catchment primary school, therefore funding is required for 1 additional place at a cost of 

£12,181 (2015/16 costs). There are currently sufficient surplus places available at the 

catchment high school. 

The scale of contributions is based on cost multipliers for the capital cost of providing a 

school place, which are reviewed annually to reflect changes in construction costs. The 

· figures quoted will apply during the financial year 2015/16 only and have been provided to 

give a general indication of the scale of contributions required should residential 

development go ahead. The sum will be reviewed at key stages of the application process . 

to reflect the projected forecasts of pupii numbers and the capacity of the schools concerned 

at these times. Once a.Section 106 legal agreement has been signed, the agreed sum will 

be index linked using the BCIS Index from the date of the Section 106 agreement until such 

time as the education contribution is due. sec has a 1 0 year period from date of completion 

· of the development to spend the contribution on local education provision. 

Clearly, local circumstances may change over time and I would draw your attention to 

section 13 of this letter which sets out this information is time-limited to 6 months from the 

date of this letter. 

2. Pre-school provision 

It is the responsibility of sec to ensure that there is sufficient provision under the Childcare 

Act 2006 and that this relates to section 8 of the NPPF. Section 7 of the Childcare Act sets 

out a duty to secure free early years provision for pre-school children of a prescrrbed age. 

The current requirement is to ensure ·15 hours per week of free provision over 38 weeks of 

the year for all 3 and 4 year olds. The Government have also recently signalled the 

introduction of 30 hours free entitlement a week from September 2017. The Education Act 

(2011) introduced the statutory requ irement for 15 hours free early years education for all 

disadvantaged 2 year olds. 

From these development proposals we would anticipate up to 1 pre-school pupils arising at a 

cost of £6,091 per place. However, there is a surplus of 66 places in the locality and 

therefore no contribution is sought in this instance . . 

3. Play space provision 

Consideration will need to be given to adequate play space provision. A key document is the 

'Play Matters: A Strategy for Suffolk', which sets out the vision for providing more open 

space where children and young people can play. Some important issues to consider 

include: 

3 Boyer· Page 81



• In every residential area there are a variety of supervised and unsupervised places for 
play, free of charge; 

• Play spaces are attractive, welcoming, engaging and accessible for all locE!I children and 
young people, including disabled children , and children from minority groups in the 

community; 

• Local neighbourhoods are, and feel like, safe, interesting places to play; 

• Routes to children's play spaces are safe and accessible for all children and young 
people. 

4. Transport 

The NPPF at Section 4 promotes sustainable transport. A comprehensive assessment of 

· highways and transport iSSL!es is required as part of any planning application. This will 

include travel plan, pedestrian and cycle provision, public transport, rights of way, air quality 

and highway provision (both on-site and off-site). Requirements will be dealt with via 

planning conditions and Section 106 agreements as appropriate, and infrastructure delive~ed 

to adoptable standards via Section 38 and Section 27.8. This will be co-ordinated by Andrew 

Pearce of Suffolk Courity Highway Network Management. 

In it~ role as Highway Authority, Suffolk County Council has worked with the local planning 

authorities to develop county-wide technical guidance on parking in light of new national 

policy and local research. This was adopted by the County Council in November 2014 and 

replaces the Suffolk Advisory Parking Standards (2002). The guidance can be viewed at 

http://www.suffolk.qov.uklassets/suffolk.qov.uk/Environment%20and%20Transport/Pianning/ 

2014-11-27%20Suffolk%20Guidance%20for%20Parking. pdf 

5. Rights of Way 

Section 8 of the NPPF promotes the need to protect and enhance public rights of way and 
access. 

As a result of the anticipated use of the public rights of way network and as part of 

developing the health agenda to encourage people to walk and cycle more, the Rights of 

Way service are reviewing their requirements and will advise at a later date if any 

contributions are required. 

6. Libraries 

Section 8 of the NPPF promotes healthy communities and highlights the importance of 

delivering the social , recreational and cultural facilities and services a community needs. 

Suffolk County Council requires a minimum standard of 30sqm of new library space per 

1,000 population. Construction and initial fit-out cost of £3,000 per sqm for libraries (based 

on RICS Building Cost Information Service data but excluding land costs). This gives a cost · 

of (30 x 3,000) £90,000 per 1,000 people or £90 per person for library space. Assuming an 

average of 2.4 persons per dwelling the requirement is 2.4 x 90 = £216 per dwelling. 

The capital contribution towards the development of library services arising from this scheme 

is 216 x 13 = £2,808. This would be spent at.the local catchment library in Stowmarket and 

allows for improvements and enhancements to be made to library services and facilities. 

4 Boyer Page 82



7. Waste 

Site waste management plans have helped to implementthe waste hierarchy and exceed 

target recovery rates and should still be promoted. The NPPF (para. 162) requires local 
planning authorities to work with others in considering the capacity of waste infrastructure. 

A waste minimisation and recycling strategy needs to be agreed and implemented by 

planning conditions. Design features for waste containers and the availability of recycling 

facilities should be considered in finalising the design of the development. 

Strategic waste disposal is dealt with by the County Council, which includes disposal of 

household waste and recycling centres. A contribution of £51 per dwelling is sought for 

improvement, expansion or new provision of waste disposal facilities. For this development 

that would be a capital contribution of £663. 

8. Supported Housing 

Section 6 of the NPPF seeks to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes. Supported 

Housing provision, including Extra' CareNery Sheltered Housing providing accommodation 

for those in need of care, including the elderly and people with learning disabilities, may 

need to be considered as part of the overall affordable housing requirement. We would 

encourage all homes to be built to the 'Lifetime Homes' standard. 

9. Sustainable Drainage Systems 

SeCtion 10 of the NPPF seeks to meet the challenges of climate change, flooding and 

coastal change. National Planning Practice Guidance notes that new development should 

only be considered appropriate in areas at risk of flooding if priority has been given to the 

use of sustainable drainage systems. Additionally, and more widely, when considering major 

development (of 10 dwellings or more), sustainable drainage systems should be provided 

unless demonstrated to be inappropriate. 

As of 6th April 2015, the sustainable drainage provisions within the Flood a~d Water 

Management Act 2010 have been implemented, and developers are required to seek 

drainage approval from the county council and/or its agent alongside planning consent. The 

cost of ongoing maintenance is to be part of the Section 106 negotiation. 

10. Fire Service 

The Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service requests that early consideration is given to access for 

fire vehicles and provisions of water for fire-fighting. The provision of any necessary fire 

hydrants will need to be covered by appropriate planning conditions. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) seek higher standards of fire safety in dwelling 

houses and promote the installation of sprinkler systems and can provide support and advice 

on their installation. 

11. Superfast broadband 

Section 5 of the NPPF supports high quality communications infrastructure and highlights at 

paragraph 42 that high speed broadband plays a vital role in enhancing the provision of local 

5 Boyer Page 83



community facilities and services. SCC would recommend that all development is equipped 

with superfast broadband (fibre optic). This facilitates home working which has associated 

benefits for the transport network and also contributes to social inclusion. Direct access from 

. a new development to the nearest BT exchange is required (not just tacki_ng new provision 

on the end of th~ nearest line). This will bring the fibre optic closer to .the home which will 

enable faster, broadband speed. 

12. Legal costs 

SCC will ·require an undertaking for the reimbursement of its own legal costs, whether or not 

the matter proceeds to completion. 

13. The information contained within this letter is time-limited for 6 months only from the date of 

this letter. 

14. Summary Table 

Service Requirement Contribution per dwelling Capital Contribution 

Education - Primary £937 £12 ,1 81 

Education- Secondary £0 £0 

Education- Sixth Form £0 £0 

Pre-School Provision £0 £0 

Transport £- £-

Rights of Way £- £-

Libraries £216 £2,808 

Waste £51 £663 

Total £1,204 £15,652 

Table 1.1: Summary of Infrastructure Requirements 

I consider that the above contributions requested are justified, evidenced and satisfy the 

requirements of the NPPF and the CIL 122 Regulations. Please let me know if you require any . 

further supporting information. 

Yours sincerely 

Catherine Pollard 

Senior Planner 

Boyer Planning Ltd 

Tel: 01206 769018 
Email: catherinepollard@boyerplanning.co. uk 

cc. Neil McManus, Suffolk County Council 

6 Boyer Page 84



':J3. 
MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

' MEMORANDUM 

TO: Chief Planning Control Officer For the attention of: Mark Pickrell 

FROM: Philippa Stroud , ·Environmental Protection Team DATE: 05.10.15 

YOUR REF: 3208/15/FUL- Land Contamination. 

SUBJECT: Mulberry House, Milton Road South, Stowmarket, IP14 1 EZ 

Demolition of existing A 1/Sui Generis units. Erection of 3 and four storey 
C3 residential unit to provide 13 apartments which comprise of 1 no. 3 bed 

· flat, 3no. 2 bed flats , 5no. 1 bed flats and 4no. 1 bed maisonettes (revised 
scheme to 2867/14) ' 

Please find below my comments regarding contaminated land matters only. 

The Environmental Protection Team has no objection to the proposed development, but 
would recommend that the following Planning Condition be attached to any planning 
permission: 

Proposed Condition: Standard Contaminated Land Condition (CL01) 

No development shall take place until: 

·1. A strategy for investigating any contamination present on site (including ground 
gases, where appropriate) has been submitted for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority. . 

2. Following approval of the strategy, an investigation shall be carried out in accordance 
with the strategy. · 

3. A written report shall be submitted detailing the findings of the investigation referred to 
in (2) above, and .an assessment of the risk posed to receptors by the contamination 
(including ground gases, where appropriate) for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority. Subject to the risk assessment, the report shall include a Remediation 
Scheme as required. · 

4. Any remediation work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Remediation Scheme. 

5. Following remediation, evidence shall be. provided to the Local Planning Authority 
verifying that remediation has been carried out in accordance with the approved 
Remediation Scheme. 

Reason: To identify the extent and mitigate risk to the public, the wider environment and 
buildings arising from land contamination. 

It is important that the following advisory comments are included in any notes 
accompanying the Decision Notice: 

ES/CLIDC - 010/v2 . 
Page 85



"1~· 
"There is a suspicion that the site may be contaminated or affected by ground gases. 
You should be aware that the responsibility for the safe development and secure 
occupancy of the site rests with the developer. 

Unless agreed with the Local Planning Authority, you must not carry out any 
development work (including demolition or site preparation) until the requirements of the 
condition have been met, or without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

The developer shall ensure that any reports relating to site investigations and subsequent 
remediation strategies shall be forwarded for comment to the following bodies: 

• Local Planning Authority 
• Environmental Ser.iices 
• Building Inspector 
• · Environment Agency 

Any site investigations and remediation strategies in respect of site contamination 
(including ground gases, where appropriate) shall be carried out in ·accordance with 
current approved standards and codes of practice. 

The applicant/developer is advised, in .connection with the above condition(s) requiring 
the submission of a strategy to establish the presence of land contaminants and any 
necessary investigation and remediation measures, to contact the Council's 
Environmental Protection Team." 

Philippa Stroud 
Senior Environmental Protection Officer 

ES/CL/DC - 010/v2 
Page 86



Jane Cole 

From: 
Sent: 

BMSDC Economic Development 
19 November 2015 11:16 

' !. .... '•• 

To: 
Subject: 

Planning Admin; BMSDC Economic Development; Mark Pickrell 
RE: Consultation on Planning Application 3208/15 

Categories: Yellow Category 

. Please see below BMSCDC Economic Development comments in respect of this application for demolition 
of an existing building with Al/sui generis uses and redevelopment with 13 no residential dwellings and 

·associated parking. 

The loss of potential Aland sui generis uses on this site are regrettable, however the applicant has made 

representations that the existing uses are not a viable use of the site. The site might be more appropriate 
for alternative uses more in keeping with office/professional type accommodation however conversion to 
accommodate such uses could require considerable capital investment. We are aware ofthe Town 

Council comments and would reiterate their concerns regarding traffic congestion . 

Consequently, in principle we have no objection to the g~ant of this planning permission as the site could 
be suitable for residential development for the reasons stated in the various applicant 
documents. However, the potential traffic issues identified by the Town Council could be mitigated by a 
less dense development of the site. . 

Mark, apologies from Eco Dev as you will receive this way too late for deadline date, really sorry but hope 

this is of use. Regards. 

Delia Cook 
Economic Development Officer 
DO : 01449 724786 . 

Economic Development . . 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils working together 

l 'i:1iD SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

!
t PLANNING CONTROL 

RECEIVED 

1 
~ 1 9 NOV 2015 
I 

j ACr:·~O·i•LEOGED •. ~ £.... ...... . i {)~·~ ....... l.c;:\:~~\.\.l;;, .. ; ......... . 
:· ~·~~~:~; T~···~ .................... .. 

From: planninqadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk [mailto:planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk] 
Sent: 17 September 2015 17:00 
To: BMSDC Economic Development 
Subject: Consultation on Planning Application 3208/15 

Correspondence from MSDC Planning Services. 

Location: Mulberry House, Milton Road South , Stowmarket, IP14 1 EZ 

1 
Page 87



Proposal: Demolition of existing A 1/ Sui Generis units. Erection of 3 and four storey C3 residential unit to 
provide 13 apartments which comprise of 1 no. 3 bed flat, 3no. 2 bed flats, 5no. 1 bed flats and 4no. 1 bed 
maisonettes (revised scheme to. 2867/14) 

We have received an application on which we would like you to comment. A consultation letter is attached. 
To view details of the planning application online please click here 

We request your comments regarding this application and these should reach us 

within 21 days. Please make these online when viewing the application. 

The planning policies that appear to be relevant to this case are NPPF, HB8, HB9, HB1, HB13, GP1, H17, 
C01/03, Cor1, Cor5, Cor6, Cor?, Cor8, Cor9, CS SAAP, CSFR-FC1, CSFR-FC1.1, CSFR-FC2, E6, H13, 
H15, H2, HB8, which can 

be found in detail in the Mid Suffolk Local Plan. · 
. ' 

We look forward to receiving your comments. 

Emails sent to and from this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance with policies and to minimize any security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may be 
privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of the addressee. 
Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive this 'email by mistake, 
please advise the sender inimediately by using the reply facility in your email software. 
Opinions, conclusions and other information in this email that do not relate 
to the official business of Mid SUffolk District Council shall be 
undet~tood as. neither given nor endorsed by Mid Suffolk District Council. 

. _... . ... . ~ 

2 
Page 88



MID SUFFOLK DISTRieT COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE- 02 December 2015 

AGENDA ITEM NO 4 
· APPLICATION NO 1492/15 

PROPOSAL Hybrid application for residential development that consists of the 
following elements:-

Full Planning sought for Phase I comprising of 75 single storey 
dwellings, garaging and parking and public open space/attenuation 
basin (SUDs). 

Outline Planning sought with all matters reserved (except for.access) 
forPhases 11 -11 I for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a sheltered . 
housing scheme of up to 60 units and public open space areas. 

SITE LOCATION Land West of Farriers .Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 
SITE AREA (Ha) 10.78 
APPLICATION TYPE FUL 
APPLICANT ConstrUct Reason Limited I E. Durrant and Sons 
RECEIVED April 23, 2015. 
EXPIRY DATE September 2, 2015 

REASONS FOR REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE 

The application is referred to committee for the following reason : 

(1) it is a "Major" application for:-

• a residential land allocation for 15 or over dwellings 

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

1. The site has been subject to a formal masterplan process and the contents of 
the masterplan were formally noted by the Council. Additional pre-application 
advice with regards to the detailed layout has also been provided 

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 

2. The site consists of two distinct parts located on the eastern edge of 
Stowmarket. The northern part of the site is accessed of Farriers Road and 
consists of two areas of scrub land with significant hedgerows and trees around 
the boundaries. The northern boundary of the site is the River Rattlesden. The 
central part of the site is access from Poplar Hill and is bisected by a public 

Page 89



HISTORY 

=78. 

footpath . It comprises part of an agricultural field. 

There was a southern part of the site and is a much smaller parcel of 
agricultu~al field land located on the opposite side of Popular Hill , but this was 
removed from the scheme. Poplar Hill is the high point of the site with the land 
sloping down to the north and south. 

To the east of the site are residential properties located on Farriers Road, 
Millers Close, The Twinnings and Verneuil Close . On the northern boundary is 
the river and then agricultural land. To the west of the site is agricultural land 
(part of the same field as the site). Except for the public footpath there are no 
designations on the site. 

3. The planning history relevant to the application site is: 

None relevant · 

PROPOSAL 

4. The planning application is a hybrid application for residential development. The 
full application is for 75 dwellings and outline application with all matters 
reserved for 110 dwellings including a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 
units. 

POLICY 

The full planning application is for the northern half of the site. The 75 dwellings 
would all be two or three bed bungalows. A new access off the end of Farriers 
Road is proposed. On the first of the two original fields which made up the 
northern part of the site, dwellings are proposed along the access road . To the 
rear of these would be public open space which would include areas for the 
infiltration basins. Beyond this the landscape belt would retain. 

The hedgerow between the two fields would also be retained ; although it would 
be breeched by the access road and some trees would need to be felled for the 
access. The majority of the first phase of dwellings would be located within the 
second field . Dwelling would be located along the line road or on side roads off 
the spine road. A footpath would lead from the centr·e of the site to the area of 
public open space. The spine road would then road to through to the central 
part of the site which is subject to the outline application . 

A indicative layout has been provided for the area for the outline permission 
based on the adopted Development Brief (Oct 2014). This shows anew access 
onto Popular Hill , close to the Church Hall. An Area of open space would be 
located between the existing road and footpath . Beyond this there would be 
dwellings along the Spine Road and off various side roads. 

5. Planning Policy Guidance 

Page 90



See Appendix: below. 

CONSUL lATIONS 

6. Stowmarket Town Council 

No objection however the Town Council wishes to raise the following point: 
i) the proposal will result in significant extra strain being placed upon the 
existing foul sewage system, the Town Council would expect that Anglian Water 
install addition to the system in order for it to cope with the increase in demand. 
ii) That measures must be taken to adequately and efficiency deal with the 
drainage of the clear water 
iii) significant additional pressure would be placed on the .Combs Ford Doctors 
Surgery which has closed to new patients until May 2016 
iv) there is already significant pressure upon the proposed road network and in 
particular, Edgecomb Road and Poplar Hill. 
v) That all the road infrastructure should be build as Phase One to allow for the 
public transport networks to be put in place immediately to serve the residents 
of the dwellings established as part of the first phase. 

· vi) That with regards to the proposed screening , recommended that mature 
specimens be planted prior to or, immediately at, the start of Phase One and 
vii) that no play areas be created upon the site and the s.1 06 contribution for 
play provision be used to improve existing play areas within the Combs Ford 
area. 

·combs Parish Council 

Object to the proposal for the following reasons: 
• impact on highways in particular Edgecomb Road 
• elderly population will not be able to use public transport 
• impact on the sewerage system 
• lack of linkages to surrounding footpaths and cycle paths 
• lack of solar panels 
• dwellings will not have inbuilt renewable energy sources or enhanced 

instillation 
• lack Qf visibility onto Poplar Hill and associated traffic dangers 
• lack of boundary landscape to area of the outline application 
• lack of health .facilities 

Suffolk County Council: Archaeology 

The site lies in an area of archaeological potential . Recommend condition 
relating to a programme of archaeological work . 

. S'-'ffolk County Council: Fire and Rescue Service 

Recommends a condition relating to fire hydrants within ,the development. 

Suffolk County Council - Infrastructure contributions 

Require the following contributions: 
Primary education - 4 places £48,724 
Pre-school contributions - 13 places £79,182 

Page 91



Libraries - £32,400 
Waste - £6,375 

MSDC Policy 

80. 

Follows the adopted Edgecomb Park development brief so covers the 
requirements of planning policy and the project team. Require additional 
information on future ownership and maintenance of the public open space to 
the east of Poplar Hill. (See Assessment in regard to this matter, this has been 
removed from the scheme at this time) 

Anglian Water 

Recommend condition relating to foul water strategy. 

Landscape Officer 

Site is in a visually prominent valley side and ridge top location next to a existing 
block of housing. The southernmost part of the site is in an elevated and 
visually prominent location and has a weaker relationship with the existing · 
housing. The proposed layout has responded to this by using this area of the 
site for public open space. ' 

Given the exposed located essential that key structural and boundary planting 
associated with later phases is established as part of phase one of the 
development. Be appropriate to agree the phased of structural and boundary 
planting. Need to condition exact details of landscaping. Southernmost area 
of open space appears rather bare and will require some boundary planting. 
Recommend conditions. 

sec flooding 

Confirms s.cheme is acceptable in terms of flood risk and attenuation proposals. 

Environmental Agency 

Recommend condition relating to land contamination. Need to ensure that land 
adjacent to the river is protected by a buffer zone of native riparian habitat at 
least 15 metres wide. Recommend condition relating to buffer zone. The · 
scheme will bring the Stowmarket Sewage Treatment Works to capacity, 

·following this significant work will be required prior to any 'other significant 
development. The Site Waste Management Plan lack ambition and should 
considered reducing waste. Further opportunities for overall sustainability and 
resource efficiency should be taken. 

Natural England 

Site is in close proximity of Combs Wood SSSI put satisfied that the proposal 
development will not damage or destroy the interest features for which the site 
has been notified. · 

Suffolk County Council: Highways 

Extensive response that supports the proposed development provide final views 

Page 92



81. 

on highway matters, public transport, travel plan and rights of way. Highways 
conditions and elements for 106 Legal Agreement are recommended. 

· Suffolk Wildlife Trust 

Request that the recommendations made within the reports are implemented in 
full. In addition there should be a sensitive lighting scheme. Concern raised 
about the protection of hedges if they are incorporated into domestic 
boundaries. The area to the north of the site and boundary trees and hedges 
should be protected during construction phase and subject to appropriate 
management measures in the long term. The new areas of green space should 
be design to maximise ecological value and long term beneficial management. 

MSDC arboriculture 

The proposal requires the removal of a number of trees but the majority of 
these are either in poor condition or of low amenity value and the impact of their 
loss can be mitigated with new planting . In a few instances, trees of high value 
are proposed for removal and these should be retqined if at all possible. The 
Ash is a tree of high value without significant defect. Some realignment of the 
proposed access should be considered to accommodate this important tree. In 
other areas the proximity and. orientation is likely to result in post-development 
pressure for prunng or felling should be avoided. 

MSDC Environm~ntal Protection: Land contamination · 

Recommend condition relating to land contamination. 

NHS Suffolk 

Seeks contribution towards Comb Ford Surgery 

LOCAL AND THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

7. This is a summary of the representations received. 

• Surface water drainage what not be adequate . 
• Foul drainage works will involve road closures causing disruption 
• lncreas.e traffic flow on Edgecomb Park and Farriers Road 
• Combs Ford Medical Practice is closed to new patients, residents on 

the estate will . have to travel to Stow Health Practice 
• Detrimental impact on bat roosts 
• Conservation strip will be used for SUDS 
• Lack of infrastructure 
• Use of SUDs may lead to flooding elsewhere 

· • Impact on rural character of Combs village 
• Loss of privacy 

ASSESSMENT 

8. There are a number of considerations which will be addressed as follows. 

Page 93



82. 

• Principle of Development 
• Highway and Access Issues 
• Design and Layout 
• Residential Amenity 
• Landscaping 
• Biodiversity 
• Environment and Floo9 risk 
• Section 1 06 Considerations 
• Conclusion 

9. • PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 

The principle of development is established for this application under the SAAP, 
Core Strategy and its review and the recently adopted SPD. The specific 

. principles from these documents and the material considerations found within the 
NPPF are considered below. 

Local Plan 1998 

Members will be aware that the weight to be attached to the 1998 Local Plan 
must be considered carefully by reference to the NPPF to ensure consistency. 

The .saved Local Plan through policies GP1 , H13, H15, H16, and T10 supports 
good design that reflects Suffolk character, avoids adverse impacts on amenity 
and considered traffic and highway implications of development. Policy HB1 
while not wholly NPPF compliant refers to setting of historic buildings and along 
with other policies including employment matters shall be considered in the 
detailed assessment below. This development would normally be contrary to 
local plan policy H7, but is not the case as an allocated site within the SAAP and 
there are no other principle issues against the development arising from the local 
plan. 

10. The Core Strategy 2008 

Policy CS1 provides that the majority of employment, retail and housing 
development shall be directed to towns and key service centres. Policy CS2 
provides a list of possible development in the countryside. The SAAP as part of 
the development plan should be read in conjunction with the Core Strategy and . 
allows in principle for the development of Edgecomb Park. 

Policy CS4 provides that all development will contribute to the delivery of 
sustainable development and reflect the need to plan for climate change and 
then outlines issues of flood risk, pollution and biodiversity. Also included is 
encouragement of the implementation of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDs) that this application does include within its proposals. There are no 
principle issues raised in CS4 to resist the proposed development or make it 
contrary to the development plan . 

. Policy CS5 provides that all development will maintain and enhance the . 
environment, including the historic environment, design and landscape and retain 
the local distinctiveness. There are no principle issues involved in this policy and 
the_ details of the scheme in relation to this policy are assessed in the sections 
below. 

Page 94



83. 

Policy CS6' provides the need for -consideration of appropriate infrastructure and 
what may be considered . In this case the SAAP also provides a list of possible 
consideration of supporting infrastructure as too does the Development Brief 
SPD adopted. This will be considered further in the assessment below. 
However, it is noted that there is no priority order of such infrastructure 
c;;onsiderations nor that an application should be refused for failing to include any 
specific element of infrastructure. Accordingly this policy offers no principle 
issues to resist the proposed development. 

Policy CS7 provides that fifty percent of development within the district should be 
on previously developed sites and is considered in respect of both allocations 
'and windfall sites. The policy does not seek to resist greenfield sites nor that 
should these not be used prior to previously used sites. 

The proposed development is not being put forward on previously developed 
land, but the need for greenfield development is recognised and for Stowmarket 
the allowance for such development on greenfield is higher than for previously 
used sites (further reference to policy FC2 below should also be made). _ Taking 
the district as a whole there is no-reason at this time to consider the authority will 
fail to achieve the provided target in the plan period and there is no principle 
reason to resist this development. · 

Policy CS8 was replaced by the Core Strategy Focused Review 2012 policy FC2. 
This replaced policy provides that 900 dwellings in Stowmarket should be 
provided in the next ,5 years to meet the housing need and 600 of these are 
envisaged to be on greenfield sites. A total of 1525 dwellings for Stowmarket 
over the next 15 years are forecasted and this 'development will be a significant 
contributor to meet this need. 

Policy CS9 provides requirements on the density and mix of new housing 
development. The policy seeks a mix of types, sizes and affordability in terms of 
residential schemes, but does not set any specific levels or percentages to 
achieve. The proposed development provides a range of small dwellings and 
larger ones with some flat development and it is considered that the proposal 
achieves the aim of the policy. The policy also provides that new development 
should provide an average density of at least 30 dwellings per hectare. In this 
proposal a density of approximately 24 dwellings per hectare is proposed and 
while this does not fulfil this requirement being an edge of town site and -
bungalow nature proposals it is considered that the proposed density is suitable 
and appr.opriate in this location with consideration to the adjacent estates. 

11. Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) 

The Core Strategy Focused Review (CSFR) was adopted by Full Council on 20 
December 2012 and should be read as a supplement to Mid Suffolk's adopted 
Core Strategy (2008) . This document updates some of the policies of the 2008 
Core Strategy as already addressed above. 

The CSFR document does introduce new policy considerations, including Policy 
FC 1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development that refers to the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) objectives and Policy FC 1.1 - Mid 
Suffolk approach to delivering Sustainable Development that provides 

- "developme,nt proposals wiil be required to demonstrate the principles of 

Page 95



sustainable development and will be assessed against the presumption in favour 
of sustainable development as interpreted and applied locally to the Mid Suffolk 
context through the policies and proposals of the Mid Suffolk new style Local 
Plan. Proposals for development must conseri.!e and enhance the loc_al 
character of the different parts of the district. They should demonstrate how the 
proposal addresses the context and key issues of the district and contributes to 
meeting the objectives and the policies of the Mid Suffolk Core Strategy and 
other relevant documents." 

12. The Stowmarket Area Action Plan (SAAP) 

The Stowmarket Area Action Plan was adopted 21st February 2013. This 
· prC?vides a number of new policies in respect of this site as well as overarching 

policies that apply to relevant housing or commercial development within the 
defined Action Plan area. A number of these policies will be addressed in the 
appropriate sections below, but none seek to resist the principle of development . 
or its phasing. 

The site is allocated within the Stowmarket Area Action Plan under policy 6.20 · 
which provides that the area is allocated for residential development and a 
sheltered housing scheme. The planning application is for the uses set out in the 
Stowmarket Area Action Plan and therefore complies with policy 6.20. As such · 
the principle of the development is therefore acceptable. 

On consideration of the Core Strategy, Local Plan, SAAP and adopted 
Development Brief SPD officers consider that in broad terms there are no 
principle issues that the proposed phase one application is in conflict with. The 
proposed development includes all required elements as sought by the ·local 
policy framework established for this allocation: Matters of detail and 
sustainability are addressed in sections below. 

13. NPPF 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27th March 
2012. It provides that the NPPF "does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision making. Proposed 
development that accords with an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved, and 
proposed development that conflicts should be refused unless other material 
considerations indicate otherwise". The NPPF also provides (para 187) that 
"Local planning authorities should look for solutions rather than problems. and 
decision-takers at every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable 
development where possible. Local planning authorities should work proactively 
with applicants to secure developments that improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area." 

The document should be considered as a whole, but a few key points are 
outlined below for member consideration, some particularly relevant to the 
consideration of obligations assessed at the end of this report. 

Section 6 of the NPPF for housing provides that (para 49) Housing applications 
should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 

Under Paragraph 173 of the NPPF it provides that "Pursuing sustainable 

Page 96



&5 . . 

development requires careful attention to viability and costs in plan-making and 
decision-taking.. Plans should be deliverable. Therefore, the sites and the scale 
of development identified in the plan should not be subject to such a scale of 
obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be developed viably is 
threatened. To ensure viability, the costs of any requirements likely to be applied 
to development, such as requirements for affordable housing, standards, 
infrastructure contributions or other requirements should, when taking account of 
the normal cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive returns to a 
willing land owner and willing developer to enable the development to be 
deliverable". 

Section 7 of the NPPF refers to design. It provides that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development; it should contribute positively to making 
places better for people. Decisions should aim to ensure that development will 
function well. and add to the overall quality of the area, establish a strong sense 
of'place, create attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit, optimise 
the potential of the site to accommodate development, create and sustain ·an 
appropriate mix of uses and support local facilities and transport networks. 

· Furthermore it provides that development should respond to local character and 
history; and ·reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation. The NPPF goes on to state it 
is "proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness" (para 60) and 

·permission should be "refused for development of poor design that fails to take 
· the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and · 
the way it functions" (para 64). 

14. • HIGHWAY AND ACCESS ISSUES 

SAAP Policy 8.1 - Developer Contributions to a Sustainable Transport Network 
provides that the need to travel should be reduced and use of sustainable 
transport encouraged. "Development proposals will be assessed in terms of 
impact on the road network, traffic capacity, highway safety, environmental 
impact of traffic generated, pedestrian and cycle accessibility and availability and 
access to public transport. The Council will require mitigating measures to be · 
provided to the satisfaction of the highway authority where necessary." It goes · 
on to provide that developers will either make direct provision of the necessary 
tran,sport infrastructure relating to their site or will. contribute to an overall fund for 
provision of identified transport improvements in the Stowmarket Area Action 
Plan area. The policy does specifically provide that viability will be taken into 
account. 

In respect of this· allocated site SAAP policy 6.23 sets out the transport 
expectations. In accordance with this policy it is concluded that the development 
complies by securing improved transport linkages between the site and the local 
facil ities at Combs Ford and the town centre. It provides an access point to both 
Farriers Road and Poplar Hill as required . . The extension of a bus service has 
been secured through the proposed site and the town's "Stop with Real Time 
Passenger Information" service wilL be both improved and continued within the 
site~ Footpath and cycle improvements: the Combs Ford Meadow; and Combs to 
Poplar Hill Stowmarket scheme are to be secured via a Section 106 agreement. 

sec Highways Authority have confirmed no objection to the scheme. A number 
of conditions are recommended and members will find these in the bundle. There 
are a number of conditions recommended by sec and all are recommended to 

Page 97



8&. 

members. Contributions to bus stops and. public rights of way are also 
recommended. 

During the course of the application traffic concerns have been raised. Part of 
this related to ·the bus gate proposed to the centre of the site essentially 
restricting traffic in the northern section to use Farriers Road access and the 
southern housing proposed to use the Poplar Hill acces$. Farriers Road that 
leads on to Edgecomb Road is highlighted for being used as a "rat run" to avoid 
traffic calming measures on Poplar Hill and some concern was that traffic from 
the development would be specifically directed towards Edgecomb Road. 
Instead the bus gate is now removed and all traffic from the scheme will be free 
to use either and both accesses .. Accordingly it is considered that traffic from the 
development will spread out more evenly overall , but there is the risk that this site 
becomes the new "rat run". This is risk is lessened by the location of the site and 
main road route planned remains not as direct as Verneuil Ave/Edgecomb Road , 
but to ensure this will not be the new popular choice traffic calming will be 
secured within this development to ensure it is not attractive as a cut through . 

At this time the request for travel plan contributions as set out by sec for 
£198,967.00 are not recommended to members. Recently Phase 1 Chilton Leys 
another allocated site was approved and gave permission for 215 dwellings. The 
Travel Plan contribution sought for this development by SCC was £56,750.00 
(£250 per dwelling) . The contribution sought for this development represents 

· .·essentially four times that sought for Chilton Leys and differences between these 
scheme for Stowmarket needs further investigation: Further discussion on this 
matter is being sought with SCC. It is noted that the travel plan is sought as well 
as three local footpath improvement schemes and bus stop improvements that 
are recommended to. be secured. · 

Accordingly delegated authority is sought to further .examine the travel plan 
requirements and ensure it passes the required tests of being both reasonable 
and related to the development. A travel plan shall be secured for the 
development, but this detail is sought to be left to the discretion of the 
Development Management Corporate Manager. In conciusion the development 
is not considered to warrant refusal on highway grounds. · 

15. • DESIGN AND LAYOUT 

The development plan contains a number of policies on design and layout, some 
of which have been detailed in the earlier sections of this report. The SAAP does 
not contain any specific design policies in general or in relation to this allocation. 
Instead the SAAP seeks a development brief for most allocated sites and allows 
for the design principles to be explored through that process. There are 
considerations regarding wider landscape views provided by the SAAP, but these 
will be considered in sections later. 

16. In layout terms there. are a number of requirements of this development due to 
the location and its potential wider landscape impact. This development is also 
part full and part outline, but while outline the development brief provides 
significant leads to understand how development will work and need to be placed 
along the access road 

All proposed dwellings have a road frontage, and in many ways this does 
represent a traditional housing development in its principles with gardens backing 

Page 98



~. 

onto other gardens and avoiding any substantial unsupervised spaces or areas 
dominated by a rear unattractive garden fences. There are no narrow 
unobserved alleyways and car parking is either clustered or located at the sides 
of dwellings avoiding significant numbers of cars and parking dominating the 
area. 

A key element to this entire devel~pment is that all the dwellings are bungalows 
and this creates an entire different place .for Stowmarket. In addition these 
dwellings are essentially enclosed by significant green spaces need for both 
landscaping as edge of town development, but also for the service of the large 
functional SUDs system proposed. 

Overall the design and layout are considered to be acceptable, of appropriate 
quality and accords to the ·development plan, including the SAAP and adopted 
development brief. · · 

17. • RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 

Policies within the adopted development plan require, inter alia, that development 
does not materially or detrimentally affect the amenities of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties. It is considered that this proposal does not give rise to 
any concerns of loss of neighbour amenityby reason of form and design not 
least due to the bungalow approach. 

As considered in the design and layout, the majority of the proposed housing is a 
reasonable distance away from existing' dwellings. The lighting is not likely to be 
excessive beyond standard requirements for an estate and the lighting of the 
main street especially is essentially sandwiched within the centre of the site. 

The change from an undeveloped field to urban estate will be significant in terms 
of noise, but for existing residents it will be not unlike the current background 
levels of noise that already exists. Again the existing .and proposed landscape 
buffer and placement of houses away, from existing neighbours will mitigate 
some of this impact. ConstruCtion will have an adverse impact, but for a 
temporary period that is not considered unreasonable given the gain benefits of 

. housing development in consideration of wider economic growth . 

18. • LANDSCAPING 

SAAP Policy 4.2 provides that development proposals when appropriate extend 
and enhance the quality of the wider green infrastructure, maximise conservation 
and biodiversity. It goes on to recognise views and impact on the skyline across 
Stowmarket and seeks when feasible and practicable that key aspects of the 
proposed landscape improvements are put in place prior to the commencement 
of buildings works. SAAP Policy 6.22 does identify that development on this site 
will have a number of wider landscape issues to address, but this development 
deals with these significantly by essentially being single storey development only. 
In addition the proposed development provides significant public open space 

and landscaping to the western boundaries to create a new green corridor/edge 
for Stowmarket. SCC Landscaping officers do not object to the scheme and 
proposed conditions. 

19. • BIODIVERSITY 

Page 99



sa. 

Regulation 9(5) of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 
(Implemented 1st April 201 0) provides-·that all "competent authorities" (public 
bodies) to "have regard to the Habitats Directive in the exercise of its functions ." 
In order for a Local Planning Authority to comply with regulation 9(5) it must 
"engage" with the provisions of the Habitats Directive. Woolley v Marge 
determined that in order to discharge its regulation 9(5) duty a Local Planning 
Authority must consider in relation to an application (full , outline or listed building) 
the following :- · · 

(i) whether any criminal offence under the 2010 Regulations against any 
European Protected Species is likely to be committed; and 

(ii) if one or more such offences are likely to be committed , whether the LPA can 
be satisfied that the three Habitats Directive ""derogation tests"" are met. Only if 
the LPA is satisfied that all three .tests are met may planning permission be 
granted. In addition SAAP Policy 9.1 seeks that all development proposals repair 
arid strengthen ecological corridors, not isolation habitats, assess harm on 
species and propose mitigation if possible and retain nature features, plant tree 
belts where the site borders open countryside. 

In this case the site is a number of fields anc::l these have been left fallow mostly 
for some time. Survey work has been undertaken and the proposals are 
designed to provide and retain significant habitat. Overall is considered subject to 
suitable conditions that this development would not significantly harm interests to 
warrant refusal. 

20. • ENVIRONMENT AND FLOOD RISK 

The majority of the site was in use as agricultural fields and not recorded or 
considered likely to contain contamination issues above normal expectations. 

While not in flood zone 2 or 3, for a development of this size there would be 
potential surface water flood risk considerations. In addition a tributary leading to 
the Ratlesden River along the north of the site is an important factor to consider. 

· This has in this case been considered alongside a significant SUD system to 
manage surface water issues and no objection has been made by the 
Environment Agency and negotiations and agreement with SCC Flooding has 
been achieved. 

The proposed development offers a lot of open public space, despite the removal 
of the open space area (Phase3) opposite the main housing site across Poplar 
Hill. This area was proposed to serve as further open s·pace within the SAAR, 
but during the course of the application it was considered that no organisation 
would want or could afford to manage this land that was not directly part of the 
main development site. As a prominent area exposed to wide ranging views in 
the landscape its proper management and use would be critical. Its removal 
pulls the proposed development as a whole away from St Marys Church and 
Combs Wood and removes any impact on their setting . On this basis this area 
remains a field . 

21. • SECTION 106 CONSIDERATIONS . 

A lot of work has been undertaken by your officers and experts in the Council's 

Page 100



team on the viabi·lity assessment This is a "greenfield site" and while this might · 
be not as significant in cost to say "brownfield" sites in broad terms it shouid not 
be a general assumption. Greenfield sites have no existing services and all 
these must be put in. 

Various policies within the. SAAP, Local Plan , and Core Strategy list pot~ntial 
obligations to be considered for this site. The development brief also includes a 
list of potential obligations. From these sources and given the consultation 
responses the following has been identified. 

1 Contribution to Combs Ford Surgery only £60,880.00 
2 New bus stop on site £15,000.00 
3 Existing bus stop improvements off site £10,000.00 
4 Travel Plan (To be agreed) 
5 Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public footpath FP 45 £15,900.00 
6 Resurfacing of Combs Public Footpath FP 32 £6,375.00 
7 · Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public footpath FP 53 (to play area) 
£11 ,250.00 
8 Affordable Housing on site 19% 
9 . Primary/Secondary Education £48,724.00 

· 10 Pre school provision £79,183.00 
11 Libraries £32,400.00 
12 Waste £6,375.00 
13 On site public open space. 
14 OSSI Contribution . {To be agreed) 

In respect of obligation 14 a verbal update on this matter will be given at 
committee. 

22. • CONCLUSION 

This allocated location is considered right for a residential development. that 
reflects the established thrust of previous deliberations including the 
Development Brief adopted by this Council and SAAP. 

Insofar as this application is concerned it is considered that overall the scheme 
design is acceptable and of an appropriately standard of design to warrant 
permission in all the complex circumstances of this case. 

The development includes a package of benefits for mitigation of the impacts of 
the development in accordance with the development plan . 

Taking the application package as a whole Officers are content to recommend 
that planning permission be granted, with a Section 106 package that would lead 
to the further contribution of suitable housing to fulfill its five year housing supply. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Full and Outline Planning Permission be granted subject to the prior completion 
of a satisfactory Section 106 planning obligation upon terms to the satisfaction of 
the Development Management Corporate Manager to the following heads of terms 
(as generally described above):-

Page 101



. , qo. 

1 Contribution to Combs Ford Surgery only £60,880.00 
2 New bus stop on site £15,000.00 
3 Existing bus stop improvements off site £10,000.00 
4 Travel Plan (To be agreed) 
5 Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public footpath FP 45 £15,900.00 
6 Resurfacing of Combs Public Footpath FP 32 £6,37S.OO 
7 Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public footpath FP 53 (to play area) £11 ,250.00 
8 Affordable Housing on site 19% 
9 Primary/Secondary Education £48,724.00 
10 Pre school provision £79,183.00 
11 Libraries £32,400.00 
12 Waste £6,375.00 
13 On site public open space. 
14 · OSSI Contribution (To be confirmed) 
15 Phased delivery of development 
16 Publ ic rights of way on site shall be agreed. 
17 Public parking and Bus laybys shall be agreed 

And the following conditions to be imposed upon such hybrid permissio~. 

For Housing (Full) Permission 

- Standard Time Limit 
-Approved Plans Agreed 

For Housing (Outline) Permission 

- Standard Time Limit Outline 
-Reserved Matters (except access) 
-Approved Plans Agreed 

For both Elements 

-Archeological Programme of Works 
-Materials 
- External Lighting to be agreed 
- Landscaping scheme and tree protection 
- Landscaping implementation and stages for this application to be agreed. 
- Highways conditions as recommended by sec 
- Site waste management strategy to be agreed 
- Development is carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk assessment submitted by 
applicant . 
- Resource efficiency measures to be agreed during construction ~ 
- Scheme of rainwater harvesting 
- Provision of fire hydrants, number and position to be agreed. 
- Construction Mehodlogy to be agreed. 
- Ecology strategy to be agreed. 

Philip Isbell 
Corporate Manager- Development Management 

John Pateman-Gee 
Senior Planning Officer: 

Page 102



APPENDIX A - PLANNING POLICIES 

1. Mid Suffolk Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Core Strategy 
Focused Review 

Cor1 - CS1 Settlement Hierarchy · 
Cor4 - CS4 Adapting to Climate Change 
Cor5 - CS5 Mid Suffolks Environment 
CSFR-FC1 -PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC1.1 - MID SUFFOLK APPROACH TO DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CSFR-FC2 - PROVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSING 
CS SAAP - Stowmarket Area Action Plan 
Cor2 - CS2 Development in the Countryside & Countryside Villages 
Cor9 - CS9 Density and Mix 
Cora - CS8 Provision and Distribution of Housing 
Cor6 - CS6 Services and Infrastructure 

2. Mid Suffolk Local Plan 

RT12 -FOOTPATHS AND BRIDLEWAYS 
H16 -PROTECTING EXISTING RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
H15 .- DEVELOPMENT TO REFLECT LOCAL CHARACTERISTICS 
H13 -DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
T10 - HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS IN DEVELOPMENT 
GP1 - DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT 
HB1 -PROTECTION OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS 
T13 - BUS SERVICES 

3 . . Planning Policy Statements, Circulars & Other policy 

NPPF -National Planning Policy Framework 

APPENDIX B- NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

Letter(s) of representation(s) have b~en received from a total of 10 interested party(ies). 

The following people objected to the application 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 103



The following people supported the application : 

The following people commented on the application: . 
  

 

Page 104



Title: Committee Site Plan 
Reference: 1.492/15 

, 

Site: Land West of Farriers Road , Stowmarket 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
131 , High Street, Needham Market, IP6 8DL 
Telephone : 01 449 724500 
email : customerservice@csduk.com 
www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

SCALE 1 :5000 
Reproduced by permission of 

Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. 
© Crown copyright and database right 2015 

Ordnance Survey Licence number 100017810 

Date 

Page 105



~ 

BUILDING PHASE I 

BUILDING PHASE 2 

BUILDING PHASE 3 

D 
D 
EllE[] 

P
age 106



15. 

Page 107



Beaver House 
Northern Road 
Sudbury 
Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 

CONSTRUCT 
REASON 
[!JJM][fij'~[Q) 

EDGECOMB PARK, FARRIERS ROAD 
STOWMARKET. 

PHASE I PLANNING LA YOlJf 

qs. 

Page 108



Planting Plan at 1:250 @A1 

-4:ilnmmlx«<M11whldgl !
tch«<uuii).Oblrow:l500rrwn'**la. 
1m¥A!M~- ~referlospec). 

SUDs BASIN 
Bl5inl.nviMOed 11 MtiiOI'Illllf wei mNOOw ''"' • ""*' 
COI1Ielul'tr'4:lhlcelleS~III'IO~rtGrymolllha. 
Sow wllh ~~ M«< mb .. per apedbllon. 

20.,~r~tl'tlwdnatlrrothedg41 (-~). Dbi10W; 
500fmlc.,....,1m...to:le""*=:t:i~(Nrwl0~). 
(Aiow~201nm~loe-PUI)I.wntnu 
bai.Mld••.n.r'*'""''IIII'IOotherlllboroe\IIII.M .. ~ 
~led). 

~~-(f•l 

Key 

0 I Exlstlng tr&8s retained 

lawn areas 

'Meadow' grassland. 

Planting beds. 

Eff I New shrub planting. 

0 New treo planting. 

Refer also to LD 02 and 03 
for other planting areas and LD04 
for plant schedules. 

Landscape Statement in brief: 
The Phase 1 landscape scheme wiD retain mature 
trees and sections of hedge to create a strongly rural 
character for the new deveklpment. A commLf\31 
landscape area adjacent the river at \he north edge 
of lhe site wll be managed as a meadow habitat and 
feature new natfve tree planting. New MClbu of 
native hedge wll help to Integrate ¢-late boundaries. 

Wlttwn the relldenual strvet!l the scheme lndudes 
lrfHI, shrub, l'flreonlal and bulb planting selected to 
provkle COlour and Interest throughOut the year and 
wtth benefttt lot local wldllfe. Lawn areas, tree! and 
shrubl wll ptO\'ide spaUal slnJcl\lre to lh8 street 
envtronmenb. Rear garden 8!HI wll bel loft as lawn_ 
fof fut1.n rnldents to oevelop. 

::--~-~=-= 
-~-

,.. , 

-"""""""""flfrim R*, Stoot;nwkel· Plwe I 

............ 
o.iJ,NP'IIIIIai"'Sllcdl·,._.,. 

'" rnM 
RM 1- l:lOO(ijAI r~-- I.DOI 

P
age 109



l th. 

( ... ) ~· ·~~· ~J 
~///1 

Key 

'Meadow' grassland. 

Planting beds. 

[if I New shrub planting. 

0 New tree planting. 

Refer also to LO 01 and 03 
for other planting areas and LD04 
for planting schedules. 

A..IRMMII Phil,. t O.Jign 

~~~:::= 

=---~-~:t= ---
.... 

CanstniCIRWOI 

P~RnidmtillDnclopmml 

fllrimROid,Siownwbt · l'lwel -· DflaWrs..,P'-
... 1·rtllrtl5clil .. """" ... l:lOO MAI 

mil• 
UJOJ 

P
age 110



S..LD02b'~olpiM*'I. S..L002for~•llor!ol~. 

Oak 

~· (I ) 

0 I Existing trees retained 

- Lawnareas 

'Meadow' grassland. 

Planting beds. 

New shrub planting. 

New troo planting. 

Refer also to LO 01 and 03 
for other planting areas and L004 
for planting schedules. 

RM l14~l015 

:.:-PC»~-~=--..= 
~-

PropoaedRaidcmaiOr.•tlopmenl 
Furim ROlli, SIO'tomarkd • 1"'-c I 

......... 
OIIIW ....... PIMI 
5kctl·SCMIIIISilc 

RN 1- f!4.JII~ I...,- 275/\4 

- l:lOOti'Al ~-·- WOl 

P
age 111



PHASES II AND Ill 

.. - .. .. Proposed aurface water~ 
(Adoptable) 

0 
Adoptal»e chamber 1200 nvn diameter 
manholetoellherType A. BorE 1o 
WaterAulhorttyapedllcatlonancl 
epprov81. 

ALL ADOPTABLE DRAINAGE WORKS MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ANGLIAN WATER SEWERS FOR ADOPTION 6TH EDITION 

__ ...... w.. _________ .... 

... ----·--·--Ciooo·----____ ,. ______ _ 
-.. - ........ ___ ,. .. ____ _ -------...... ·---

-
~ 

P
age 112



DRAINAGE LEGEND 

PHASE I 

_ _ _ _ _ Proposed surface water sewer 
(Adoptable) 

0 Adoptable chamber 1200 mm diameter 
manholetoettherTypeA..BorEto 
Water Authority spectbtkln Md ._ .... 

~~Porouspavlngb.ys 

~~ SheRidPTtvataOriYe 

[[] 
Adoptable Sewer Easement {Wtdltl 
Shown) 

PHASES II AND Ill 

----- Proposed surface water 1ewtr 
(Adoptable) 

0 
Adoptable chamber 1200 mm diameter 
manhOle to etther Type A. BorE to 
WaterAuthofltyspedlk:allonand ·-""-

'\, 

ALL ADOPTABLE DRAINAGE WORKS MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ANGLIAN WATER SEWERS FOR ADOPTION 6TH EDITION 

<',,,.. 

.. -·--- .. -·-·-------.... .. -... ,., ... _.. ... __ _ ___________ ., __ _ 
------·----·---___ ..... til .. ---·--· 

----·-·---------·-··-· .. ---·--··----·-~---=::::-.:::::::.::.=.:..--·--· 
... --·---------

... ..__ .... rN-~- ... ---·--·--__ ......... ------·--""" 
""'----·--·--~·----·-- .... ·------
-·-··~·---··-------------·---

---·--·----·--·--________ .,_ .... __ _ 
-------·--·---________ ..., ___ , ___ ..... 
--... ·-·-

0 -

P
age 113



257400 

257300 

257200 

251100 

257000 

256900 

~ 
1 ..... 
~ ', 
\ ·. 
•,'. 

...... ... 
\\ 
\\ 

604000 

\\ l 

389 
6·681 

604 100 604200 604 300 

361 

M•"' ,,.,/·•'''''''' 

. ,,,."i·,:·· 

'' •,'· ,,, .. •'' '' ,,/ •''' 

604400 

[J~ ,,,<"'''""'' 

~ ., .............. /'' ~ 
604000 &04100 004200 604300 eo.uoo 

0 100m 

'" 
\ 420 ,.m 

604500 

7 

80.&500 

421 
7·PIO 

4 
7· 

!536 
?2·460 

251400 

257300 

251200 

257100 

257000 

2$8900 

e GroundSure 
ENVIRONMENTA L INSIGHT 

Site Details:' 

LAND OFF FARRIERS 
ROAD,STOWMARKET, IP14 
2NS 

Client Ref: 1235 
Report Ref: GS-1400434 
Grid Ref: 604278, 257179 

Map Name: County Series N 

Map date: 1927 ·+· Scale: 1:2,500 

s 
Printed at: 1:2,500 

Surveyed 1927 
Revised 1927 

Surveyed 1927 Edition NJA 
Revised 1927 CopylightNIA 

Edition NIA Levelled NIA 
Copylighl N/A 

Levelled NIA 

Produced by 
~i'! Ordnance 
_-.!.I_!:J Survey• GroundSure Environmental Insight 

T: 08444 159000 
Ucensed Partner E: info@groundsure.com 

W: www.groundsure.com 

C> Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100035207 

Production date: 16 April2014 

To view map legend click here Legend 

I 

-2 

P
age 114



603200 603400 60SGOO 603800 604000 604200 &04400 604GOO 604800 605000 GOS200 60S400 

2.51400 

258200 =t 
258000 ~ 2!1000 

~ 

257100 25781)0 

257600 I 257800 

257400 257400 

25noo 257200 

2.57000 257000 

256800 256800 

256600 .. 258600 

258400 256400 

256200 256200 

256000 256000 

6032.00 603400 603100 60$600 ...... 104200 60«00 60.4600 &O.UOO 605000 805200 605400 

0 500m 

e GroundSure 
ENVIRONMENTAL INSIGHT 

Site Details: 

LAND OFF FARRIERS 
ROAD,STOWMARKET, IP14 
2NS 

Client Ref: 1235 
Report Ref: GS-1400434 
Grid Ref: 604278,257179 

·Map Name: 1:10,000 Raster N 

Map date: 2002 w+• Scale: 1:10,000 

Printed at: 1:10,000 

~t!l Ordnance 
_a!I_!OJ Survey• 
Ucensed Partner 

s 

2002 

Produced by 
GroundSure Environmental Insight 
T: 08444 159000 
E: info@groundsure.com 
W: www.groundsure.com 

IC> Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100035207 

Production date: 16 April 2014 

To view map legend click here Legend 

-
I~ ~ . 

P
age 115



FRO NT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 

PLOTS: 10 1 & 129 ALLBRICKWORKTOBE:ANOLIANORAJilGE~ 

ROOF TIU:..'i TO BE: SANDTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE DOUBLE PANTILES 

DID WITH TERRACOTTA RED RIDGE TILES. 

PLOT: 104: AU. BRICKWORK 1U BE: ANOLIAN Buf-F HANDMADE 

ROOF TIU:..'i TO DE: MARLEY EOGEMERE SMOOTH GREY lNTERLOCKlNG SUTE.'i 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N -~ s 
Bungalow Type I WISTERIA E.S. I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J~~ lflE[D) 
X>Omu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DIVIWIHGTfl'\.r 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
w. PLOT Nos: 101, 104 & 129.AS. 

8EOROOM.1. 

~ "'"' DeTAil.$ " 

p L A N 
"""' 1 OUIGNIY I MA.R2015 

1:100 r DRAW .... ., GB I 
OAAW'~~. 2084/AD/2/ 101 ""' 

P
age 116



FRO NT SIDE 

DID D 
[][] DID 

REAR SIDE 

.E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom 

p L A N 

MATERIALS: 

PLOTS: 102 & 103 ALLBRICKWORKTOBE: ANOLIANORANOtSTOCK 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOfT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE OOUULE PANTILES 

PLOT: 109: ALL BRICKWORK TO 8£: ANGUAN BUJ."F HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFTTERRAl."'lTA t.."'O!'ICRETE OOUOL.E PANTILES 

PLOT: 112: ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANOUAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTI A RED RIOOE TILES. 

BUNGALOW 1YPE ' WAVENEY' 
floor area 83.36m 2 (897ft 2 ) 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ lf!E[D) 
""'"" 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DAAWI/'IGTm.! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOTS: 102.HANDED, 103,109 & 112.AS. 

liLY DAn ~~"' 

""'u I DaiGIOIIY I MAR2015 
1:100 

I ~-" GB I 
~.,..... 2084/ AD/2/102 ""' 

" 

-

P
age 117



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

p L A N 

Ill 
SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: _MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE AND HIP TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WtUTE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[Mj)~ 1J1E[O) 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OMWIHGlTTU! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 105. HANDED, 106.AS. 

.... "" DnAI\.5 

5CAW I OH!Gfri.Y I ,.,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I OAA"'" GB I 
__ ,,.._ 2084/ AD/2/103 "" 

~ 

" 

P
age 118



FRONT SIDE 

f 

D D D D ~ 
DO f-f-- I-- [][] 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N 

Garage 

p L A N 

s 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY SMOOTH GREY EDGEMERE 

INTERLOCKING SLATES WITH TERRACOTTA 

RIDGE TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I SOUTH WOLD I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury ·REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ mE [D) 
X>O mu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OMWUIGTfTU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 107.AS. 

"" "" ~~ ... " 

"""'' I OfSIGHIY I MAR2015 
1:100 I OMWI'IIT GB I 

"""'"""· 2084/ AD/2/104 '" L 

-0 
:41 

P
age 119



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

p L A N 

SIDE 
MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTTA RIDGE AND HIP TlLES 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type' ALDEBURGH ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[M]~ 1J1E[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DIVoWINGTnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 108.A5. 

UV DATI! ~·'"' 

""'" I D($1Gftl1' I ,.,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 IDIUIWNI1' GB I 
~"'"""" 2084/ A D/2/105 "" jj__l_l 

" 

-a . 

P
age 120



FRONT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: A!<GUAN DUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOfTTERRACOITA CONCRETE DOUDI..S PANTILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHJTE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T 
Bungalow Type I W A VENEY G I 

N I 0 s 
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

-i . 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ lfiE[D) 

Garage 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OIIAWIHGTTT\.t' 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 110.AS. 

~ ,..,. DeTAILS " 

K.OUS I DfSIGNIY I .... 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I OIIAWNIY GB I p L A N 
"""'"""" 2084/ AD/2/106 "" 

P
age 121



FRONT 

REAR 

E L 

Garage 

DID 

E 

p 

D 
DO 

v 

L 

A T 

8EDAOOM. l. 

A 

SIDE 

SIDE 

I 0 

w. 

N 

N 5 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLJANOI\ANGESTOCK 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARU3Y E.OGEMERE 5MOOTII GREY INTERLOCK.l/'10 SLATE!'i 

WITH TERRACO'ITA RIDGE TIL.E.'i. 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHJTE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'WISTERIA E.S. ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

--0 . 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~~[DJ 

X>Omu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OMWlltGTnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 111.AS. 

"" .. , oeTAit.$ " 

sc.us I DHICiNIY I MA.R2015 
1:100 I""""'' GB I 

"""'"""'· 2084/ AD/2/107 "" 

P
age 122



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom Bedroom Sitting 

p L A N 

Ill 
SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE AND HIP TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA!BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 3762.41 lLm~~ lJlE[D) 
""'mu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OMWI HGTTT\.1! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 113.AS. 

..., om OfT AILS 

SGO>S 1 OUIGH IY I .. ,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 
1 DMWN IY GB I 

"""w'"".... 2084/ AD/2/108 ""' 

---
i 

" 

P
age 123



FR 0 NT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 

ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK 

Ql IDIDI l~lm IDD I I I I I I j 
ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N s BUNGALOW TYPE 'WAVENEY' 
floor area 83.36m z (897ft •) 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbu ry REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

--~ 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ liTE [D) 

Garage 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRI ERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OAAWINC TITU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOTS: 114.AS. 

Bedroom 
~ 0-'Tt: ""~" 

.. 

p L A N 
OCN.U I OCS1GN8Y I • .,. 

1:100 
MAR 2015 

I OAAWf'ltT GB I 
.... ~..... 2084/ AD/2/109 '" ' 

P
age 124



FRONT 

a p 
Garage II Garage 

PLAN 

SIDE 

D 
DO 

REAR 

D 
DO 

SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

AS SOCIA TED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA/DARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J[M]~1J[E[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OAAWLI'IGTITU 

GARAGE DETAILS 

PLOTS: 101/102, 104/105, 112/113.AS. 

"" 
. .,.. DI!TAII..S 

saus 

" 

I orstGH•v I .... 
MAR 2015 

1:100 
, .... w • ., G. BLOYS 

OAAW'""~· 2084/ AD/2/110 
..., 

I I I I I I I I I I I 

--ua 

P
age 125



FRONT SIDE REAR SIDE 

d 
Garage 

P LA N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCINBARGEBOARDS TO BE WlllTE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~Jli¥TI~ 1JIE[DJ 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD. STOWMARKET 

M.AWIHCnn! 

DETACHED GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOT: 108.AS. 103 & 129.HANDED 

"" """' ,.,~ ... 

""'" I DCSI&I.Y I MAR. 2015 
1:100 

[ ""-" GB I 
"""'""'" 2084/ AD/2/111 "" L 

-~ 

" 

P
age 126



F R 0 NT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 

ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANOLIA'N BUFf' HANDMADE 

ROOF Tll.E.'i TO BE: SANDTOfoT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE OOUBLE PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA!BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 
Bungalow Type I HA.lBB I 

E E L N v T 0 A I s --
""' Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 

Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ 1J1E[D) 
Sitting Kitchen I I Kitchen Sitting >OOnn.o 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DMWIHGTm.f 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 117/118, 125/126. AS. 

.... '"' DfTAU.S " 

p L A N 
oc.ous I OHIGNIY I MAR20!5 

1:100 I"'""' GB I 
""'""""'· 2084/ AD/2/112 

.... 

P
age 127



FRONT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 

I 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGUAN ORANGE STOCK 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANOTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE DqUBLE PANTILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T N I 0 s 
Bungalow Type I HA 2BB I 

-
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 

6\ . 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Bedroom Sitting 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [J[f0j)~ 'ffiE[O) 

'"'""" 
EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OMWII'IGTm.f 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 119/120.AS, 123/124.HANDED 

~ ,.., oeTAII.$ .. 

p A N L SCA<.<S l OHIGf'l lf I MAR2015 
1:100 r OR.AWIUY GB I 

..... ,..... 2084/ AD/2/113 ~ 

P
age 128



! 
FRONT SIDE 

D 
[][] ! 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Sitting Bedroom Bedroom Sitting 

p L A N 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICK WORK TO BE: ANGLW< ORANGE STOCK 

CLADDING TO BE: HAJlOif PLANK 'B()()l}tBA Y Ol.UE' 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARl.fY SMOOTH GREY EOGEMERE INTERLOCKING SL..ATES 

WITH TERRACOTfA RIDGE TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCINBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I HA 2BB I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk .COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J~~ 1J1E[D) 
X>Omu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OII.AWING TnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOTS: 121, 122.AS. 

"" ~~ ""M" " 

sc.o.os I DUIGIIIY I MAR2015 
1:100 I DAAWN8Y GB I 

"'"'"""'· 2084/ AD/2/114 "" _LLLl 

--wU . 

P
age 129



FRONT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BR!CK WORK TO BE: ANGl.lAN ORANGE STOCK 

CLADDING TO BE: HARDIE PLANK 'BOOTHBAY BLUE' 

ROOF Til£5 TO DB: MAXUY SMOOTH GREY EDGEMERB INTf.Rl.OCKlNG SLATES 

WITH TERRA carT A RIDOE TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHJTE PVCu ! D 
[][] 

REAR SIDE 
Bungalow Type 'HA 2BB' 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 
Beaver House .CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

--00 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[MU~ ~[D) 
""''"" 

Bedroom 
Sitting 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DAAWIMG TTTU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
Bedroom Bedroom PLOT Nos: 127 /128.AS. 

IU!V DATI! """" " 

""'' I Of:SICiH 8 Y I MA.R 2015 
1:100 I"'""' GB I 

p A N L 
""'"'""~· 2084/ AD/2/115 "" I I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 130



FRO NT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK TO DE: ANGLlAf\1 ORANGE STOCX 

CLADDING TO 81!: HARDIE l'I..ANK 1JOOTHDA Y llLU£' 

ROOF TILES TO DB: MARLEY SMOOTH GREY EOG£MERB INTERLOCKING SL.ATES 

Wlllf TERRACOTTA RIDGE TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu ! D 
[)[) 

REAR SIDE 
Bungalow Type I HA 2BB I 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

--Jl . 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~ffi0)~ ~[D) 

""'""' 
Sitting 

Bedroom 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OMWINGTITU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
Bedroom Bedroom PLOT Nos: 115/116.AS. 

"" . .,, oeTAit.$ " 

SCAU<S I D£SIGNaY I MA.R2015 
J 1:100 I OMWNIIY GB I 

p L A N 
,...,,..... 2084/ AD/2/116 "" 

P
age 131



FRONT 

REAR 

E L E v A 

p L 

SIDE 

SIDE 

T I 0 N s 

A N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON 

EXTERNAL CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDlERS OVER OPENINGS TO 

BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT TERRA COTTA CONCRETE DOUBLE 

PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND F ASCIA!BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I DUNWICH I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J~~~[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OIU.Wlf'fCTnU: 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 201, 203 , 214.AS. 

~ '"' ~~ ... 

"""" 1 DDJ~IY I DATI 
MAR 2015 

1:100 
1""'-"GB I 

"" 

" 

.,...,.,.~. 2084/ AD/2/201 1-rr--r 

P
age 132



FR 0 NT SIDE 
---- --

I 

D D D D D I!] 
lJO .DO - 1-[][] 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 

Garage Garage 

p L A N 

! 

N s 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT TERRA COTTA CONCRETE DOUBLE 

PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASC!A/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I SOUTHWOLD I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ lTIElDJ 
"""'"' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DIIAWII'IGTITI.I: 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 202.AS. 

""' . .,. """" 

"""' I DI!SICfoi8T I • .,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 r DIIAWIUY GB I 
""'1 

" 

'*'"'"""" 2084/ AD/2/202 [IIIIIILLL 

P
age 133



FRONT SIDE 

I IIi 
REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N 5 

Sitting Bedroom Bedroom 

p L A N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON 

EXTERNAL CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO 

BE: ANGUAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TLLES TO BE: 

PLOT: 204: SANDTOFT TERRACOTTA CONCRETE DOUBLE PANTILES 

PLOT: 2 16: MARLEY SMOOTH GREY EDGEMERE INTERLOCKING 

SLATES WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASC!A/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHJTE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~M~~[O) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DMWINGTTTU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 204.AS, 216.HANDED. 

IU!V D.IITE ""~~ 

""'' 1 0di~IY I MAR2015 
1:100 r ~ .... GB I 

~.,.,._ 2084/AD/2/203 .... L 
... L.lJ....l. 

" 

P
age 134



F R 0 NT 

REAR 

E L E v A 

p L 

SIDE 

! 

SIDE 
T I 

A N 

0 N s 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO JOOmm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT TERRACOTT A CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASC!AIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type ' SOUTHWOLD ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J~~ lJIE[O) 
""''~ 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DIVIWII'ICl1TU! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 205.A5. 

"" """ ""~" 

"""" I DfSIGI'IIIY I ,..,.. 
1:100 

MAR 2015 

I OAAWNI1' GB I 
""' 

" 

""'"'"""'· 2084/ AD/2/204 r I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 135



FRONT SIDE 

! 

REAR st DE 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

p L A N 

MATERIALS: 
PLOT: 212 

BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAJNING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: 

PLOTS: 22 11222 
BRICKWORK TO BE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: 

SANDTOFT TERRACOTT A CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK 

SANDTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTlLES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I SOUTHWOLD I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~nlOJ 
.IO&TITLf 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DIUIWII'IGTtT\.! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 212 & 222.AS. 

221.HANDED 

~ ""' ""'"' 

oc.ou• I DHIGNOf I MA.R 2015 
1:100 I DIUIWUJ GB I 

.. 'J 

" 

""'"'"""" 2084/ AD/2/208 r I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 136



FRONT 

REAR 

E L E v A 

p L 

SIDE 

SIDE 

T r o· N 5 

A N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON 

EXTERNAL CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO 

BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY SMOOTH GREY EDGEMERE 

INTERLOCKING SLATES WITH TERRACOTT A 

RIDGE TlLES 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I DUNWICH I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ 1J1E[O) 
~= 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OII.AWIMGTTT\.1. 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 213.A5. 

~ '"' "'"~" 

""" I OHI~ IY I ,.,, 
1:100 

MAR 2015 

I DMWN I Y GB I 
.... M..... 2084/ AD/2/209 "' 

" 

P
age 137



FR 0 NT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom Bedroom Sitting 

p L A N 

SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON 

EXTERNAL CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO 

BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY SMOOTH GREY EDGEMERE 

INTERLOCKING SLATES WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE AND lllP TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASC!AIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WI-UTE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEIS TON' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~JM~ !TIE [D) 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DM.WlNG TfT\.1 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 225 & 229.AS. 

226. HANDED. 
.,. Mn .,..~ .. 

"""' I ot:SIG/II aY I MAR2015 
1:100 I DM.WIU Y GB I ... 

~ 

""'"'~- 2084/ AD/ 2/210 I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 138



FRO NT SIDE 

DID D 
[][] DID 

REAR SIDE 

FL OOR PL A N 

MATERIALS: 
PLOT: 224 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFTTERRAcorTA CONCRETE DOUBLE PAI"mLES. 

PLOT: 227 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: A!<GLIANORANGrmxx 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY SMOOTII GREY EOCEMERE IJ'(ff..RLQCKlNO 

SLA TE.tj WITH TERRA COTTA RIDGE TILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCINBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

BUNGALOW TYPE 'WAVENEY ' 
f loor area 83.36m 2 (897ft 2 ) 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ 1flE[O) 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OR.AWUIG TrtU: 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOTS: 224.AS, 227.HANDED. 

""' .. , ""~" 

"""' I OESICONil I .. , 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I OII.AWUT GB I 
-··,..~· 2084/ AD/2/213 ""' 

" 

P
age 139



DO 
[)[] 

FR 0 NT SIDE REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N s MATERIALS: 

ALL IJRICK WORK TO Uf: ANGUAf'l ORANGE STOCK 

CLADDING TO DE: HARDIE f't.ANK 'DOOTHBA Y BL.UE' 

ROOF T ILE.'! TO BE: 1\tARLEY SMOOTH GREY EDGS.MERf INTERLOCKING SLA TE.t; 

WITH TERRAC01TA RIDGE TillS. 

WINDOWS AND FASCINBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type ' ALDEBURGH ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~~[DJ 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DM.WJM;;TTT\1 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 232.AS. 

~ '"' .,.,~ ... " p L A N 
"""' I Dt!SIGfi8Y I MA.R 2015 

1:100 I OM._., GB I 
-··""~· 2084/ AD/2/214 ""' 

I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 140



FRONT SIDE REAR SIDE 

v 
Garage 

-I 

P L A N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND F ASC!NBARGEBOAROS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 l~~~~[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OAAWIIIGTTT\.f 

DETACHED GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 213 ,216 ,220,224 & 228.AS. 

217. HANDED. 

""''"' ""~" 

"""' I DI!SIG"IY I ,.,, 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I ,.,._., GB I 
"""'"'"" 2084/ AD/2/215 

.... 

" 

P
age 141



FRONT 

\[11}7 
Garage II Garage 

P LA N ' 

SIDE 

D 
DO 

REAR 

D 
DO 

SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

AS SOCIA TED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffo lk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~lf~[O) 
""'"'"' EDGECOMBE PARK 

FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DM.WIHGTtru 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 203/204,206/207, 218/219 

229/230, 231/232. AS. 
~· """' ""~" " 

"""' I ot:SIGfoiiY I""" MAR 2015 
1:100 

~ --" G. BLOYS 

_., .. M , 2084/ AD/2/216 "" 

I 

P
age 142



FRONT SIDE REAR SIDE 

q II v 
Garage II Garage 

PLAN 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

AS SOCIA TED DWELLING 

WrNDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~JU\0U~IJ~[D) 
"'"""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OM.wtNG 1'1"'U 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 225/226.AS 

... "" "'~" " 

""'" -r otSJGNIY I ,. .. 
1:100 

MAR 2015 

~ --" G. BLOYS 

""""'"""· 2084/ AD/2/217 ... L 
_1_1111 Ill LL 

P
age 143



FRONT 

Q 
Garage Garage 

n 

PLAN 

SIDE REAR 

D 
DO 

SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOClA TED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~u~[D) 
... ~ 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DMWIHGTITU! 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOT: 223. AS. 

'" ~~ ""'~" " 

"""" 10U"'"'' I ~~ MAR 2015 
1:100 r ~-" G. BLOYS 

~··""- 2084/AD/2/218 
... 

I I I I I LLLl__L 

' 

P
age 144



FRONT 

Garage Garage 

n 

P L A N 

SIDE 

)7 

0 
DO 

REAR SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WI-UTE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffo lk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 3762.41 [L~~~u~[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OM.WI/'IGTtl\1 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 227.AS 

~ "'"' ""~" " 

""" I DUlGHIY I .... 
1:100 

MAR 2015 

1"'-" G. BLOYS 

"'"'" '•· 2084/ AD/2/219 
~ 

P
age 145



FRONT 

[][][] l!J I 

REAR 

E L E v A 

p L 

SIDE 

! 

SIDE 
T I 

A N 

0 N s 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: 

PLOTS: 30 I & 302 

PLOT: 307 

SANDTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES. 

SANDTOFT TERRACOTT A CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type I SOUTH WOLD I 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT , Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 ~J~~ 1J1E[O) 
'""'~ EDGECOMBE PARK 

FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

DMWINGTnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 301 ,307.A5 , 302.HANDED. 

""' "'"' ""'~" " 

"""'' I D~SLGN av I MA.R2015 
1:100 I OAAW'I&Y GB I 

"'"'~~. 2084/ AD/2/301 
... [ 
1 I I I. I I Ll ..... LL. 

-.. 

P
age 146



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

p L A N 

SIDE 
MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCH ES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT RUSTIC RED CONCRETE DOUBLE PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type ' ALDEBURGH ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~~[DJ 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD. STOWMARKET 

OAAWIHGTnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 303.AS . 

.... '""' DI!TAII.S 

,, ...... I DESIGN IY I ... ,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I ,.... .... GB I 
,.,.,,..... 2084/ AD/2/302 .... 

---

" 

P
age 147



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom Bedroom Sit ting 

p L A N 

Ill 
SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINlNG 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE AND HlP TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffo lk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[Ml]~ 1f!E[D) 
""""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OAAWING 1'TTU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 304.AS. 

"'~ .... Dn41l5 

"""" I Ot:SIGfoiiY I MA.R2015 
1:100 I DAAW"8T GB I 

'"' 

" 

"""'"""" 2084/ AD/2/303 I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 148



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom Bedroom Sitting 

p L A N 

Ill 
SIDE 

MATERIALS: 

BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TTLES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTT A RIDGE AND HIP TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WI-UTE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~~[O) 
""'""' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DII.AWIIGTITU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 304.AS. 

.... '"" "''"' 

"""' 10Hi~ll I ,.,. 
MAR 2015 

1:100 r OltAWNIIT GB I .... 

" 

"'"'""""· 2084/ AD/2/303 I I I I I I I I I I 

P
age 149



FRONT SIDE REAR 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Bedroom Bedroom Sitting 

Bedroom 

p L A N 

SIDE 
MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK: UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL, TO QUOINS ON EXTERNAL 

CORNERS & ARCHES/SOLDIERS OVER OPENINGS TO BE: 

ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. ALL REMAINING 

BRICKWORK TO BE ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE. 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EDGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKING SLATES 

WITH TERRACOTTA RIDGE AND HIP TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'LEISTON ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT I Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01 787 376241 [L~[M~~[D) 
X>Omu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OIIAWIHGTnU: 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No : 305.AS. 

..., '"' OfiAil.S " 

"""'' I DHIGHIY I MA.R2015 
1:100 I DAAW1'18Y GB I 

,...,~~. 2084/ AD/ 2/304 
..., 
..lli 

-

P
age 150



FRONT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGUA.'14BUFFHANDMADE 

ROOF TlLES TO BE: MAIU..EY EOOEM..ER£ SMOOTil GR£Y IHTERLOCKING 

D 
[][] DID DID 

SLATES WITt! TERRACOTTA RIDGE TILES 

WINDOWS AND FASCJAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N 
Bungalow Type 'W A VENEY G' 

s -
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road • 

~ 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Garage Garage 
Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~~[D) 

""'""' 
EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OMWIHGTTTU! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT No: 306.AS. 

~ ... ,. 06M<S " 

SCA<.<S I otSIGf'I•Y I ..... 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I OAAWNIIY GB I p L A N 
.... ,.... 2084/ AD/2/305 "" 

P
age 151



FRONT SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN OUFP HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT TERRA COlT A CO~ CRETE OOUULE PANTIU!..'i 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N 
Bungalow Type I WISTERIA E.S. I 

s 
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~lTIE[O) 
X>Onru 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OAAWINGTITU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
w. 

PLOT No: 308.AS. 
BEDROOM. l 

MV OAT! ~~ .. " 

p L A N 
KoO<.U I OHiGiolll I ,.,, 

MAR 2015 
1:100 I OAAWNIJY GB I 

""w'""- 20B4/ AD/2/306 
.... 

P
age 152



F R 0 NT SIDE 

D D D D 
0_0 [][] 

! 

REAR SIDE 

E L E v A T I 0 N s 

Garage 

p L A N 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK UP TO 300mm ABOVE D.P.C. LEVEL AND TO ENTRANCE 

ARCH TO BE: ANGLIAN ORANGE STOCK. 

ALL REMAINING BRICKWORK TO BE: ANGLIAN BUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOFT TERRACOTTA CONCRETE 

DOUBLE PANTILES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA/BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Bungalow Type 'SOUTHWOLD ' 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[f0i]~ ~[D) 
""'""' EDGECOMBE PARK 

FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DAAWINGTm.J! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 309.AS. 

310.HANDED 

~ '"' ""'~" 

"""" I OHIGf'IBf 1 MA.R2015 
1:100 I OMWN8f GB I 

.,...., .. _ 2084/ AD/2/307 ~ 

" 

-. 

P
age 153



DO 
DO 

FRONT SIDE 
MATERIALS: 

Al.L ORICK WORK TO UB: ANGUAN ORANGE STOCK 

CLADDING TO DE: I lARD IE PLANK 'DOOTHBA Y Ol.UE' 

ROOF TILE.'i TO BE: MAJU..EY SMOOTII GREY EDGEMERE INTEJU.OCK.JNG SL.An:."i 

WITH TER.MOOTTA RlD(jETlLES. 

WINDOWS AND FASCWBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

REAR SIDE 
Bungalow Type 'DUNWICH ' 

E E L v A T N 
Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

-.c 
~ . 

0 I s 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~ffi1j]~ lnE[O) 
'"""" 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

DAAWINGTTTU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 311.AS. 

"" '"' OflM'-' .. 

p 
""""" I DfSJGH8Y I MA.R2015 

1:100 I OIIAWNBY GB I L A N 
.... ~..... 2084/ AD/2/308 "" 

P
age 154



FR 0 NT SIDE 

DID ~11010 
REAR SIDE 

Bedroom 

FLOOR PLAN 

MATERIALS: 

ALL ORICK WORK TO IJE: ANGLIAN ORANOE STOCK 

ROOF TILES TO BE: MARLEY EOGEMERE SMOOTH GREY INTERLOCKTNG SLATt.'i 

WrTHTERRACOTTA RIOCrETfLES 

BUNGALOW IYPE 'WAVENEY' 
fl oor area 83.36m 2 (897ft 2 ) 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~lfiE[D) 
"""'"' 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD. STOWMARKET 

DAAWINGTITU! 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT: 312.AS. 

~ DATI ~~ .. 

"""" I ()[SJGfriiY I MAR.Z015 
1:100 I .... _, GB I 

.,....,..... 2084/ AD/2/309 ""' 

-

i 

" 

P
age 155



! 
FRONT SIDE 

Ill ! 
REAR SIDE 

ELEVATIONS: 

FLOOR PLAN 

MATERIALS: 
ALL BRICKWORK. TO BE: ANGLIA/11 DUFF HANDMADE 

ROOF TILES TO BE: SANDTOPT TERRA COTTA CONCRETE IX>liBI£ PANTILES 

WINDOWS AND FASC!NBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

BUNGALOW 1YPE ' LAMBOURNE K ' (floor area 
931ft') 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~~~ 1J1E[D) 
""'"" 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

DMWIHGTnU 

PLANS & ELEVATIONS 
PLOT Nos: 313 . HANDED. 

314. A.S. 
uY DATI! ~M.S 

SCM.OS l OfSIGHIY I ,., 
MAR 2015 

1:100 I DAAW!'IIY GB I 
""'"'"'.. 2084/ AD/2/310 

~ 

• 

" 

P
age 156



D D 
DO DO 

FRONT SIDE REAR SIDE 

q II P 
Garage II Garage 

PL AN 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIAIBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[t\1'1]~1J[E[] 
""'nru 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OMWIHGTITU 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 301/302,307/308, 

311/312 , 313/314.AS. 

"" """' D"AlL$ " 

scow I OESIGKIY I om MAR 2015 
1:100 I ""'""" G. BLOYS 

"""'""... 2084/ A D/2/311 ""' 

' -

P
age 157



FRONT SIDE REAR SIDE 

q 
Garage 

PLAN 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCIA!BARGEBOARDS TO BE WHITE PVCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[f01]~ lJlE[D) 
~nru 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD, STOWMARKET 

OM.WIIIGTm.f 

DETACHED GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOT: 303.AS. 

""""' """"" 

........ 1 1XSIGN.Y I MAR2015 
1:100 r.,...-., GB I 

""' 

.. 

.,....,,._ 2084/ AD/21312 
f I I I I I I I I I 

-

P
age 158



FRONT 

q 
Garage Garage 

n 

PL A N 

SIDE REAR 

D 
DO 

SIDE 

MATERIALS: 
BRICKWORK AND ROOF TILES TO MATCH 

ASSOCIATED DWELLING 

WINDOWS AND FASCINBARGEBOARDS TO BE WHlTE PYCu 

Beaver House CONSTRUCT Northern Road 
Sudbury REASON Suffolk COlO 6XQ 

Sudbury 01787 376241 [L~[f\1j]~1J~[DJ 
X>Omu 

EDGECOMBE PARK 
FARRIERS RD , STOWMARKET 

OIUIWIHGT1TU 

GARAGE DETAILS 
PLOTS: 304 & 305.AS 

"" ~" DI!TAIL.S " 

""" I OUIGIOI81' _l "" MAR 2015 
1:100 I ,... • .,, G. BLOYS 

""'"'"""'· 2084/ AD/2/313 "' I I L LU LLLL 

~ 

P
age 159



From: Michelle Marshall 
Sent: 22 June 2015 17:18 
To: Planning Admin 
Subject: Planning application 1492/15 

lilt. 5towmQrrct_ PGrish 

Please see below for comments from Stowmarket Town Council regarding planning 
application 1492/15: 

No objection be raised to the grant of planning permission , however, the Town Council 
wishes to raise the following points: 

I) That the proposal will result in significant extra strain being placed upon the existing foul 
sewage system. Residents of Combs Lane are already adversely affected due to the 
inadequacy of the foul sewage system and the Town Council would expect that Anglian 
Water install an addition to the system in order for it to be able to cope with the increase in 
demand; 

ii) That measures must be taken to adequately and efficiency deal with the drainage of clear 
water; 

iii) That with regard to the provision of healthcare services, significant additional pressure 
would be placed upon the Combs Ford Doctors Surgery. At present the surgery serves the 
maximum number of patients and has been closed to new patients until May, 2016. If, and 
when , the surgery opens its books to new patients, an increase in people registering with the 
surgery due to the creation of the 185 new dwellings would have an adverse effect on the 
services that it would be able to provide. 

iv) That with regard to access to the proposed development, there was already significant 
pressure upon the local road network and in particular, Edgecomb Road and Poplar Hill. 
Edgecomb Road is a very well used residential road and the proposal to provide access to 
75 new dwellings via the road would further increase the traffic pressure; 

v) That all of the road infrastructure should be built as Phase One to allow for the public 
transport networks to be put in place immediately to serve the residents of the dwellings 
established as part of the first phase; 

vi) That with regard to the proposed screening , it is recommended that mature specimens be 
planted prior to, or immediately at, the start of Phase One; and 

vii) That it is recommended that no play areas be created upon the site and the s.1 06 
contribution for play provision be used to improve existing play areas within the Combs Ford 
area. 

Kind regards , 
Michelle 

Michelle Marshall 
Deputy Town Clerk 

Stowmarket Town Council 

Page 160



.· 

( 

C. 

o~eo-w of- e_ -~c 
~ 

SCANNED 
16 JUL 2015 

1114. 14 CJ -z.. liS" 

COMBS PARISH COUNCIL 

Councillor Stuart Scarff, 

Chairman, Combs Parish council, 

West End Farm, 

.--P-la_n __ n_i_n_g_c=--o-n-t:-r-o~l --, Mill Lane, 
Combs, 

The Planning Department, 

Mid Suffolk District Council Offices, 

131 High Street, 

Needham Market, 

Suffolk, 

IP6 8DL. 

Z3r<l June 2015 

Dear Sirs, 

Received suffolk, 

IP14 2NF. 

16 JUL 2015 
Acknowledged . . . · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. .. ' · .. . 

Date .... . ..... . ~ ... . .. .. ....................... . ..... . 

Pass to .... £:./ ... .. .... _~:.: .... ... .. .... ... .. . 

Planning Application 1492/15- Land.West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket. · 

Fo.llowing Combs Parish Council meeting on 22"ct June 2015 the above planning application was 

discussed and unanimously objected to for the following reasons: 

PHASE ONE 

TRANSPORT 

Between Hill Rise and Normandy Close the curve of road as well as parked cars make visibility 

hazardous from both north and south directions. 

Poor visibility is also an issue from Edgecomb Road and Verneuil Avenue and into Farriers Road from 

both directions. 

Highway Assessment 7.5.5- Table 7.9- This refers to the volume of traffic in Edgecomb Road, 

Farriers Road and Verneuil Avenue. The volume of traffic appears to have been seriously 

underestimated. The considerable increase in the volume of traffic once construction traffic is 

operating will only make m,atters worse. We question these findings and we ask that the 

measurements be re-assessed .. 

Edgecomb Road is an urban estate, housing a large proportion of famines with young children. 

Whilst originally each house was designed with facil ity for one car, there is. now heavy parking on 

both sides of the road. This road is now used as a frat run' for vehicles travelling from Poplar Hill to 

Combs lane in order to avoid the speed bumps at the lower end of Poplar Hill and for vehicles 

travelling to and from Stowmarket. We are deeply concerned about the safety of the children, 

particularly when playing and accessing the playground near Maltster.s Walk, journeying to and from 

school and walking to other facilities, · 
Page 161



ISO. 

For those road users who use the Combs Ford route daily, it appears no thought has gone into the 

need to upgrade the present infrastructure for this development. We are well aware all traffic has 

to go through Combs Ford. 

We note that the development Phase One will create 75 dwellings, each with either a garage or two 

parking places. They will exit and enter via Farriers Road, and there will, therefore, be at least 150 

residents' vehicles, service vehicles and visiting traffic per day. We also ask you to note construction 

vehicles will add to the volume oftraffic and cause considerable distress and disturbance to the 

residents. 

PUBLIC TRANSPORT 

Whilst supportive of green issues and a public bus route, we are concerned provision of sheltered 

accommodation and dwellings for older and disabled residents will result in many, if not most, 

precluded from using public transport. 

PU~LIC FOOTPATHS AND CYCLE PATHS 

Whilst we note that a wide range of footpaths and cycle paths are planned, there is no evidence the 

existing routes will be upgraded to which these will be linked. There also ap~ears to be no provision 

for a cycle path away from the proposed site. 

We note from the Design and Access Statement (AR/43731.55), 4.2 Strengths. 

The retail units in Combs Lane and the Doctors' surgery is approximately a two to three minute walk 

from Phase one of the development. We know it is not possible, so must question other such 

statements. 

FLOOD RISK 

The sewerage system is already under severe pressure in the Combs Ford area and has caused 

environmental health issues and disruption to traffic in the past. Whilst these issues have presently 

been addressed, the addition of Phase One development could cause future serious sewerage 

problems. We note in the report of MTC Engineering that the effectiveness of the sewerage system 

is unknown, as reported from Anglia Water's records. There appears to be serious doubt that the 

existing capacity will cope with increased use. 

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 

Housing Stock- Renewable Energy 

There appears to be no provision for solar panel installation. In view of the professed identification 

with green issues such provision should be implemented. 

Housing Stock- Renewable Energy and Optimal Insulation 

There appears to be no provision for use of renewable energies within these properties, or 

upgrading the level of insulation to the walls, which would reduce heating costs for residents and 

reduce their carbon output. 

Page 2 Page 162



151. 

In view of the professed identification with green issues such provision should be implemented. 

OUTLINE PERMISSION FOR PHASES TWO AND THREE 

We note the proposed road shown on Phase Two which exits on to Poplar Hill. We are seriously 

concerned by the lack of a clear, safe sight line at the entrance and exit to and from Poplar Hill. In 

addition: 

• Whilst there is a 30 mile per hour speed limit it is usually exceeded. We recall a speed well 

in excess of 70 miles per hour recorded in a recent speed check. 

• The verge, hedging and footpaths seriously reduce visibility. 

• Road crossings from the road exit point are unsafe. The footpath stops at The Rectory on 

the south side. 

• The increased traffic exiting from the development will create serious hazards. The 

proposed road through phase two will escalate problems raised earlier; reference Phase 

One. This more especially in Combs Ford. 

• Poplar Hill is the only viable route for the villages of Combs, Battisford, Little Finborough and 

Ringshall, and is a major commuter route for Wattisham Air Field. 

We note from the existing hedge-line of Phase One south west boundary to the rear of the 

properties on Poplar Hill that there is a lack of boundary landscaping, the absence of which will give 

Combs residents full view of the Phase Two development. A defined landscape boundary should 

inhibit further development and encroachment into the village of Combs. 

We are also aware of the paucity of the health services presently available for existing patients, 

including those living in Combs and nearby villages. [Surgery newsletter 1 and 2, EADT 23/06/2015] 

As the proposed housing stock includes provision for the elderly and those living in sheltered 

accommodation, the problems are likely to be exacerbated. 

Yours faithfully, 

Councillor Stuart Scarff, 

Chairman, 

Combs Parish Council. 

Page 3 Page 163



( 

. . ,.._ 

152. 

msuffolk 
\,~ County Council 

. Philip Isbell · 
Corporate Manager - Development Manager 
Planning Services 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
lpsw!ch IP6 8DL 

· For the Attention of Elizabeth Truscott 

Dear Mr Isbell 

l4'1)_lLS . 

The Archaeological Service 
Conservation Team 

Economy, Skills and Environment 
9-10 The. Churchyard, Shire Hall 
Bury St Edmunds 
Suffolk 
IP331RX 

· Enquiries to: 
Direct Line: 
Email: · 
Web: 

Our Ref: 
Date: 

r-Mi~:-:~ :-::;.:-, ~·-~;.,-,<;-, ,-~~..,...-·r-~~-o-t~-·~-,..,-L ... 
.. . • .• . '1 .... l . J ,:1'''-' 

Pi • ./=: ;·:;:,co C ~·;-:TROL 
F~~:LfiVED 

· 1: JUN 2015 
AC!<NOWL::DGED -JSC . 

. .. .. ... . ... . 6'1"i"' .... . .. .. . 

C·yr·: llj b ~ .. . t: ... . ... . . \;.) .. • l ·············· 
!'I1S:; 10 ....... ~ 
---·~---... ···4·· · ····· .. · ·· ··· · · 

Rachael Abraham 
01284 741232 
Rachael.abraham@suffolk.gov.uk · 
http://www.suffolk.gov.uk 

2015_1492 
16 June 2015 

Planning Application 1492/15 - Land west of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, 
Stowmarket: Archaeology 

This large site lies in an area of archaeological potential as recorded by information held by 
the County Historic Environment Record (HER), and summarised in a Desk-Based 
Archaeological assessment prepared on behalf of Construct Reason Ltd (Cotswold 
Archaeology Report 14275, July 2014). The site lies between two tributaries of the 
Rattlesden River in a location that was topographically favourable for early occupation of all 
periods. Archaeological evaluation carried out at the site has detected a number of boundary 
features containing Roman and medieval pottery and as a result there is high potential for 
further archaeological remains to survive within the development site.The proposed works 
would cause significant ground disturbance that has potential to damage any archaeological 
deposits and below ground heritage assets that exist. 

There would be no grounds to consider refusal of permission in order to achieve preservation 
in situ. of any important heritage assets. However, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework (Paragraph 141), we would recommend that any permission granted 
should be the subject of planning conditions to record and advance understanding of the 
significance of any heritage asset before it is damaged or destroyed. 

In this case the following conditions would be appropriate: 

1. No development shall take place within the area indicated [the whole site] until the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work has been secured , in accordance 
with a Written Scheme of Investigation for evaluation, and where necessary excavation , 
which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 164



The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and research 
questions; and : 

a. The programme anp methodology of site investigation and recording 
b. The programme for post investigation assessment · 
c. Provision to be r:nade for analysis of the site investigation and recording 
d. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of 

the site investigation . 
e. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 

investigation 
f. Nomination· of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works 

set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 
g. The site investigation shall be completed prior to development, or in such other 

phased arrangement, as agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

2. The site investigation and post investigation assessment must be completed, submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to completion of the 
develqpment, in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of 
Investigation approved under Condition 1 and the provision made for analysis, publication ( 
and dissemination of results and archive deposition. 

REASON: 
To safeguard archaeological assets within the approved development boundary from impacts 
relating to any groundworks associated with the development scheme and to ensure the 
proper and timely investigation, recording, ·reporting and presentation of archaeological 
assets affected by this development, in accordance with Core Stra(egy Objective SO 4 of Mid 
Suffolk District Council Core Strategy Development Plan Document (2008) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2012) . 

INFORMATIVE: 
The submitted scheme of archaeological investigation shall be in accordance with a brief 
procured beforehand by the developer from Suffolk County Council Archaeological Service, 
Conservation Team. 

In this case, followjng on from the low level archaeological evaluation of this site carried out 
at pre-application stage, a second phase of archaeological evaluation will be . required in 
order to establish the archaeological . potential of the site. Decisions on the need for any 
further investigation (excavation before any groundworks commence) will be made on the (_ 
basis of the results of the evaluation. 

I would be pleased to offer guidance on the archaeological work required and will , on request 
of the applicant, provide a brief for each stage of the archaeological investigation (Please see 
ourwebsite for further information on procedures and costs: 
http://www.suffolk.gov.ukllibraries-and-culture/culture-and-heritage/archaeology/ 

Yours sincerely 

Rachael Abraham 

Senior Archaeological Officer 
Conservation Team 

Page 165



PROW Planning 
23 June 2015 17:51 

Planning Admin 
gabrielle.rowan@pegasuspg.co.uk; Kevin Verlander; Colin Bird 

)ject: 
:achments: 

RE: Consultation on Planning Application 1492/15 
Stowmarket - 149215 - Land west of Farriers Rd, Edgecombe Park - Map FP32, 37 & 
54.pdf; Applicant Responsibility.pdf 

:egories: Orange Category 

1r Ref: W497/054/ROW256/15 

r The Attention of: Elizabeth Truscott 

blic Rights of Way Response 

ank you for your consultation concerning the above application. 

>wmarket Public Footpath 54, Combs Public Footpath 32 and 37 are recorded through the 
1posed development area; a· digital plot showing the definitive alignment of the route as near as 
1 be ascertained; which is for information only and is not to be scaled from, is attached. 

~ have no objection to the proposed works but would comment as follows: 

;afe crossing point of the access road where Public Footpaths 54 and 37 will cross, such as a 
:;ed table, dropped kerbs and appropriate signage. This would be in the interests of highway 
ety and amenity of users of the public right of way. 
'I trees, shrubs and hedges planted alongside Public Footpaths 54 and 37 to be planted at a 
tance to ensure future growth does not encroach on to the routes. This would be in the interests 
~menity of users of the public right of way. , 

ormative Notes -we draw the Applicant's attention to the attached 'Planning Application 
sponse - Applicant Responsibility' 

s response does not prejudice any further response from Rights of Way and Access. As a result 
mticipated increased use of the public rights of way in the vicinity of the development, we would . 
seeking a contribution for improvements to the network. These requirements will be submitted with 
hways Development Management response in due course. 

1ntryside Access Development Team 
1ts of Way and Access 
nomy Skills and Environment, Suffolk County Council 

i' A. P.....-..---.-~~~·~ r-.-• ~·--···~_:::~ .-~ --~~·-.,·~·-• ----•1 

PI a Y1 V"'l '!'""'' _.-, I ~. 1-· '[ r (' l ! 
..... 1111 !;q vUiit 01 : 

~~;u:i~;: I 
BlS I· Acknow!edqed .. .. . . ..... .. . .... ........ . .......... . .. . 

oate .... . .. ~ ... . . 2 .6 (.ob/.1.5 ........ .... , _ 
I Pass to. :..:.:.:..:.;,:_~-· . . : .. : £T.:.:.:..: :.:.:..:.::..:.;.~~~;_,j 

de Gillis 
1ts of Way Support Officer 

eavour House (Floor 5, Block 1), 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, IPl 2BX 

1 

Page 166



· ISS .. 
• I 

a (01473) 260811 I -~ PROWPlanning@suffolk. gov.uk I ~ http://publicrightsofway.onesuffolk.net/. I 
Report A Public Right of Way Problem Here 

For great ideas on visiting Suffolk's cou~ntryside visit www.discoversuffolk.org.uk 

From: planninqadmin@midsuffolk.qov.uk [mailto:planninqadniin@midsuffolk.qov.uk] 
Sent: 03 June 2015 14:21 
To: PROW Planning 
Subject: Consultation on Planning Application 1492/15 

Correspondence from MSDC Planning Services. 

Location: Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

Proposal: Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permission sought for Phase I 
comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all matters reserved except for access for Phases II-II 
for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a sheltered housi(lg scheme of up to 60 units. 

We have received an application on which we would like you to comment. A consultation letter is attached. T 
. view details of the planning application online please click here -

We request your comments regarding this application and these should reach us 

within 21 days . Please make these online when viewing the application. 

The planning policies that appear to be relevant to this case are NPPF, RT12, Cor1, Cor4, Cor5, CSFR-FC1 , 
CSFR-FC1.1, CSFR-FC2, CS SAAP, which can 

be found in detail in the Mid Suffolk Local Plan. 

We look forward to receiving your comments. 

Emails sent to and from this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance With policies and to minimize a:ny security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may be 
privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of the addressee. 
Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive this email by mistake, 
please advise the sender imme<;liately by using the reply facility in your email software. 
Opinions, conclusions and other information in this email that do not relate · 
to the official business of Mid Suffolk District Council shall be 
understood as neither given nor endorsed by Mid Suffolk District Council. 

2 

Page 167



( 

, 

•suffolk 
"¥1J'. County Council 

Mid Suffolk District Council 
Planning Depart er::1t __ _ 

OFFICIAL 

'~· 

131 High Street -------
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
IP6 SOL 

Dear Sirs 

17 "' 2 15 

Land west of Farriers Road, Stowmarket 
Planning Application No: 1492/15 & 5106 

I refer to the above application. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service 

Fire Business Support Team 
Floor 3, Block 2 
Endeavour House 
8 Russell Road 
Ipswich, Suffolk 
IP1 2BX 

Your Ref: 1492/15 & S106 
Our Ref: FS/F221304 
Enquiries to: Angela Kempen 
Direct Line:. 01473 260588 
E-mail: Fire.BusinessSupport@suffolk.gov.uk 
Web Address: http://www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Date: 16/06/2015 

MID SU\~1< DiSTRICT COUNCIL ""1 
PuiNN!NG CONTROL 

RE:'CEiVED 

1 7 JUN 2015 

I 1:-.CKNOWI.E!JGED DATE ................... .. 
o t • a. I It~. • I I I. I. I I. lo P;\SS TO • ._ .... ., ....... . -- ................. e:.:z: 

--.: ·········· 

The plans have been inspected by the Water Officer who has the following 
comments to make. 

Access and Fire Fighting Facilities 

Access to buildings for . fire appliances and firefighters must meet with the 
' requirements specified in Building Regulations Approved Document B, (Fire Safety), 

2006 Edition, incorporating 2010 and 2013 amendments Volume 1 -Part B5, Section 
11 dwelling houses, and, similarly, Volume 2, Part B5, Sections 16 and 17 in the 
case of buildings other than dwelling houses. These requirements may be satisfied 
with other equivalent standards relating to access for fire fighting, in which case 
those standards should be quoted in correspondence. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service also requires a minimum carrying capacity for hard 
·Standing for pumping/high reach appliances. of .15/26 tonnes, not 12.5 tonnes as 
detailed in the Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document B, 2006 Edition, 
incorporating 2010 and 2013 amendments. 

Water Supplies 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service would like the following comments to cover the 
entir~ hybrid application. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Authority recommends that fire hydrants be installed within 
this development. However, it is not possible, at this time, to determine the number 
of fire hydrants required for fire fighting purposes. The requirement will be 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and 
made using a chlorine free process. 

OFFICIAL 

Page 168



OFFICIAL ISJ. 
determined at the water planning stage when site plans have been submitted by the 
water companies. 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service recommends that proper consideration be given to 
the potential life safety, economic, environmental and social benefits derived from 
the provision of an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Please see sprinkler information 
enclosed with this letter). 

Consultation should be made with the Water Authorities to determine flow rates in all 
cases. 

Should you need any further advice or information on access and fire fighting 
facilities , you are advised to contact your local. Building Control in the first instance. 
For further advice and information regarding water supplies, please contact the 
Water Officer at the above headquarters. 

Yours faithfully 

Mrs A Kempen 
Water Officer 

Enc: POL 1 

Copy: Mrs G Rowan , Pegasus Group, 3 Pioneer Court, Chivers Way, Histon, 
Cambridge CB24 9PT · 
Enc: Sprinkler information 

Adrian . buxton@~uffolk.gov . uk 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and 
made ·using a chlorine free process. 

OFFICIAL 

Page 169



.. ~ 

( 

msuffolk 
~ County Council 

OFFICIAL 

·~· 

Mid Suffolk District Council 
Planning Department 

C··couNCIL 131 High Street 
Needham Market 

___ Ipswich 

P6 8QL 

'\ 1 J ·: 2 5 

\

MID sur-mu( QiS\RI -' L 
PLANNING CO' 1 RO 

RE
.-..,_n,FO _vr.:.•v-

1 7 JU,~ 2015 

\ ::\<.NOWI.Ef)GS.D .. • •" ·" ""." ..... 
f..v ·•· · ··· 

\

OPJS .. .. .................. 1!!::7.. 
p~.ssTo ... ; ....... .. .. ... · ......... . --

Planning Ref: ·1492/15 & 5106 

Dear Sirs 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service 

Fire Business Support Team 
Floor 3, Block 2 
Endeavour House 
8 Russell Road 
Ipswich, Suffolk 
IP1 2BX 

Your Ref: 
Our Ref: 
Enquiries to: 
Direct Line: 
E-mail: 
Web Address 

Date: 

1492/15 & S106 
. ENG/AK 

Mrs A Kempen 
01473 260486 
Angela.Kempen@suffolk.gov.uk 
www.suffolk.gov.uk · 

16 June 2015 

RE: PROVISION OF WATER FOR FIRE FIGHTING 
ADDRESS: Land West of Farriers Road, Stowmarket 
DESCRIPTION: Residential deVelopment 
NO: HYDRANTS POSSIBLY REQUIRED: Required 

If the Planning Authority ·is minded to grarit approval, the Fire Authority will request 
that adequate provision is made for fire hydrants, by the imposition of a suitable 
planning condition at the planning application stage. 

If the Fire Authority is not consulted at the planning stage, the Fire Authority will 
request that fire hydrants be installed retrospectively on major developments if it can 
be proven that the Fire Authority was not consulted at the initial stage of planning. 

The planning condition will carry a life term for the said development and the 
( initiating agenUdeveloper applying for planning approval and must be transferred to 

new ownership through land transfer or sale should this take place. 

Fire hydrant provision will be agreed upon when the water authorities submit water 
plans to the Water Officer for Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service. 

Where a planning condition has been imposed, the provision of fire hydrants will be 
fully funded by the developer and invoiced accordingly by Suffolk County Council. 

Until Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service receive confirmation from the water authority 
that the installation of the fire hydrant has taken place, the planning condition will not 
be discharged. 

Continued/ 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. Th is paper is 100% recycled and 
made using a chlorine free process . 

. OFFICIAL 

Page 170



OFFICIAL l5tt · 
Should you require any further information or assistance I will be pleased to help. 

Yours faithfully 

Mrs A Kempen 
Water Officer 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and 
made using a chlorine free process. 

OFFICIAL 

( 

( 

Page 171



( 

( 

· Your ref: 1492/15 
Our ref: Stowmarket- Edgecomb Park, land 
west of Farriers Road 00038037 
Date: 19 June 2015 
Enquiries to: Neil McManus 
Tel: 01473 264121 or 07973 640625 
Email : neil.mcmanus@suffolk.gov.uk 

Ms Elizabeth Truscott, 
Planning Services, · 
Mid Suffolk District Council, 
Council Offices, 
131 High Street, 
Needham Market, 
Ipswich, 
Suffolk, 
IP6 SOL 

Dear Libby, 

160. 

· Pianning Control 
Received 

!. t JUN 2015 
Acknowledged 8 ~ · 
()ate .. . ........ . i.'§'J ~X'f'i..·.·-.· .·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.· .· 
Pass f•) ... . . . ...... . ; .. £/.. .. .... ....... . 

Stowmarket: Edgecomb Park, land west of Farriers Road -developer contributions 

I refer to the above hybrid planning application for residential development with detailed 
permission sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all 
matters reserved except for access for Phases II-III for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a 
sheltered housing scheme qf up to 60 units. I previously provided written pre-application 
advice by way of letter dated 09 May 2014. · 

The "Edgecomb Park" Stowmarket Development Brief SPD was adopted by Mid Suffolk 
District Council on 13 October 2014. The Stowmarket Area Action Plan (2013) allocates 
land off Farriers Road and Poplar Hill. This area is referred to as "Edgecomb Park" in the 
above Development Brief. The adopted Development Brief will inform decisions on 
planning applications for the allocation. Chapter 6 of the adopted Development Brief 
covers 'Highways and Services' with Chapter 7 covering 'Infrastructure Funding & 
Delivery'. 

The Stowmarket Area Action Plan (SAAP) was adopted on 21 February 2013 and includes 
a number of references to infrastructure delivery. Mid Suffolk's Core Strategy Focused 
Review was adopted on 20 December 2012 and contains a number of references to 
delivering sustainable development including infrastructure e.g. Strategic Objective S06, 
Policy FC 1 and Policy FC 1.1. 

I set out below Suffolk County Council 's views, which provides our infrastructure 
requirements that will need consideration by Mid Suffolk District Council if residential 

. development is successfully promo1ed on the site. The County Council will need to be a 
party to any sealed Section 106 legal agreement if there are planning obligations secured 
which is its responsibility as service provider. Without the following contributions being 
agreed between the applicant and the local authority, the development cannot be 
considered to accord with relevant policies. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Page 172



1&1. 

In addition to the above, there is also the adopted (2012) 'Section 106 Developers Guide 
to Infrastructure Contributions in Suffolk', which .sets out the agreed approach to planning 
obligations with further information on education and other infrastructure matters in the 
topic papers. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 204 sets out the requirements 
of planning obligations, which are that they must be: 

a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b) Directly related to the development; and, 
c) Fairly and re?sonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

1. Education. Refer to the NPPF paragraph 72 which states 'The Government 
attaches great importance to ensuring that a sufficient choice of school place~ is 
available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local planning 
authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting 
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education'. ( 

The NPPF at paragraph 38 states 'For larger scale residential developments in 
particular, planning policies should promote a mix of uses in order to provide 
opportunities to undertake day-to-day activities including work on site. Where 
practical, particularly within large-scale developments, key facilities such as primary 
schools and local shops should be located within walking distance of most 
properties.' 

. We would anticipate the following minimum pupil yields from a development of up 
to 185 dwellings (taking into account the type & mix i.e. we have excluded all 1 
bedroom affordable bungalows and all the sheltered housing & bungalows from our 
calculations), namely: 

a. Primary school age range, 5-11 : 30 pupils. Cost per place is £12,181 
(2015/16 costs). 

b. Secondary school age range, 11-16: 21 pupils. Cost per place is £18,355 
(2015/16 costs). · 

c . . Secondary school age range, 16+: 5 pupils. Costs per place is £19,907 ( 
(2015/16 costs). 

The move from 3 tiers to 2 tiers under School Organisation Review (SOR) will be 
implemented in the Stowmarket/Stowupland school pyramids from September 
2015. The local catchment schools are Stowmarket Combs Ford Primary School 
and Stowmarket High School. The Stowmarket Combs Middle School will close in 
July 2015. 

Based on existing forecasts we currently anticipate having surplus places available 
at the catchment secondary school to accommodate all secondary age pupils 
arising from this scheme. However based on existing forecasts we anticipate having 
some limited surplus places available at the catchment primary school but not 
sufficient to accommodate all pupils arising . Based on this current position we 
will require capital contributions towards providing additional education 
facilities for up to 4 primary age pupils arising, at a total cost of £48,724 , 
(2015/16 costs). · 

2 
Page 173



( 

( 

This equates to -£403 for every dwelling (excluding the sheltered housing) which has 
2 or more bedrooms. 

The scale of contributions is based on cost multipliers for the capital cost of 
providing a school place, which are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
construction costs. Th.e figures quoted will apply during the financial year 2015/16 
only and have been provided to give a general indication of the scale of 
contributions required should residential development go ahead. The sum will be -
reviewed at key stages of the application' process to reflect the projected forecasts 
of pupil numbers and the capacity of the schools concerned at these times. Once 
the Section 106 legal agreement has been signed, the agreed sum will be index 
linked using the BCIS index from the date of the Section 106 agreement until such 
time as the education contribution is due. sec has a 10 year period from 
completion of the development to spend the contribution on education provision. 

Clearly, local circumstances may change over time and I would draw your attention 
to paragraph 12 where this information is time-limited to 6 months from the date of 
this letter. · 

2. Pre-school provision. Refer to the NPPF 'Section 8 Promoting healthy 
communities'. It is the responsibility of SCC to ensure that there is sufficient local 
provision under the Childcare Act 2006. Section 7 of the Childcare Act sets out a 
duty to secure free early years provision for pre-school children of a prescribed age. 
The current requ,rement is to ensure 15 hours per week of free provision over 38 
weeks of the year for all 3 and 4 year-olds. The Education Bill 2011 amended 
Section 7, introducing the statutory requirement for 15 hours free early years 
education for disadvantaged 2 year olds. From these development proposals we 

1 would anticipate up to 13 pre-school pupils at a cost of £6,091 per place. We would 
request a capital contribution of £79,183 (2015/16 costs) to spend on enhancing 
local provision. 

This equates to £654 for every dwelling (excluding the sheltered housing) which has 
2 or more bedrooms. 

3. Play space provision. Consideration will need to be given to adequate play space 
provision. A key document is the 'Play Matters: A Strategy for Suffolk', which sets 
out the vision for providing more open space where children and young people can 
play. Some important issues to consider include: 

a. In every residential area there are a .variety of supervised and unsupervised 
places for play, free of charge. 

b. Play spaces are attractive, welcoming, engaging and accessible for all local 
children and young people, including disabled children, and children from · 
minority groups in the community. . 

c. Local neighbourhoods are, and feel like, safe, interesting places to play. 
d. Routes to children's play spaces are safe and accessible for all children and 

young people. 

4. Transport issues. Refer to the NPPF 'Section 4 Promoting sustainable transport' . 
. A comprehensive assessment of highways and transport issues will be required as 

3 Page 174



163. 

part of the planning application. This will include travel plan, pede~trian & cycle 
provision , public· transport, rights of way, air quality and highway provision (both on
site and off:-site). Requirements will be dealt with via planning conditions and 
Section 1 06 as appropriate, and infrastructure delivered to adoptable standards via 
Section 38 and Section 278. This will be coordinated by Suffolk County Council 
FAO Andrew Pearce. 

Suffolk County Council , in its role as local Highway Authority, has worked with the 
local planning authorities to develop county-wide. technical guidance on parking 
which replaces the preceding Suffolk Advisory Parking Standards (2002) in light of 
new national policy and local research. It has been subject to public consultation 
and was adopted by Suffolk County Council in November 2014. 

Chapter 6 of the adopted Development Brief covers 'Highways and Services' with 
Chapter 7 covering 'Infrastructure Funding & Delivery'. 

5. Libraries. A library contribution within the Section 106, to mitigate for the additional 
demand that increased population as a development of this scale will place on such 
services, is entirely satisfactory as a matter of principle; having regard to Mid 
Suffolk's Core Strategy Focused Review, the Stowmarket Area.Action Plan, the 
NPPF (Section 8 Promoting healthy communities') and Regulation 122 of the GIL 
Regulations. 

The Stowmarket Library is located in Milton Road and is a highly valued community 
resource, with the Friends of Stowmarket Library having recently been· established. 
The existing library space is 599 square metres. The library serves a wide 
catchment area, with the combined population of Stowmarket and Stowuplan9 
being 21 , 543 (Source:·oNS 2011). By using our adopted standard of a minimum 
30 square metres of library space per 1,000 population , a local library space 
requirement.of 646 square metres is derived. This demonstrates an existing 
deficiency of 47 square metres in library space and further population growth 
associated with these 185 dwellings will place· this community infrastructure under 
greater strain , thus requiring investment in the library service · 

· Construction and initial fit out cost is estimated at £3,000 per square metre for 
libraries (based on RIGS Building Cost Information Service data but excluding land 
costs) . This gives a cost of (30m x £3,000) = £90,000 per 1,000 people or £90 per 
person for library space. 

Assuming an average of 2.4 persons per dwelling for 125 dwellings and 1 person 
per sheltered housing unit gives a total of 360 people. The capital contribution 
required for local library improvements arising from this scheme is 360 people x £90 
per person= £32,400. This equates to £_175 per dwelling . . 

6. Waste. The waste disposal facilities topic paper .sets out the detailed approach to 
how contributions are calculated. A contribution of £51 per dwelling (excluding the 
sheltered housing) is sought i.e. £6,375, which will be spent on enhancing provision 
in Stowmarket. A waste minimisation and recycling strategy needs to be agreed and 
imp'lemented by planning conditions. Refer to the Waste Planning Policy Statement 
and the Suffolk Waste Plan . ' · ' 

4 

( 

( 

Page 175



( 

( 

7. Supported Housing. We would encourage all homes to be built to 'Lifetime 
Homes' standards. Refer to the NPPF 'Section 6 Delivering a wide choice of high 
quality homes'. 

8. Sustainable Drainage Systems. Refer to the NPPF 'Section 10 Meeting the 
challenges of climate change, flooding and coastal change' . Ori 18 December 2014 
there was a Ministerial Written Statement made by The Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government (Mr Eric Pickles) . Th·e changes will take effect 
from 06April2015. · 

'To this effect, we expect local planning policies and decisions on planning 
applications relating to major development - developments of 1 0 dwellings or more; 
or equivalent non-residential or mixed development (as set out in Article 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 201 0) -to ensure that sustainable drainage systems for the management of 
run-off are put in place, unless demonstrated to be inappropriate. 

Under these arrangements, in considering planning applications, local planning 
authorities should consult the relevant lead local flood authority on the management 
of surface water; satisfy themselves that the proposed minimum standards of 

· operation are appropriate and ensure through the use of planning conditions or . 
planning obligations that there are clear arrangements in place for ongoing · 
maintenance over the lifetime of the development. The sustainable drainage system 
should be designed to ensure that the maintenance and operation requirements are 
economically proportionate. " 

9. Fire Service. Any fire hydrant issues will need to be covered by appropriate 
planning conditions. We would strongly recommend the installation of automatic fire 
sprinklers. The Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service requests that early consideration is 
given during the design stage of the development for both access for fire vehicles 
and the provisions of water for fire-fighting which will allow us to make final 
consultations at the planning stage. Refer to the letter dated 16 June 2015 from the 
Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service. · 

' ' 
10.Superfast broadband. SCC would recommend that all developme·nt is equipped 

with superfast broadband (fibre optic). This facilitates home working which has 
associated b~nefits for the transport network and also contributes to social 
inclusion. Direct access from a new development to the nearest BT exchange is 
required (not just tacking new provision on the end of the nearest line). This will 
bring the fibre optic closer to the home which will enable faster broadband speed. 

11. Legal costs. SCC will require an undertaking for the reimb.ursement of its own legal 
costs associated with any work on a S 1 06A, whether or not the matter· proceeds to 
completion. 

12. The above information is time-limited for 6 months only from the date of this. letter. 

5 Page 176



If this development is the subject of viability discussions I would welcome being closely 
involved, but hopefully with the detailed pre-application advice & discussions and the 
adopted Development Brief this should not be an issue raised by the applica'nts. 

I consider that the contributions requested are justified and satisfy the· requirements of the 
NPPF and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 122 & 123 Regulations. 

Yours sincerely, 

Neil McManus BSc (Hans) MRICS 
Development Contributions Manager 
Economy Skills & Environment 

cc Neil Eaton, Suffolk County Council 
.Andrew Pearce, Suffolk County Council · 
Jeff Horner, Suffolk County Council 

6 

( 

( 

Page 177



r • 

( 

( 

'"· 

love, eoev--~ d.v--op 
anglia · · 

Planning Applications - Suggested Informative 

Statements and Conditions Report · 

AW Ref~rence: 

Local Planning Authority: 

Site: 

Proposal: 

Planning Application: 

00007350 

Mid Suffolk District 

Land West of Farriers Road, Combs 

Erection of 75 Dwellings 

1492/15 

Prepared by Carl Lee 

Date 22 June 2015 

If you would like to discuss any of the points in this document please 
contact me on 01733 414690 or email planninqliaison@anglianwater.co.uk 

Page 178



,,~. 

ASSETS 

· Section 1 - Assets Affected 

1.1 Our records show that there are no assets owned by Anglian Water or those 
subject to an adoption agreement within the development site b<?undary. 

WASTEWATER SERVICES 

Sect.ion 2 - Wastewater Treatment 

2.1 The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Stowmarket 
Water Recycling Centre that will have available capacity for these flows. 

Section 3 - Foul Sewerage Network 

3.1 Development will lead to an unacceptable risk of flooding downstream. A ( 
drainage strategy will need to be prepared in consultation with Anglian 
Waterto determine mitigation measures. 

We will request a condition requiring the drainage strategy covering the . 
issue(s) to be agreed. 

Section 4 - Surface Water Disposal 

4.1 The surface water strategy/flood risk assessment submitted with the 
planning application is not rele.vant to Anglian Water as paragraph 4.13 of 
the Flood Risk Assessment states that surface water will discha.rge to a 

. watercourse. Therefore this is outside our jurisdiction for comment and the 
Planning Authority will need to seek the views of the Environment Agency : 

We will request that the agreed strategy is reflected in the planning 
approval. 

Section 5 - Trade Effluent 

5.1 Not applicable. 

Section 6 -Suggested Planning Conditions 

Anglian Water would therefore recommend the following planning condition 
if the Local Planning Authority is mindful to grant planning approval. 

Foul Sewerage Network (Section 3) 

CONDITION 
No development shall commence until a foul water strategy has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
dwellings shall be occupied until the works have been carried out in 
accordance with the foul water strategy so approved unless otherwise 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

( 

Page 179



REASON 
To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding. 

( 

( 

Page 180



( 

{ ' 

UNCLASSIFIED ,,q. 

Mid Suffolk District Council 
Planning Department 
131 , Council Offices High Street 
Needham Market 
Ipswich 
IP6 8DL 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Our ref: 

I& Environment 
·~·Agency 

Your ref: 
AE/2015/119270/01-L01 
1492/15 

21 JUN 2015 
Acknowledged . ...... .. B~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
oate ...... . ..... ... 2-Jo./.Q(c).l.'5. ... . 

Pass to .. .... . · :.·.:..:.:.·- ~.:..:.:..:.::..:.::~.:.:~~.:.:.:..:.=." · · · 

HYBRID APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH 
DETAILED PERMISSION SOUGHT FOR PHASE I COMPRISING.OF 75 
DWELLINGS AND OUTLINE PERMISSION WITH ALL MATTERS 
RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS FOR PHASES 11-111 FOR UP TO 110 
DWELLINGS TO INCORPORATE A SHELTERED HOUSING SCHEME OF 
UP TO 60 UNITS. . ,. 

LAND WEST OF FARRIERS ROAD, EDGECOMB PARK, STOWMARKET 

Thank you for your consultation received on 3 June 2015. We have inspected 
the application, as submitted, and are requesting conditions relating to 
protection of the water environment and mitigating ecological impact and offer 
advice on foul water disposal, waste and sustainability. · 

The water environment 

The site is underlain by a Secondary (undifferentiated) aquifer (Lowestoft 
Formation) followed by a principal aquifer (Crag). A source protection zone 3 
also underlies part of the site and is also in an EU Water Framework Directive 
Drinking Water Protected Area. The underlying chalk is therefore considered 
to be environmentally sensitive. . · 

We have reviewed the Brown 2 Green Geo-environmental Desk Study Report 
of April2014 (ref: 1235/Rpt 1v1), MTC Engineering F~ood Risk Assessment of 

· August 2014 (ref: 1033- FRA Rev A) and MTC Engineering Technical Report 
of (no date) (ref: 1 033/09) . Given the past uses of the site we do not consider 
the site to be of a high priority~ If any unexpected contamination is 
encountered during the development, we will require re-consultation . 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Page 181



UNCLASSIFIED 

\~. 

We understand no surface water infiltration featur~s are proposed . 

Environment Agency position 
We consider that planning permission could be granted to the proposed 

. development as submitted if the following planning condition is included as set 
out below. Without this condition, the proposed development on this site 
poses an unacceptable risk to the environment and we would object to the 
application. 

Condition 

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further _development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the local planning aL)thority) shall be carried out until the developer 
has submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing 
how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written 
approval from the local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be ( 
implemented as approved . 

. Reasons 

To protect and prevent the pollution of controlled waters (Secondary A aquifer, 
nearby groundwater abstraction and nearby watercourse) from potential 
pollutants associated with current and previous land uses in line with National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF; paragraphs 109 and 121), EU Water 
Framework Directive, Anglian River Basin Management Plan and 
Environment Agency GroundWater Protection: Principles and Practice (GP3 
v.1.1, 2013) position statements A4- A6, J1- J7 and N7. 

Ecology 

The watercourse at the northern boundary of the site is a tributary of the 
Rattlesden River and is a locally high value habitat. It is our view that the area ( 
should be protected by a buffer zone of native riparian habitat of at least 
15metres wide. · · 

We note that the master plan identifies this area for "potential SUDS" features. 
As well as being designed to be effective for surface water management it is 
essential that qualified ecologists are utilised to ensure that riparian habitats 
are conseNed and enhanced to provide the best river environment possible in 
the local landscape. New areas of grassland should be sown with native 
provenance species-rich seed. Management of the wildlife and open green 
space should allow for variety of habitat including longer grassland where 
suitable opportunities arise. 

Particular attention should be paid to preventing sediment entering the 
watercourse and henGe downstream to the river during the construction phase 
and the operation of the SUDS system. This river has a gravelly base which is 
particularly important for fish and invertebrate populations locally and hence 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Page 182



( 

( 

UNCLASSIFIED 

\:fl. 
the general health of the river ~ Care should be taken that sediment is trapped 
and removed from any surface runoff that enters the river. 

Environment Agency position 

Condition 

No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision and 
management of the watercourse and a minimum 15m buffer zone shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter 
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme 
and any subsequent amendments shall be agreed in writing with the local 

_ planning authority. The scheme shall be free from built development including 
lighting, domestic gardens and formal landscaping; and could form a vital part . 
of green infrastructure provision: The schemes shall include: 

• plans showing the extent and layout of the water course and buffer zone·. 

• details of any proposed planting scheme (for example, native species) . . 

• details demonstrating how the watercourse and buffer zone will be 
protected during development and managed/maintained over the longer 
term including adequate financial provision and named body responsible 
for management plus production of detailed management plan. 

• details of any proposed footpaths, fencing, lighting etc. 

• details of management and maintenance regimes 

Reasons 

Development that encroaches on watercourses and land alongside has a 
potentially severe impact on their ecological value and is particularly valuable 
for wildlife and it is essential this is protected. 

This condition is supported by the National Planning Policy Framework. 
(NPPF), paragraph 109 which recognises that the planning system should aim 
to conserve and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising 

. impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in biodiversity where po·ssible, 
contributing to the Government's commitment to halt the overall decline in . 
biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are 
more resilient to current and future pressures. The Natural Environment and 
Rural Com·munities Act which requires Local Authorities to have regard to 
nature conservation and article 10 of the Habitats Directive which stresses the 
importance of natural networks of linked corridors to allow movement of 
species between suitable habitats, and promote the expansion of biodiversity. 

Paragraph 118 of the NPPF also states that opp6rtunities to incorporate 
biodiversity in and around developments should be encouraged. 

The position is also supported by your policy Core Strategy Objectives SO 2 
· "To seek to improve water quality and reduce pollution to the wider 
environment" and Policy CS5 Mid Suffolk's Environment. 

Foul water 

UNCLASSIFIED 
r 

Page 183



UNCLASSIFIED 

r?2. 

· .Waste water from this development will feed into Stowmarket Sewage 
Treatment Works. We note that Anglian Water's report says that the sewage 
works currently has capacity for this development. It is important to note that 
the permitted capacity for this works only allows (by ou·r calculations) for 
another 285 houses. You need to be aware that this development will take up 
most of the existing capacity and a revised permit with an increased volume 
will be required before significant further developm.ent can come forward. It is 
at present unlikely that such a revision would be permitted, without significant 
improvements in the treatment available at the works; in particular with 
relation to concentrations of phosphate in the treated sewage -the receiving 
River Gipping is currently at 'poor' status with regards to phosphate under the 
Water Framework Dire9tive. 

Waste 

While itis pleasing to see a Site Waste Management Plan with a strong focus 
on recycling , it lacks ambition. The waste hierarchy requires that reducing ( 
waste be considered before recycling , and the SWMP does not contain any 
details of reducing waste in the development phase, either through design or 
by introducing good materials handling protocols to prevent damage to, and 
hence waste, of, materials. We would strongly recommend that these 
measures are included in a revised plan . 

Sustainability 

Climate change is one of the biggest threats to the economy, environment and 
society. New development should therefore be designed with a view to 
improving resilience and adapting to the effects of climate change, particularly 

. with regards to already stretched environmental resources and infrastructure 
such as water supply and treatment, water quality and waste disposal 
facilities. We also need to limit the contribution of new development to climate 
change and minimise the consumption of natural resources. 

Opportunities should therefore be taken in the planning system, no matter the 
scale of the development, to contribute to tackling these problems. In 
particular we recommend the following issues are considered at the 
determination stage and incorporated into suitable plannin~ conditions: · · 

• Overall sustainability: a pre-assessment under . the appropriate 
Code/BREEAM standard should be submitted with the application. We 
recommend that design Stage and Post-Construction certificates (issued 
by the Building Research Establishment or equivalent authorising body) 
are sought through planning conditions. 

• Resource efficiency: a reduction in the use of resources (including water, 
energy, waste and materials) should be encouraged to a level which is 
sustainable in · the long term. As well as helping the environment, Defra 
have advised that making simple changes resulting in the more efficient 
use of resources could save UK businesses around £23bn per year. 

UNCLASSIFIED 

( 

Page 184



( 

( 

·UNCLASSIFIED 

l:t!. . 
• Net gains for nature: opportunities should be taken to ensure the 

development is conserving and enhancing habitats to improve · the 
biodiversity value of the immediate and surrounding area. 

· • Sustainable energy use: the development should be designed to minimise 
energy demand and have decentralised and renewable energy 

· technologies (as appropriate) incorporated, whife ensuring that adverse 
impacts are satisfactorily addressed. 

These measures are in line with the objectives of the NPPF, as set out in 
paragraphs 7 and 93-108, and are supported by Policy CS 3 Reduced 
·contributions to Climate Change of your adopted Core Strategy. Reference 
should also be made to the Climate Change section of the draft National 
Planning Practice Guidance, in particular: "Why is it important for planning to 
consider climate change?" and "Where can I find out more about climate 
change mitigation and adaptation?" · 
http://planningguidance.planningportal .gov.uk/blog/guidance/ 

Additional guidance on considering climate change for this proposal is 
provided in an appe~dix at the end of this letter. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr GRAHAM STEEL 
Sustainable Places - Planning Advisor 

Direct dial 01473 706008 
Dlrect fax 01473 271320 
Direct e-mail graham.steel@environment-agency.gov.uk 

cc Pegasus Planning Group 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Page 185



UNCLASSIFIED · 

1~4-. 

Technical Appendix- Sustainabilitv 

We suggest the following · points are addressed by the applicant to limit the 
developments impact on the environment and ensure it is resilient to future 
climate change. . , 

Water Efficiency 

Over the next 20 years demand for water is set to increase substantially yet 
there is likely to be less water available due to a drier climate and tighter 
controls on abstraction . To address this new development should be designed 
to be as water efficient as possible. This will not only reduce water 

. consumption but also reduce energy bills as approximately 24% of domestic 
energy consumption in the UK goes to heating water (DTI 2002). · 

Simple solutions such as dual-flush toilets, water-saving taps and showers, 
water butts and appliances with the highest water efficiency rating should all 
be included in the development. The use of greywater recycling and rainwater ( 
harvesting will achieve a higher-efficiency for the development and should be 
installed wherever possible. 

The payback following investment in water saving devices is often higher in 
commercial units than· residential due to the higher frequency of use. Simple 
measures such as urinal controls or waterless urinals, efficient flush toilets 
and automatic or sensor taps are therefore very effective. Likewise investment 
in water recycling schemes is also more viable in business settings. Further 
advice is available at: 
http://www.anglianwater.co.uk/business/business-services/ 

We also recommend that developers consider using equipment on the w ·ater 
and Energy Technology List, a directory of products which have met an 
approved water and energy efficiency eligibility criteria. 

Any submitted scheme should include detailed information (capacities, 
consumption rates, etc) on proposed~ water saving measure$. Where 
rainwater recycling or greywater recycling is proposed, this should be 
indiGated on site plans. Applicants are also advised to refer to the following for 
further guidance: 
"http://www.water-efficient-buildings.org.ukl" \o "http://www.water-efficient
buildings.org.uk/; and 
"http://www.savewatersavemoney.co.ukf' \o 

Waste and Resource Management 

Waste should no longer be regarded as a problem to be disposed of, but a 
resource in its own right. The management of waste should be considered 
early in the design phase and all' developments encouraged to follow the 
Construction Waste Hierarchy of prevention >re-use > recycling > recovery> 
disposal. Further information on this can be found at 
www.defra.gov.uklpubl ications/files/pb13530-waste-hierarchy-guidance.pdf. 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Page 186



l •• 

( 

( 

UNCLASSIFIED 

·~· 
Measures to be included to reduce construction waste include procedures to 
prevent the over-ordering of materials, reducing damage to. materials before 
use by careful handling and segregating waste on site into separate 

·skips. The developer should also consider how they will incorporate 
recycled/recovered materials into the building programme, including the use of 
secondary and recycled aggregates, and re-use of any on-site demolition 
waste. 

Development design can also facilitate household waste recycling and we 
would suggest that designs incorpor~te facilities to aid this in line with local 
recycling provision, especially in multiple-occupancy buildings. We would also 
suggest that consideration is give.n to the provision for recycling opportunities 
within public areas. We recommend the following websites which provide 
ideas and further· information: . http://www.wrap.org.uk and 
http://www.tcpa.org.uk/pages/towards-zero-waste.html. 

Net Gains for Nature 

Landscaping proposals should demonstrate that thought has . been given to 
maximising potential ecological enhancement. Paragraph 9 of the NPPF sets 
out that planning should seek positive improvements and includes an aim to 
move from a net loss of biodiversity to achieving net gains for nature in line 
with the Natural Environment White Paper (2011) . In determining planning 
applications Local. Authorities are asked to conserve and enhance biodiversity 
and encourage opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around 
developments (para.11-8). This presents an opportunity to provide multi
functional benefits - providing open space for residents, sustainable transport 
links, wildlife/ecological value, climate change resilience , improved water 
quality and flood risk management. 

·Incorporating green and/or brown roofs and walls are particularly effective. 
They provide valuable urban habitats, increased energy efficiency of buildings 
and attenuation of rain water. Research from the journal 'Environmental 
Science and Technology' claims that green walls deliver cleaner air at street 
level where most people are exposed to the highest pollution. They can also 
add to an attractive street scene if designed well - a good example of this is 
the Transport for London Green Wall near Blackfria~s station. 

Additional Useful Resources 

We have full responsibility for the governments Climate Ready support service 
which provides advice and support to businesses, the public sector and other 
organisations on adapting to and building resilience for climate change. The 
aim is to ensure businesses and services assess how they will be impacted by 
a changing climate so that ttiey are both resilient and can thrive in the future. 
Further information and guidance can be found here 
http://www.sl.istainabilityeast.org.uk/ 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Page 187



UNCLASSIFIED 

·~· 
The UK Gr~en Building Council has also published a series of documents to . 
help Local Authorities and developers to understand sustainability issues. 
These documents are available on their website at: 
http://www. u kgbc. org/contentladvice-p Ian ners-a nd-developers. 

The most recently published technical guidance to the Communities and Local 
Government's 'Code for Sustainable Homes' also provides useful guidance: 
https://www.gov.uklgovernmentlpolicies/improving-the-energy-efficiency-of
buildings:..and-using-planning-to-protect-the-environmentlsupporting
pages/code-for -sustainable-homes 

UNCLASSIFIED 

( 

( 

Page 188



Jane Cole 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Comment as follows -

David Pizzey 
03 November 2015 09:33 
Planning Admin 
1492/15 Land west of Farriers Road, Stowmarket 2 

The amended layout plans do not take intq account the concerns raised in my consultation response of 301
h 

June 2015 regarding loss of important trees and close proximity of development to others. 

David Pizzey 
Arboricultural Officer 
Hadleigh office: 01473 826662 
Needham Market office: 01449 724555 
david. pizzey@baberg hmidsuffolk.gov. uk 
www.babergh.gov.uk and www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils- Working Together 

From: planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk [mailto:planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk] 
Sent: 23 October 2015 09:20 
To: David Pizzey 
Subject: Reconsultation on Planning Application 1492/15 

Correspondence from MSDC Planning Services. 

We recently sent you a consultation in respect of the above application. 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
PLANNING CONTROL 

RECEIVED 

- 3 NOV 20-15 

DATE . ;~.l .D ............... I 
ACKNOWLECG~ . .J~~'"'"" 

PASS TO.~ ..... ""'""'"'""" . 

We have recently received further information/revised plans in respect of this and would ask you to take 
this additional information into account when replying . · 

Please ensure that we receive your reply by 13/11/2015 at the latest. 

To view details of the planning application online please click here 

We look forward to receiving your comments. 

Emails sent to and frorri this organisation will be monitored in accordance 
with the law to ensure compliance with policies and to minimize any security risks. 
The information contained in this email or any of its attachments may be 
privileged or confidential and is intended for the exclusive use of the addressee. 
Any unauthorised use may be unlawful. If you receive this email by mistake, 
please advise the sender immediately by using the reply facility in your email software. 

1 
Page 189



Bradley Burgett · 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

David Pizzey 
30 June 2015 09:25 · 
El izabeth Truscott 
Planning Admin 

1~. 

Subject: 1492/15 Land West of Farriers Road, Stowmarket. 

Categories: Orange Category 

Libby 

The arboricultural report submitted with this application provides a generally 
accurate assessment of the condition and constraints presented by trees at the site. The 
proposal requires the removal of a number of trees but the majority of these 
are either in poor condition or of low amenity value and the impact of their loss can be mitigated 
with new planting. In a few instances, however, trees of high value (e.g. Ash T32 and Oak T54) 
are proposed for removal and these should be retained if at all possible. Ttre Ash is 
incorrectly recorded within the arboricultural report and is in fact a tree of high 

( :lue without significant defect. Some realignment of the proposed access should 
be considered to accommodate this important tree. In other areas the proximity and orientation 
of plots (e.g. 213, ;308, 309) is likely to result in post""development pressure for pruning or felling 

· and should be avoided. 

When a finalised layout design has been agreed we will also require the following- . 

• Updated Tree Protection Plan and detailed site specific method statement 
.• Assessment of any potentially damaging activities if!. the vicinity of retained trees 
• Details of any special engineering or construction required within Root Protection Areas 
• An auditable site monitoring schedule 

I hope this is helpful but please let me know if you require any further comments. 

Regards 

David 

( dvid Pizzey 
Arboricultural Officer 
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils- Working Together 
E david.pizzey@babergh.gov.uk 
T: 01473 826662 & 01449 724555 
www.babergh.gov.uk and www.midsuffolk.gov.uk 

From: planningadmin@midsuffol k.gov. uk [mailto: planninqadmin@midsuffolk.gov. uk] 
Sent: 03 June 2015 14:20 
To: David Pizzey 
Subject: Consultation on Pfanning Application 1492/15 

Correspondence from MSDC Planning Services. 

Location: Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

1 

Page 190



( 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

l:fCt. 

Consultation Response Pro forma 

Application Number 

Date of Response 

Responding Officer 

Summary and 
Recommendation 
(please delete those N/A) 

Note: This section must be 
completed before the 
response is sent. The 
recommendation should be 
based on the information 
submitted with the 
application . 

Discussion 
Please outline the 
reasons/rationale behind 
how you have formed the 
recommendation. 
Please refer to any 
guidance, policy or material 
considerations that have 
informed your 
recommendation. 

Amendments, 
Clarification or Additional 
Information Required 
(if holding objection) 

If concerns are raised, can 
they be overcome with 
changes? Please ensure 
any requests are 
proportionate 

Recommended conditions 

1492/15 
west of Farriers Road, Stowmarket 
24.8.15 

Name: Paul Harrison 
Job Title: Enabling Officer 
Responding on behalf of.. . Heritage 
1. The Heritage Team considers ~hat the proposal would 

cause 
• less than substantial harm to a designated 

heritage asset because the rural setting of Model 
Farm will be further compromised by urban 
extension ; however, this impact will be mitigated 
by landform. No objection on heritage grounds. 

2. The Heritage Team recommends that the boundaries 
of the site be carefully treated so as to maintain rural 

· character, in line with reco'mmendations of the 
Landscape Officer. 

The site extends urban development towards the listed 
Model Farm, Combs, compromising its rural setting. 
However, the larger part of the site will not be directly 
visible because of the local landform, and the harm is 
considered to be largely mitigated and· not to warrant 
objection on heritage grounds. 

-·- -··· .. ·---~--~--------, 
; .,i,J SLF'FOU< D!STRICT COUNCIL 

I 
PLANNING CONTROL 

Pr::i.":EI /ED 

! 2 ~~ AUG 2U15· 
j "r\(rr.:,n r:r.c:;Fn ~.,.:},$ _~ . 
I .-.~To-: '?II . .I..;;::' 
.. f$i ..... ' c ........ n:-:tt;:'l.J,....:) •• •••••••••••• t •• 

1 "c\<::s~o .-r ..-r ' .. .:._.~"~__:::..:.,:_···-· -<:=:,~_. :-_;; •• .;...\ •• _ ... _ •• _ .. _ •• _ .. .;..;.'';..a' 

Please note that this fonn can be submitted electronically on the Councils website. Comments submitted on the website will not 
be acknowledged but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under l he 
application reference number. Please note that the completed fonn will be posted on the Councils website and available to view 
by the public. 

Page 191



I 
1 ER: This information has been produced by 

; County Council's Natural Environment Team on 
;f of Mid Suffolk District Council, at their request. 

4ever, the views and conclusions contained within this 
xt are those of the officers providing the advice and 
not to be taken as those of Suffolk County Council. . . . 

· Ms Elizabeth Truscott 
Planning Dept 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 HighSt 
Needham Ma~ket 
Suffolk 
IP6 "SOL 

Dear Libby, 

ItO. 
Phil Watson Landscape Development Officer 
Natural Environment Team 

Endeavour House ( 82 F5 56) 
Russell Road 
IPSWICH 

IP1 2BX 
Suffolk 
Tel : 01473 264777 
Fax: 01473 216889 

· Email : phil.watson@suffolk.gov.uk 
Web: http://www.suffolk.gov.uk 

Your Ref: 1492/15 
Our Ref: 
Date: 26/06/2015 

Proposal: Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permission 
sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all 
matters reserved except for access for Phases 11-111 for. up to 110 dwellings to 
incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units. 

Location: Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket · 

Based on the initial information provided and a site visit carried out on the 261
h June 2015, 

I offer the following comments. 

The site and landscape 

The site is in a visually prominent valley side and ridge top location next to an existing 
block of housing . The southernmost part of the site is in an elevated and visually 
prominent location. This southernmost part of the site also has a weaker relation·ship with 
the existing housing. The proposed layout has responded to this by using this area of the 
site for public open space and not housing. 

Given the exposed location I suggest it is essential that key structural and boundary 
planting associated with later phases is established as part of phase one of the 
development. This will ensure that the adverse visual impacts are mitigated in a timely 
fashion and the open space achieves its design objectives as soon as possible. Therefore 
it would be appropriate to agree the phasing of structural and boundary planting prior to 
determination. · 

We ;=~reworking towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and made using 
· · a chlorine free process. · 

Page 192



The material provided by the applicant 

The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, (LVIA) , is sufficient for the LPA to 
understand the likely effects of the proposal on the character of the landscape and visual 
amenity. The applicant has also provided a detailed scheme of planting for the 
development although s,ome aspects remain "possible" or "provisional" at this stage, 
therefore definitive proposals for planting , aftercare maintenance etc. will need to be 
secured by condition. 

I note that three areas of greens pace are proposed within the development, the SuDs area 
at the north end of the site, the open space to the north of Farrier road and the larger open 
space to the south of Farrier road . I also note that a pedestrian crossing· is proposed to 
ensure safe access to the southern area of greenspace. It is not clear how these spaces 
will be managed in the long term, or what, if any, commuted sums may be available for 
their management. . . 

I note that the applicant refers to the importance of the site as a "gateway" from the 
countryside into the town. Whist it is dear that the· proposal responds to this on the 

. southern side of the road the northern side, as shown on the Landscape Strategy, appears 
rather bare and open to the prevailing winds from the west, some boundary planting would 
be appropriate, with gaps to retain visual linkage to the wider landscape. A more enclosed 
design is however shown on other drawings within the application material; the applicant 
will need to clarify these details when conditions are discharged 

Other matters 

It is notable that the proposed landscaping scheme includes on DWG LD01 the possibility 
of re-profiling the stream banks. I understand this is an ordinary watercourse and therefore 
drainage consent for this work is likely to be required from the floods team at SCC. The re
profiling work will also need to compliant with the requirements of the water framework 
directive. (WFD). I suggest the applicant should contact Jeff Horner Flood & Water 
Manager in the first instance. · 

The applicant has provided a detailed scheme of tree protection. Whilst it may be 
technically possible to achieve thfs proposal the retention of these trees, given the 
proximity to buildings there may be issues of shading and liveability for both structures and 
people in the long term. I suggest this is a matter that Mr David Pizzey the Arboricultural 
Officer to pr9vide further advice on. 

There appears to be a good opportunity to link the northern part of the site to the public 
right ofway network via a footbridge ~ In addition, if it were achievable, a new footpath link 
from the southern open space to Church Road would improve linkage between this site 
and Church Meadow Local Nature Reserve (LNR) . This link would also improve access for 
existing local residents to the proposed new open space. 

Recommendation - Full application 

The Full application , that is, Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and .associated hard and 
soft landscaping 

In terms of landscape and visual impact the .proposal is acceptable subject to conditions ; 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. Th i.s paper is 100% recycled and made using 
a chlorine free process. 

\ 

Page 193



,/ . 
181. 

/~hough ;he applicant has provided a detailed scheme of landscap.ing and proposals for, 
(only) , 12 months of aftercare some of the matters on both the drawings and associated 
documentation r~main provisional or suggested, so that the drawings and documents 
cannot form the basis of a condition . The scheme of soft landscaping should also be 
finalised in tandem with the detail of the SuDs scheme, and any ecological requirements ; 
particularly at the northern end of the site . 

.PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: SOFT LANDSCAPING. 
No development shall commence, until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a finalised scheme of soft landscaping in 
accordance with submitted landscape drawings LD01 LD02 and LD03 

The soft landscaping detai.ls shall include planting plans; written specifications (including 
cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules 
of plants noting speCies, plant sizes and proposed numbers/ densities, weed control 

· protecti.on and maintenance for the whole of the aftercare period and any tree works to be 
undertaken during the course of the development. The aftercare period supervised by the 
LPA shall be not less than 5 years from the commencement date and all failed plants shall 

· / be replaced on a 1:1 basis during the first five years of the aftercare period. Any planting 
removed , dying or becoming seriously damaged or diseased within five years of planting . 
shall be replaced within the first available planting season thereafter with planting of similar 
size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent for any 
variation . 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: HARD LANDSCAPING 
No development shall commence , until full details of a hard landscaping scheme for that 
area/phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
These details shall include proposed finished levels and contours showing earthworks and 
mounding ; surfacing materials; means of enclosure ; car parking layouts; other vehicle and 
pedestrian access and circulations areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and 
structures (for example furniture , refuse and/or other storage units, signs, lighting and 
similar features) ; proposed and existing functional services above and .below ground (for 
example-drainage, power, communications cables and pipelines, indicating lines, 
manholes, supports and other technical features) . 

Due to the presence of bats on the site the external lighting condition has been drafted in 
consultation with the Mrs Sue Hooton the SCC Senior Ecologist and in accordance with 
8542020:2013 Biodiversity Code of Practice for Planning and Oevelopmentpara 0 .3.5. 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: EXTERNAL LIGHTING 
· No external lighting shall be provided unless details thereof have first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Prior to commencement a . 
detailed lighting scheme for areas to be lit shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall show how and where external lighting will 
be installed, (through technical specifications and tile provision of appropriate lighting 
contour plans which shall include lux levels of the lighting to be provided), so that it can be 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and made using 
a chlorine free process. 

Page 194



18!. . . 

a) Clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit have reasonably minimised light pollution , 
through the use of minimum levels of lighting and features such as full cut off cowls 
and LED. 

. . . 

b) Clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent bats using their 
territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting places or foraging 
areas, through the use. of minimum levels of lighting and features ·such as full cut off 
cowls and LED . 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations 
set out in the approved sch~me , and shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the 
scheme. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without 
prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: TREE PROTECTION 
Any trees shrub or hedgerows within , or at the boundary of, Phase one the development 
that are tG be retained , shall be protected in accordance with a scheme of tree protection, 
(BS5837:2012) i to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to . 
commencement of that area or phase. The Local Planning Authority shall be advised in 
writing that the protective measures/fencing within a development area/phase have been · 
provided before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the 
purposes of development and shall continue to be. so protected during the period of 
construction and until all equipment, ·machinery and surplus materials have been removed 
from that development area/phase. 

Within the fenced area no work shall take place; no materials shall be stored; no oil or 
other chemicals shall be stored or disposed of; no concrete, mortar or plaster shall be ' 
mixed; no fires shall be started; no service trenches shall be dug; no soil.shall be removed 
or ground ·level changed at any time, without the prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Reasons 
. . 

. . . 

I have made these recommendations in order to reasonably minimise the adverse impact 
. of the proposal on the .landscape, local visual amenity and the dark skies character of the 
countryside. 

Recommendation -Outline application 

The Outline application, that is, Phases II-III for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a 
sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units with all matters reserved except for acc_ess. 

. . . 

. In terms of landscape and visual impact the proposal is acceptable subject to the following 
conditions to secure reserved matters. 

CONCURRENT WITH RESERVED MATTERS: DESIGN MATERIALS AND LAYOUT 
Concurrent with the submission of the Reserved Matters application(s) , in any 
deVelopment area or phase details of design and materials shall be submitted to the . 
Local Planning Authority, including colour, materials, finishes, signage, parking, boundary 
treatments (including the details of walls and fences for individual buildings) , movement 
patterns, lighting , outdoor spaces, security principles and waste bin storage arrangements. 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and made using 
· · a chlorine free process: 

\ 

Page 195



I 
I . . 

oamples of the facing and roofing materials to be used in the development shall also be 
/ provided. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

/ details. · ; . . . 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT:· SOFT LANDSCAPING 
No development shall commence within a development area or phase, until there has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the .Local Planning Authority a scheme of 
soft landscaping for that development area/phase, drawn to a scale of not less than 1 :200. 
The soft landscaping details shall include planting plans; written specifications (including 
cultivation and other operations a~sociated with plant and grass establishment) ; schedules 
of plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/ densities, yveed control · 
proteCtion and maintenance and any tree works to be undertaken during the course of the 
development. Any planting removed, dying or beco'ming seriously damaged or diseased 
within five years of planting shall be replaced within the first available planting season 
thereafter with planting of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives written consent for any variation . 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: HARD LANDSCAPING 
No development shall commence within a development area or phase, until full details of a 
hard landscaping scheme for that area/phase has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Autho~ity. These details shall include proposed finished · 
levels and contours showing earthworks and mounding; surfacing materials; means of 
enclosur~; car parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian .access and circulation areas; 
hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures (for example furniture , refuse 
and/or other storage units, signs, lighting and similar features) ; proposed and existing 
functional services above and below ground (for example drainage, power, 

. communications cables and pipelines, indicating lines, manholes, supports and other 
technical features)'. · 

PRIORTO COMMENCEMENT: EXTERNAL LIGHTING 
No external lighting· shall be provided within a development area or phase unless details 
thereof have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Prior to commencement a detailed lighting scheme for areas to be lit shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
show tiow and where external lighting will be installed , (through technical specifications 
and the provision of appropriate lighting contour plaris which shall include lux levels of the 
lighting to be provided) , so that it can be; 

a) Clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit have reasonably minimised light pollution, 
through the use of minimum levels of lighting and features such .as full cut off cowls · 
and LED. 

b) Clearly· demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent bats using their 
territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting places or foraging 
areas, through the use of minimum levels of lighting and features such as full cut off 
cowls and LED 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations 
set out in the approved scheme, and shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the 
scheme. Under no circumstances should any.otherexternallighting be installed without 
prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 

· We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County. This paper is 100% recycled and made using 
a chlorine free process. · 

Page 196



liS. · 

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT: TREE PROTECTION 
Any trees shrub or hedgerows within , or at the boundary of, a development area or phase 
that are to be retained, (including those previously planted as part an earlier phase of the 
development, shall be protected in accordance with a scheme of tree protection, 
(885837:2012) , to be agreed in writing with the L()cal Planning Authority prior to 
commencement of that area or phase. The Local Planning Authority shall be advised iri 
writing that the protective measures/fencing within a development area/phase have been 
provided before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the 
purposes of development arid shall continue to be so protected during the period of 

. construction and until all equipment, machinery and .surplus materials have been removed 
from that development area/phase. 

0 

Within the fenced area rio work shall take place; no materials shall be stored; no oil or 
other chemicals shall be stored or disposed of; no concrete, mortar or plaster shall be 
mixed; no fires shall b~ started; no service trenches shall be dug; no soil shall be removed 
or" ground level changed at any time, without the prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Reasons 
I have made these recommendations in order to reasonably minimise the adverse impact 
of the proposal on the landscape, local visual amenity and the dark skies character of the · 
countryside. · · · 

Yours sincerely 

0 Phil Watson 
Landscape Development Officer · 

We are working towards making Suffolk the Greenest County: Thls paper is 100% recycled and made using 
a chlorine free p'rocess. · 

\ 

Page 197



( 

Date: 29 July 2015 
Our ref: 159703 
Yourref: 1492/15 

Ms E Truscott 
Planning Services 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
131 High Street . 
Needham Market 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

BY EMAIL ONLY 

Dear Ms Truscott 

ENGLAND 
Hornbeam House 
Crewe Business Park 
Electra Way 

Crewe 
Cheshire 
CW1 6GJ 

T 0300 060 3900 

Planning consultation: Hybrid application for residential ·development with detailed permission sought 
for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all matters reserved except for 
access for Phases 11-111 for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 
units. 
Location: Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

Thank you for your consultation dated and received by Natural England on 14 July 2015. 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural 
environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future generations, 
thereby contributing to sustainable development. 

Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and made comments to the authority in 
our letter dated 6 July 2015 (our ref 155789). 

The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to these additional plans and reports; 
( although we made no objection to the originaf proposal. · 

Sho~ld the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural 
environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
2006, Natural England should be consulted again. Before sending us the amended consultation, 
please assess whether the changes proposed will materially affect any of the advice we have 
previou~ly offered. If they are unlikely to do so, please do not re-consult us . . 

Yours sincerely 

Joanne Widgery 
Consultations Team 21 JUL 2015 

l ~~·~<:~\~L.~~~.Eol· .0/(;s.~.f.. ............ . g D . ./5 ..... ... .... ...... . 
I f:l/\SS TO ........ ............. ~~ ........ ...... i 

Page 1 of 1 

Page 198



( 

( 

·oate: 06 July 2015 
• Our ref: 155789 

Your ref: 1492/15 

Elizabeth Trus'cott 
Mid Suffolk District Council 

planningadmin@m idsuffolk.gov_ uk 

Customer Services 

Hornbeam House 
Crewe Business Park 
Electra Way 

BY EMAIL ONLY 

Dear Ms Truscott 

· Planning consultation: 

I ' 

. Location: 

0 6 JUL £~:,. Crewe 

Cheshire 
CW1 6GJ 

T 0300 060 3900 

Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permission 
sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission 
with all matters reserved except for 'access for Phases 11-111 for up to 
11 Odwellings to incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 
units 

Land West of Farriers Road , Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 03 June 2015 which was received by Natural 
· England the same day. Thank you also for allowing us additional tim_e within which to provide our 
comments. 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body_ Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the 
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present ·and future 
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development 

1) Advice under the Wildlife and Countryside Act .1981 (as amended) 

Nationally designated sites 

No objection- no conditions requested 
( 

This application is in close proximity to Combs Wood Sit'e of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). 
Natural England is satisfied that the proposed development being carried out in strict accordance 
with the details of the application, as submitted, will not damage or destroy the interest features for 
which the site has been notified. We therefore advise your authority that this SSSI does not 
represent a constraint in determining this application. Should the details of this application change, 
Natural England draws your attention to Section 28(1) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as 
amended), requiring your authority to re-consult Natural England. 

2) Other advice 

We would expect the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to assess and consider the other possible 
impacts resulting from this proposal on the following when determining this application: 

• local sites (biodiversity and geodiversity) 
• local landscape character 

Page 1 of3 

Natural England is accredited to the Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 

Page 199



'"· • local or national biodiversity priority habitats and species. 

Natural England does not hold locally specific information relating to the above. These remain 
material considerations in the determination of this planning application and we recommend that you 
seek further information from the appropriate bodies (which may include the local records centre, 
your local wildlife trust, local geoconservation group or other recording society and a local 
landscape characterisation document) in order to ensure the LPA has sufficient information to fully 
understand the impact of the proposal before it determines the application. A more comprehensive 
list of local groups can be found at Wildlife and Countryside link. 

Protected Species 

We have not assessed this application and associated -documents for impacts on protected species. 

Natural England ·has published Standing Advice on protected species. The Standing Advice 
includes a habitat decision tree which provides advi-ce to planners on deciding if there is a 
'reasonable likelihood' of protected species being present. It also provides detailed advice on the 
protected species most often affected by development, including flow charts for individual species to 
enable an assessment to be made of a protected species sur-Vey and mitigation strategy. · 

You should apply our Standing Advice to this application as it is a material consideration in the 
determination of applications in the same, way as any individual response received from Natural ( 
England following consultation. 

The Standing Advice should not be treated as giving any indication or providing any assurance in 
respect of European Protected Species (EPS) that t_he proposed development is unlikely to affect 
the EPS present on the site; nor srould it be interpreted as meaning that Natural England has 
reached any views as to whether a licence may be granted. -

If you have any specific questions on aspects that are not covered by our Standing Advice for 
European Protected Species or have difficulty in applying it to this application please contact us with 
details at consultations@haturalengland.org.uk. · 

Biodiversity enhancements 

This application provides opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are beneficial to 
wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats orthe installation of bird nest 
boxes .. The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of the site from 
the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application. This is in accordance with 
Paragraph 118 of the NPPF. Additionally, we would draw your attention to Section 40 of the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006) which states that 'Every public authority must, in 
exercising Its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of thosf] ' 
functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'. Section 40(3) of the same Act also states that 
'conserving biodiversity includes, · in relation to a living organism or type of habitat, restoring or 
enhancing a population or habitaf. 

Impact Risk Zones for Sites of Special Scientific Interest 

Natural England has published a set of mapped Impact Risk Zones (IRZs) for SSSis. This helpful 
GIS tool can be used by LPAs to help consider whether a proposed development is likely to affect a 
SSSI and determine whether they need to consult Natural England to seek advice on the nature of 
any potential SSSI impacts, their avoidance or ·mitigation. The dataset and user guidance can be 
accessed from the gov.uk website. 

Page 2 of 3 

. Natural England is accredited to t.he Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 

( 

Page 200



( 

( 

We•would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you have any 
• queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries relating to the specific advice in this letter only please contact Jack Haynes using 
the details given below. For any new consultations, or to provide further information on .this 
consultation please send your correspondences to consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 

We really value your feedback to help us improve the service we offer. We have attached a 
. feedback form to this letter and welcome any comments you might have about our service. 

We also welcome your feedback on Natural England's revised standing advice in terms of its 
usability (ease of access, presentation), quality of content and, its clarity and effectiveness as a tool 
in guiding decision-making. Please provide this, with any suggested improvements, by filling in the 
attached customer feedback form or by em ailing your feedback direct to 
consultations@naturaleng land. org . uk. · 

Yours sincerely 

Jack Haynes 

Land Use Operations Norfolk & Suffolk Team 

Email: jack. haynes@naturalengland. org. uk 

Tel: 0300 060 1498 

Page 3 of3 

Natural England is accredited to the Cabinet Office Service Excellence Standard 
r 

) . 

Page 201



( ' 

(_ 

1'10. 
BABERGHIMID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Chief Planning Control Officer For the attention of: DC 

FROM: Nathan Pittam, Environmental Protection Team DATE: 22"d June 2015 

YOUR REF: 1492/15/FUL. EH- Land Contamination. 

SUBJECT: Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permrssron 
sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all 
matters reserved except for access for .. . 
Address: Land West of, Farriers Road, STOWMARKET, Suffolk 

Please find below my comments regarding contaminated land matters only. 

The Environmental Protection Team has no objection to the proposed development, but 
would recommend that the following Planning Condition be attached to any planning 
permission: 

Proposed Condition: Standard Contaminated Land Condition (CL01) · 

No development shall take place until: 

1. A strategy for investigating any contamination present on site (including ground 
gases, where appropriate) has been submitted for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

2. Following approval of the strategy, an investigation shall be carried out in accordance 
with the strategy. 

3. A written report shall be submitted detailing the findings of the investigation referred to 
in (2) above, and an assessment of the risk posed to receptors by the contamination 
(including ground gases, where appropriate) for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority. Subject to the risk assessment, the report shall include a Remediation 
Scheme as required. 

4. Any remediation work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Rem~diation Scheme. 

5. Following remediation, evidence shall bf) provided to the Local Planning Authority 
verifying that remediation has been carried out in accordance with the approved 
Remediation Scheme. · 

Reason: To identify the extent and mitigate risk to the public, the wider environment and 
buildings arising from land contamination. 

''There is a suspicion that the site may be contaminated or 
You should be aware that the responsibility for the safe 
occupancy of the site rests with the developer. 

ure 

Acknowledged ...... .. . e.B. .. .............. .. .... . 
De1 te .E.situoc?~~~o'Z~l .. \.5, .......... .. 
P.:-:.s tn .. ...... .. ........... . ... .. . .E~T ....... .. .... .. . 

Page 202



Unless agreed with the Local Planning Authority, you must not carry out any 
development work (including demolition or site preparation) until the requirements of the 
condition have been met, or without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

The developer shall ensure that any reports relating to site investigations and subsequent 
remediation strategies shall be forwarded for comment to the following bodies: 

• Local Planning Aut~ority 
• Environmental Services 
• Building Inspector 
• Environment Agency 

Any site investigations and remediation strategies in respect of site contamination 
(including ground gases, where appropriate) shall be carried out in accordance with 
current approved standards and codes of practice. 

The applicant/developer is advised, in connection with the above condition(s) requiring 
the submission of a strategy to establish the presence of land contaminants and any 
necessary investigation and remediation measures, to contact the Council's ( 
Environmental Protection Team. " 

Nathan Pittam 
Senior Environmental Management Officer 

( 

ES/CL!DC- 010/v2 Page 203



Consultee Comments for application 1492/15 

Application Summary 

· Application Number: 1492/15 

Address: Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

Proposal: Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permission sought for Phase 

I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all matters reserved except for access for 

Phases II-III for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units. 

Case Officer: Elizabeth Truscott 

Consultee Details 

Name: Mr David Harrold 

Address: Car Park Hurstlea Road, Needham Market, Ipswich, Suffolk IP6 8DL 

Email: david.harrold@midsuffolk.gov.uk 

On Behalf Of: MSDC - Environmental Health - Land Contamination 

Comments 

Thank you for consulting me on this planning application. 

In respect of 'other' environmental health issues I can confrm that I do not have any objection to 

the proposed development. 

However, due to the scale and size of construction you may wish to limit working hours, typically to 

between 07:30 and 18:00 hours during the week and 07:30 to 13:00 hours Saturday, no working 

Sunday and bank holidays. 

Reason to protect the neighbouring residential areas from adverse impacts of construction noise 

and construction traffic. 

David Harrold 

Senior Environmental Protection Officer 

Page 204



.-

( 

( 

Consultation Response Pro forma 

1 Application 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Number 

Date of Response 

Responding 
Officer 

Recommendation 
(please delete 
those N/A) 

Note: This section 
must be completed 
before the 
response is sent. 
The · .. 
recommendation 
should be based 
on the information 
submitted with the 
application. 
Discussion 
Please outline the 
reasons/rationale 
behind how you . 
have formed the 
recommendation. 
Please refer to any 
guidance, policy or 
material 
considerations that 
have informed your 
recommendation. 

1492/15/FUL 

Hybrid application for residential development with detailed 
permission sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and . 
outline permission with all matters reserved except for access for 
Phases II-III for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a sheltered 

. housing scheme of up to 60 units. 

25 08.2015 

Name: Sue Jackman 
Job Title: Housing Development 

Officer 
Responding on behalf of... Strategic Housing service 

No objection 

Key Points 

.-.. ~ - · ~~ .... ·~ .... . .. --~- ·---~----...--.... 
" L. .: -,.:: •- :STHiC:T CUUi'-JCiL l 

~ ;_,,;,:PN1.=; cnNTROL 

· c:::c::::nlED 

2 A.UG 20i5 
• ~"'"' • .. ,,E-- ·-·~r . lrr· 
' . l\:\1 .... \'1,:1,.. lJ'V~.;.L.J ~J...!)~ • • , ..... . 

; .. '. t: ...•. -~)§. .U.2 ....... . 
,:: ::- 'l j ), ·~ ~ • .:~-."..:" •"'• ,. • .'..,• u•la• 

1. Bac~ground Information 
• Affordable housing provision agreed at 19% for Phase 1, 

11&111. 
• Phase 1 -detailed permission sought for 75 dwellings 
• 14 Affordable single level bungalows 
• Phase 11 & 111 - Outline permission for up to 110 

dwellings to incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up 
to 60 units. 

2. Housing Need Information: 

The Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment confirms a continuing need for housing across all 
tenures and a growing need for affordable housing. The most 
recent update of the Strategic Housing Market Assessment, 
completed in 2012 confirms a minimum need of 134 affordable 

Please note that this form can be submitted electronically on the Councils website. Comments submitted on the website will not 
be acknowledged but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under the 
application reference number. Please note that the completed form will be posted o·n the t ouncils website and available to view 
by the public. 

Page 205



r 

homes per annum. 

The CouncH:s Choice Based Lettings system currently ha·s circa. 
900 applicants registered for the Mid Suffolk area. 554 applicants 
are registered on Choice Based Lettings from the Stowmarket 
area of which 128 applicants are over 55 years. 

It is noted that the currentproposal is to provide a range of single 
storey bungalows. Our 2014 Housing Needs Survey shows that 
there is a need across all tenures for smaller units of 
accommodation, which includes accommodation suitable for older 
people, wishing to downsize from larger privately owned family 
housing, into smaller privately owned apartments, bungalows and 

') houses. 

It would also be appropriate for any open market apartments and 
smaller houses on the· site to be designed and developed to 
Lifetime-Homes standards, making these attractive and 
appropriate for older people. 

3. Affordable Housing Requirement for Stowmarket 

19% of all units 

Phase 1 includes 14 units 

• · 4 x 1 bedroom bungalows 
• .1 0 x 2 bedroom bungalows 

6 Amendments, 
Clarification or N/A 
Additional 
Information 
Required 
(if holding 
objection) 

If concerns are 
raised, can they be 
overcome with 
changes? Please. 
ensure any 
requests are 
proportionate 

7 Recommended 
conditions Properties must be built to current Homes and Communities 

Agency Design and Quality Standards and be to Lifetimes Homes 
standards. 

Ple.ase note that this form can be submitted electronically on the Councils website. Comments submitted on the website wir"l not 
be acknowledged but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under the 
application reference number. Please note that the completed form will be posted on the Councils website and available to view 
by the public. 

( 

I 

t 

Page 206



( 

\~S. 

The council is granted 100% nomination rights to all the affordable 
units in perpetuity. 

The Council will not support a bid for Homes & Communities 
Agency grant funding on the affordable homes delivered as part of 
an open market development. Therefore the affordable units on . 
that part of the site must be delivered grant free. 

The location and phasing of the affordable housing units must be 
agreed with the Council to ensure they are integrated within the 
proposed development according to current best pra,ctice. 

On larger sites the affordable housing should not be placed in 
groups of more than 15 units. 

Adequate par:king provision is made for the affordable housing 
units. 

It is preferred that the affordable units are transferred to one of 
Babergh's partner Registered Providers - please see 
www.babergh.gov.uk under Housing and affordable housing for full 
details. 

Please note that this form can be submitted electronically on the Councils website. Comments submitted on the website will not 
be acknowledged· but you can check whether they have been received by reviewing comments on the website under the 
application reference number. Please note that the completed form will be posted on the Councils· website and available to view 
by the public. 

Page 207



From: RM Floods Planning 
Sent: 16 November 2015 15:57 
To: Planning Admin 

\(\, .. 

Subject: RE: Reconsultation on Planning Application 1492/15 

FAO John Pateman Gee 

1492/15- Land West of Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket . 

Thank you for re-consulting us about the above planning application . We have reviewed the additional plans 
and we have no further comments to make. 

Secondly, after discussions with developers agent regarding the surface water drainage strategy, sec consider 
the phased development can be granted planning permission usingthe standard condition :-

No development shall take place until details of the implementation, maintenance and managemen~ 
of the sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. 
The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the use of the 
development and thereafter managed and maintained in perpetuity. These details shall include: 
i) a programme for its implementation, and 
ii) a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall include the 
arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to 
secure the operation 
of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime. 
[iii) .arrangements to enable SuDS within .in private properties to be accessed and maintained 
including information and advice on responsibilities to be supplied to future owners. 

Reason:- To prevent the increased risk of flooding both on and off site, to improve and protect water 
quality and to eosure future maintenance of the system. 

Kind Regards 

Steven Halls 
Flood and Water Engineer 
Flood and Water Management 
Resource Management 
Suffolk County Council 
Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk. IP12BX 

Tel: 01473 264430 
Mobile: 07713093642 
Email: steven.halls@suffolk.gov.uk 

flviiD SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 

I PLANNING CONTROL 
RECEIVED 

16 NOV 2015 
ACKNOWL!;DGED •• ~.~-•••••••• 
DATE .••• J~J.l~J.~ .... :: ........ 
P.I\SSTO •. ~ •••••••••••••• •••••• 

Page 208



( 

I ( 

PUBLIC REALM/COUNTRYSIDE 
COMMENTS 

Application Ref 1492/15 

·-·---·---·----..., I i<t!i.: SUF ::cu< DISTRICT COUNCIL 
I PU\NNING CONTROL I RECEiVED 

f · 11! AUG 2015 
t ''"<"O''VLEOG'-D --J.S c._ ~ ;· ...... : 1"4 ,y h. •• • • , •••• •• • ••• • ••••• 

! CME . ......... : .~t~ .......... . 
I -~ (•C' - ·,) :L_• ( 
~ ~·,\ ....,...::, tl.. .... .... . .. ~· \- '•············ 
-----.--~~ 

Site/Location: Land West of Farriers Road , Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket 

Description: Hybrid application for residential development with detailed permission 
sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with all matters 
reserved except for access for Phases 11- 111 for up to 110 dwellings to incorporate a 
sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units. 

Received Date: 23.07.15 Case Officer: Elizabeth Truscott 

BACKGROUND Hybrid application for residential development with detailed 
permission sought for Phase I comprising of 75 dwellings and outline permission with 
all matters reserved except for access for Phases 11-111 for up to 110 dwellings to 
incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units. 

COMMENTS: Countryside 
. Protected Species 'surveys 

The various protected species surveys undertaken l:)y Middlemarch Environmental seem 
thorough and carried out appropriately for the site. Each survey makes a number of 
recommendations and ifthese are followed in full during the design, construction and 
landscaping phases of the proposed works these should minimise the risks to any protected 
species known to be using the site or discovered during construction. 
landscaping 
Species mix for hedgerows appear appropriate to the local area. I agree with the SWT 
comment about incorporating hedgerows into property boundaries. If existing hedgerows 
are to form a property boundary they need protection to prevent them being removed and 
replaced by fencing over time. Removal of these hedges will impact on the value of the site 
for bats 
Any Bluebells {Endymion non scripta) planted as part of the soft landscaping must be of 
native stock rather than the Spanish Bluebell which, if planted, freely hybridises with the 
native bluebell. Spanish Bluebell should be considered as an 'alien species.' 
Children's Play 
It does seem strange not to incorporate any play facilities within the housing area. Reference 
is made to nearby play facilities though it is not clear how far away these are. The design of 
the housing scheme lacks any central community open spaces that can be used by residents 
Public Realm: 

• The operi space within the residential development will be maintained by a 
. management company. 

• There is an open space roughly 1.5 hectares in size on the opposite side of Poplar 
Hill to the residential properties, which is a requirement in the local plan- this is 
part of the development, but there is an option for us or someone other than the 
management company to take this on. 

• There are no play facilities proposed on this open space- this is because most of the 
residential dwellings will be bungalows and possible sheltered housing. 

• Existing hedgerows on the site will be incorporated into gardens 

1 
Page 209



Your Ref: MS/1492/15 
Our Ref: 570\CON\3326\15 
Date: 3rd November 2015 
Highways Enquiries to: martin.egan@suffolk.gov.uk 

All planning enquiries should be sent to the Local Planning Authority. 
Email: planningadmin@midsuffolk.gov.uk 

The Planning Officer 
Mid Suffolk District Council 
Council Offices 
131 High Street 
Ipswich 
Suffolk 
IP6 8DL 

For the Attention of: Mr J Pateman-Gee 

Dear Sir, 

MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL 
PLANNING CONTROL 

RECEIVED 

- 3 NOV 2015 
ACKNOWI.Jai:lQI!P~c.._ • .,,;, 
DATE .. ~i.~~\~~"''"'"'"""'" 
PASS TQ, d· • ...n;r,~ .... '""'""'"' 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990- CONSULTATION RETURN MS/1492/15 

PROPOSAL: Hybrid application for residential development that consists of the following 

elements:-

Full' Planning sought for Phase I comprising of 75 single storey dwellings, 

garaging and parking and public open space/attenuation basin (SUDs). 

Outline Planning sought with all matters reserved (except for access) for Phases 11-111 for up to 110 

dwellings to incorporate a sheltered housing scheme of up to 60 units and 

public open space areas. 

LOCATION : Land West of, Farriers Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket, Suffolk 

I note from the revised drawings received with your letter dated 23/10/2015 that the "bus gate" feature has 
now been removed in favour of a through road between Farriers Road and Poplar Hill due to concerns 
expressed. by Council Members and existing local residents. The through road is acceptable in highway 
terms but with the layout as proposed (and subsequently indicated for Phase 2/3) traffic calming will be 
required to restrict vehicle speeds on the new estate spine road. Any traffic calming will need to be "bus 
friendly" and I will use conditions to request details to be submitted and agreed pre commencement as 
normally applied to the other estate road design details . . 

Publ ic Transport Requirements. 

In terms of public transport the intention now will be to divert the existing bus service through the new 
development and this will entail provision of a new bus stop within the site, probably at or near the 
boundary of Phase 1 with Phases 2/3. The new bus stop will requ ire a shelter and installation of a Real 
Time Passenger Information (RTPI) screen. A further RTPI screen will also require installation at the 
existing bus stop on either Poplar Hill or Edgecomb Road. The new shelter and screens will need to be 
funded via S 106 contributions; please refer toS 106 contributions summary below. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell .Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
· www.suffolk.qov.uk 

. ! 

Page 210



Chapter 4 of the NPPF focuses on the importance of promoting sustainable transport. Paragraph 29 says 
"The transport system needs to be balanced in favour of sustainable transport modes, giving people a real 
choice about how they travel. " Paragraph 30 says "Encouragement should be given to solutions which 
supportreductions in greenhouse emissions and reduce congestion." 

The NPPF in paragraph 35 says "plans should proteCt and exploit opportunities for the use of sustainable 
. transport modes for the movement of goods or people. " It goes on to say "give priority to pedestrian and 
cycle movements, and have access to high quality public transport" and "to consider the needs of people 
with disabilities by all modes of transport. " 

The dev,elopme.n.t ,_onceJioked wjth. Poplar Hill , would be served by a diversion/extension of the existing 
service which ·currently·uses.Edgecomb RoadNerneuil Avenue and Poplar Hill. 

~ ·~-- . - . . . . ' :! ·_. . ' : . 

. We will require cont"ributi ~ns to fund the upgrade of the nearest existing bus stop on either Edgecomb 
Road (qmently has atbus shelter) or Poplar Hill (no space to install a shelter) to include the installation of 
a RTPI ~isplay screen. Additionally the contributions would include provision of a bus shelter and RTPI 
display $creen at a new bus :stop to be created within the application site. It is assumed that the other 
constru~tion works ·(raised kerbiiig , hard standing, electricity supply etc.) would be provided as part of the 
regular estate road constructiO'n ori· the site. 

The reasons for the improvements ar~ as follows: 

To improve access to buses for disabled and elderly people by providing raised kerbs, 
. To improve the. facilities by providing shelters to encourage bus use. 

To improve and provide accurate and up-to-date timetable information. 

The estimated cost (based on current costs from our contracted suppliers) .of delivering one shelter and 
two RTPI display screens is £25,000. 

The provision of such therefore, with in a S 106, to mitigate for the increased demands on facilities and 
services from the increased population as a result of the development, is entirely satisfactory as a matter 
of principle, having regard to the NPPF, Mid Suffolk's Core Strategy Focused Review and Regulations 122 · 
& 123 of the GIL Regulations. 

Notice is hereby given that the County CounCil as Highway Authority recommends that any 
permission which the Planning Authority may give should include the conditions shown below: 

Conditions For Phase 1 Full Application 

1. 
Condition: Before the development is commenced, details of the estate roads and footpaths, (including 
layout, ·levels, gradients, surfacing, means of surface water drainage, traffic calming , bus stop and bus 
shelter) , shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason : To ensure that roads/footways are constructed to an acceptable standard with appropriate traffic 
calmning features on the spine road and suitable bus stop and shelter to accommodate future bus route .. 

2 ER2 
Condition: No dWelling shall be occupied until the carriageways and footways serving that dwelling have 
been constructed to at least Binder course level or better in accordance with the approved details except 
with the written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided for the safety of residents and the public. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.qov.uk 

Page 211



3 AL 8 
Condition: Prior to the new dwellings hereby permitted being first occupied , the new vehicular accesses 
and private drive accesess onto the new estate roads shall be properly surfaced with a bound material for 
a minimum distance of 5.0 metres from the edge of the metalled carriageway, in accordance with details 
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

Reason: To secure appropriate improvements to the vehicular accesses in the interests of highway safety. 

4 p 1 
Condition: The use shall not commence until the area(s) within the site shown on Drawing Number 
2084/AD/1/1 03 Revision Cas submitted for the purposes of manoeuvring and parking of vehicles has 
been provided and thereafter that area(s) shall be retained and used for no other purposes. 

Reason: To ensure that sufficient space for the on site parking of vehicles is provided and maintained in 
order to ensure the provision of adequate on-site space for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles 
where on-street parking and manoeuvring would be detrimental to highway safety to users of the highway. 

5 NOTE 02 
Note 2: It is an OFFENCE to carry out works within the public highway, which includes a Public Right of 
Way, without the permission of the Highway Authority. Any conditions which involve work within the limits 
of the public highway do not give the applicant permission to carry them out. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing all. works within the public highway shall be ca(ried out by the County Council or its agents at the 
applicant's expense. The County Council's Central Area Manager must be contacted on Telephone: 
01473 341414. Further information go to: www.suffolk.gov.uk!environment-and- . 
transport/highways/dropp~d-kerbs-vehicular-accesses/ 
A fee is payable to the Highway Authority for the assessment and inspection of both new vehicular 
crossing access works and improvements deemed necessary to existing vehicular crossings due to 
proposed development. 

6 NOTE 07 
Note: The Local Planning Authority recommends that developers of housing estates should enter into 
formal agreement with the Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 relating to the 
construction and subsequent .adoption of Estate Roads. 

7 NOTE 12 
Note: The existing street lighting system may be affected by this proposal. 
The applicant must contact the Street Lighting Engineer of Suffolk County Council, telephone 01284 
758859, in order to agree any necessary alterations/additions to be carried out at the expense of the 
developer. 

Conditions For Outline Area. (Phase 2 and 3). 

1. Access. 
Condition: Before any .other part of the development commences the new vehicular access onto Poplar 
Hill shall be provided and laid owt in accordance with Drawing Number 0787-SK-001-C Revision A as 
submitted. 

Reason: To ensure that a safe access is provided onto Poplar Hill giving suitable access into the 
application site. 

2. Poplar Hill Improvements. 
Condition: Before any new dwellings are first occupied the Poplar Hill access, footway and visibility splay 
highway improvements are to be provided and completed in full in accordance with Drawing Number . 
0787-SK-001-C Revision A as submitted. 

Reason: To ensure that safe access is provided to the site by providing suitable visibility splays and 
widening of the existing footway on Poplar Hill. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.aov. uk 

Page 212



3. ER1 
Condition: Before the development is commenced, d~tails of the estate roads and footpaths, (including 
layout, levels, gradients, surfacing and means of surface water drainage) , shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that roads/footways are constructed to an acceptable standard. 

4 ER2 
Condition: No dwelling shall be occupied until the carriageways and footways serving that dwelling have 
been constructed to at least Binder course level or better in accordance with the approved details except 
with the written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided for the safety of residents and the public. 

5 p 2 
Condition: Before the development is commenced details of the areas to be provided for the manoeuvring 
and parking of vehicles including secure cycle storage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety before the development 
is brought into use and shall be retained thereafter and used .for no other purpose. 

Reason: To ensure the provision and long term maintenance of ·adequate on-site space for the parking 
and manoeuvring of vehicles, where on-street parking and manoeuvring would be detrimental to highway 
safety. 

6 v 1 
Condition: Before the access is first used visibility splays shall be provided as shown on Drawing No. 
0787-SK-001-C Revision A as submitted with an X dimension of 4.5 metres and a Y dimension of 90 
metres and thereafter retained in the specified form. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 2 Class A of 

·the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no obstruction over 0.6 metres high shall be erected, 
constructed, planted or permitted to grow within the areas of the visibility splays. 

Reason : To ensure vehicles exiting the drive would have sufficient visibility to enter the public highway 
safely and vehicles on the public highway would have sufficient warning of a vehicle emerging in order to 
take avoiding action. 

7. NOTE 02 
Note 2: It is an OFFENCE to carry out works wfthin the public highway, which includes a Public Right of 
Way, without the permission of the Highway Authority. Any conditions which involve work within the limits 
of the public highway do not give the applicant permission to carry them out. Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing all works within the public highway shall be carried out by the County Council or its agents at the 
applicant's expense. The County Council's Central Area Manager must be contacted on Telephone: 
01473 341414. Further information go to: www.suffolk.gov.uklenvironment-and
transport/highways/dropped-kerbs-vehicular-accesses/ 
A fee is payable to the Highway Authority for the assessment and inspection of both new vehicular 
crossing access works and improvements deemed necessary to existing vehicular crossings due to 
proposed development. 

8. NOTE 07 
Note: The Local Planning Authority-recommends that developers of housing estates should enter into 
formal agreement with the Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 relating to the 

· construction and subsequent adoption of Estate Roads. · 

9. NOTE 12 
Note: The existing street lighting system may be affected by this proposaL 
The applicant must contact the Street Lighting Engineer .of Suffolk County Council , telephone 01284 
758859, in order to agree any necessary alterations/additions to be carried out at the expense of the 
developer. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich , Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.oov.uk 

Page 213



10. NOTE 15 
201 

Note: The works within the public highway will be required to be designed and constructed in accordance 
with the County CoUncil's specification . 
The applicant will also be required to enter into a legal agreement under the provisions of Section 278 of 
the Highways Act 1980 relating to the construction and subsequent adoption of the highway 
improvements. Amongst other things the Agreement will cover the specification of the highway works, 
safety audit procedures, construction and supervision and inspection of the works, bonding arrangements, 
indemnity of the County Council regarding noise insulation and land compensation claims, commuted 
sums, and changes to the existing street lighting and signing. 

Travel Plari Comments and Requirements. 

I have had a chance to review the revised travel plan (dated 261
h August 2015) and would like to highlight 

the outstanding actions below .that will need to be amended prior to determination of the planning . 
application : 

• Some of the measures assume that the majority of the occupants that will be living on the 
proposed development are going to be retired and unlikely to travel during th.e peak periods. If 
there is a shift in the demographics of the site in-favour of the residents being of a working age the 

. travel plan measures would not be sufficient to mitigate the impact of single-occupancy vehicles 
_and achieve the 10% modal shift in favour of sustainable alternatives. 

• There has been a section included in regards to the site-specific barriers and issues for residents 
using alternatives to single-occupancy vehicle travel; however no barriers and issues have been 
identified. · 

• The peak trip data included in the travel plan is only based ·on the 8am-9am peak. This morning 
peak should be extended to ?am, as there may be many longer distance commuters travelling at 
this time. 

• The local school information will need to be revised as Wood Ley Primary School is not the closest 
primary school to the site (Combs. Ford Community Primary.School is closest) and Combs Middle 
·School has now closed. 

• · No public transport improvements have been identified which may create further disincentives for 
using the bus to travel during the peak travel periods. Also no highway improvements have been 
identified either. 

• . An indicative number of bedrooms per dwelling is missing. Provision of this information will · assist 
to .gain an understanding on what market the dwellings will be targeted towards (i.e. one bedroom 
dwellings possibly liked to the retired demographic group, whilst three to four bedroom dwellings 

. are likely to be purchased by families) . 
• There are no remedial travel plan measures included in the travel plan if the 1 0% single-occupancy 

vehicle modal shift is not achieved. These measures will need to be included in the travel plan. · 
• There must be a commitment to fully fund and implement the travel plan throughout the full 

construction and phasing of the development until five years have passed from when the final 
(1851r,) dwelling has been occupied , as there is a chance the development may not be fully 
completed in a five year period . . 

• There must be a commitment to fully fund the cost of a four week bus ticket (or cycle equivalent) , 
as £50 might not be sufficient to cover the full cost of a four week ticket. 

• Include information if the garages can accommodate both a bike and a car (refer to the 2014 
Parking Standards) 

• There ·needs to be some commitments on the frequency of when travel plan meetings will take 
place between the Travel Plan Coordinator and other key stakeholders (Developer, Suffolk County 
Council , Mid~Suffolk District Council) 

• The Travel Plan Budget will need to be revised to cover the cost for the full travel plan period (pre
occupation until five years after final dwelling occupied) and include the indicative total cost of full 
implementation. 

• The travel plan monitoring must be undertaken at 50% occupation .and repeated on an annual 
basis until five years after the final (1851h) dwelling has been occupied. The travel plan must also 
identify other forms of monitoring (i.e. traffic counts, monitoring voucher uptake, car share 
database users, etc.) as surveys do not always get a decent response rate. 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road , Ipswich , Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk .aov. uk 

Page 214



·1o; 
• There must also be a commitment to produce a full travel plan no later than six months after the 

baseline (at 50% of occupation) travel surveys have been completed. 
• . The Appendices must ·include either bus timetables, or detailed information on the existing· bus 

services that serve the bus stops closest to the site (this can be obtained from Traveline East 
Anglia website) 

In regards to the concerns raised regarding the Section 106 Evaluation and Support Contribution I have 
included a legal interpretation below to the differences between SCC's requirements and the Oxfords hire 
High Court ruling, which were linked to monitoring payments to the Local Planning Authority (not the 
County Council): 

"There are a number of distinguishable features between a s1 06 monitoring/admin fee and the Travel Plan 
Contribution. These are: · 

. • Monitoring of travel plans is not a statutory function of the County whereas monitoring and ad min 
of planning obligations and development is a statutory function of the granting planning authority; 

• The travel plan contribution is not simply a fee towards monitoring/administrative cost~ of the travel 
plan but is a cost to enable active engagement of the County in the travel plari implementation. 
Again, this also highlights that it's a cost above any statutory function; and 

• Travel plans have ongoing obligations, reviews and engagement which is different to the one-off 
payments referred to in the case summary. 

The Evaluation and Support Contribution will cover officer time spent on: 
• Reviewing the annual travel plan monitoring report and agreeing new targets and objectives with 

the Residential Travel Plan Coordinator . 
• Covering the cost of attending site visits and m~etings with the Residential Travel Plan Coordinator 
• Providing the Residential Travel Plan Coordinator admin support with the annual resident travel 

surveys 
• Provision of any additional resources that can help support the implementation of the travel plan 

This cost works out to be approximately £1,000 per annum. The terms of SCC spending the money will 
also be secured by Section 1 06 agreement to ensure the developer receives full co-operation from SCC in 
the delivery and ongoing monitoring support of the travel plan .· 

I have also included a summary of how the Travel Plan Bond was calculated below: 

Number of dwellings: 

Summary of Travel Plan measures 

Travel Plan Co-ordinator 
Car Club Car and Membership 
Website for Development 
Sustainable Travel Information Pack 

Public transport voucher 
Cycle incentives 
Walking i'ncentives 
Survey incentives 
Green Travel Maps 
Design and printing of STIP 

Car Share Group 
Personalised Travel Plans 
Travel Notice Board 
Travel Notice Board Content 
Travel Plan Monitoring . 
Total 

Travel Plan Contribution per Dwelling 

Further clarification can be provided if needed. 

185 

No annual increase 

£72,450 
£0 
£0 

. £86,407 

£0 
£3,510 
£3,000 
£3,600 

£35,100 
£45,100 
£0 
£1,000 
£3,202 
£2,0.05 

£30,000 
£198,967 

£1 ,075 

With annual increase 

£77,937 
£0 
£0 
£91 ,998 

£0 
£3,799 
£3,000 
£3,900 

£37,428 
£48,130 
£0 
£1 ,070 
£3,249 
£2,121 

£32,108 
£212,743 

£1 ,150 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www:suffolk.oov.uk 

Page 215



Rights of Way Comments & Requirements. 

The proposed development will have a direct impact on the local public rights of way (PROW) network; 
please refer to the route map previously supplied. 

PROW are important for recreation , encouraging healthy lifestyles, providing green links, supporting the 
local economy and promoting local tourism. Just east of the development is the starting point of the 
promoted Combs & Badley circular walk. · 

The anticipated increased footfall of the PROW network of as a result of the development will require the 
fo llowing offsite improvement works: 

• Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public Footpath 45: 530m length x min 1.2m width = 636m2 @ 
£251m2 = £15,900.00 · · -

• Resurfacing of Combs Public Footpath 32: 170m length x min 1.5m width = 255m2 @ 
£251m 2 = £6,375.00 

These PROW provide walking opportunities into Combs for local services or out into the 
wider countryside. 

Estimates based on the average market costs to provide a hoggin type surface. 

• Resurfacing of Stowmarket Public Footpath 53 which leads to a children's play area: 125m 
length x min 1.5m width = 188m2 @ £601m 2 = 11 ,250.00 

I 

Estimate based on the average market costs to provide a sealed surface. 

The subtotal of these works is £33,525.00 plus 
Officer time@ 12% = £4,023.00 
Contingency @ 10% = £3,352.50 

Total s1 06 funding requested from this development= £40,900.50 

The policy framewqrk for these requirements is: 

• The county council's rights of way improvement plan which, inter alia, highlights the importance of 
development in rural areas should give people the greatest opportunity to access the countryside 
by walking and cycling , 

• The walking strategy, currently in draft, which seeks to ensure existing communities with a 
population over 500, and new developments over 10 dwellings have easy access to a one mi le 
natural walk or 2ha of green space, within 500m of their home, 

• The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Suffolk, outcome 2 of which states Suffolk residents 
should have access to a healthy environment and take responsibility for the own health and 
wellbeing, 

• You will already be aware of course that, amongst other health and wellbeing objectives, para 75 
of the NPPF states planning policies should protect and enhance public rights of way and access 
and local authorities should seek opportunities to provide better facilities for users, for example by 
adding links to existing rights of way networks. 

Section 106 Highway Contributions Summary. 

New bus shelter incorporating RTPI display within the site= £15,000 
New RTPI display screen installation/improvement to one existing bus stop = £10,000 
Total of Public Rights of Way Improvements= £40,900.50 
Travel Plan Evaluation and Support Contribution = £5000 · 
Travel Plan Implementation Bond of £198,967 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road , Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.oov.uk 

Page 216



If you require any further information or clarification then by all means contact me. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr Martin Egan 
Highways Development Management Engineer 
Strategic Development - Resource Management 

Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road , Ipswich, Suffolk IP1 2BX 
www.suffolk.!:Jov.uk 

Page 217



~Ji./1~ Suffolk 
~~~ Wildlife 
~Trust 

Elizabeth Truscott 
Planning Department . 
Mid Suffolk District Co~cil 
131 High Street 
Needham Market 
IP6 8DL 

01/07/2015 

Dear Elizabeth, 

. __ .. _ ......... --~ ... -- .. ·-- ~~ .. 
l i~Jl[J ~~l.!fT I! i .. L!:.. f~!< 't' \) .. ~:~~-;L 

'It PL.i:~·~;::;~:.·~:·\~Ol I 
-V ,\. --'--' 

I -2 JUL 2 15 
• • .. ,, "" "D" ro I 

'
~-~\,~t !•\.)fl;~.l:, 't.fl- ............ ,., ........ . 

l)~.\! f.- •• ·~ .............. . .. . ...... " ......... j t 
j?gSTO ......... . .... ................. :.! 

RE: 1492/15 Hybrid application for residential development. Land West of Farriers 
Road, Edgecomb Park, Stowmarket · 

......,1.ank you for sending us details of this application, we have the following comments: 

We have read the ecological survey reports (Extended Phase.1; Bats; Otter; Water Vole; 
Reptiles; Great Crested Newts, Middlemarch Environmental, August and September 2014) 
and we note the findings of the consultant. We request that the recommendations made 
within the reports are implemented in full, via a condition of planning consent, should 
permission be granted. 

In addition to the measures within the ecological survey reports, we have the following 
recommendations in relation to this proposal. 

The development should use a sensitive lighting scheme which ensures that boundary features 
and other existing and new greenspace areas are not lit. This should help ensure that these 
features remain suitable for nocturnal species such as bats. 

The layout plan for site shows that the existing hedgerows will form the boundaries of 
residential gardens for a number of the new dwellings. Incorporation of these hedges in to 

/ rdens will remove the protection that they currendy receive under the Hedgerow 
Regulations (1997). If the hedges are to be used' as residential garden boundaries their long 
term existence and management should be appropriately secured to ensure that their 
ecological value is not degraded over time. - 1 PD ~ · 

The site currendy includes several areas which are of some ecological value, including the 
boundary trees and hedgerows and the stream area to the north. It should be ensured that 
these areas are protected during the construction phase and that they are subject to 
appropriate management measures in the long term. 

The overall development includes the provision of various area~ of new greenspace. It should 
be ensured that these areas are designed to maximise th~ir ecological value and that long temi 
beneficial management is secured, including provision of any necessary ·financial contribution. 

If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Yours sincerely 

~ 
wildlife 
TRUSTS 

Suffolk WJ.!dlife Trust, 
Brooke House, Ashbocking, 

Ipswich, IP6 9JY 
Tel: 01473 890089 

www.suffolb:wildlifetrust.org 

info@suffolkwildlifetrust.org 

Suffolk Wildlife Trust is a 
registered charity 

no.262777 

Page 218



James Meyer 
Conservation Planner 

.· 

Creating a Living Landscape for Suffolk 

( 

( 

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2015
	8 Schedule of Planning Applications
	2936-15
	2936-15 Background papers
	3349-15
	3349-15 Background papers
	3208-15
	3208-15 Background papers
	1492-15
	1492-15 Background Papers




